STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION
Action Item
February 12, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Step Up For Students, Inc. as a Scholarship Funding Organization for
2020-2021

PROPOSED BOARD ACTION

Approve the renewal of Step Up For Students, Inc. as an eligible Scholarship Funding
Organization (SFO) for purposes of administering the Florida Tax Credit (FTC) Scholarship
Program, Gardiner Scholarship Program, Hope Scholarship Program, Reading Scholarship
Program and Family Empowerment Scholarship Program (FES) for 2020-2021.

AUTHORITY FOR STATE BOARD ACTION

Section 1002.395(15), Florida Statutes

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In order to participate in the FTC, Gardiner, Hope, Reading and FES Scholarship Programs a
charitable organization that seeks to be a nonprofit SFO must submit an application for
initial approval or renewal to the Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice no
later than September 1 of each year before the school year for which the organization
intends to offer scholarships. In consultation with the Department of Revenue and the Chief
Financial Officer, the Office of Independent Education and Parental Choice shall review the
application and the Commissioner of Education shall recommend approval or denial of the
application to the State Board of Education. The Board of Education shall approve or deny
the application.

Supporting Documentation Included: Application packet for Step Up For Students, Inc.
(under separate cover)

Facilitators/Presenters: Laura Mazyck, Interim Executive Director, Office of Independent
Education and Parental Choice; Doug Tuthill, President, Step Up For Students, Inc.
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August 27, 2019

Mr. Richard Corcoran
Commissioner of Education
Office of the Commissioner
Turlington Building, Suite 1514
325 West Gaines Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Dear Commissioner Corcoran:

We respectfully submit our application to serve as a Scholarship Funding Organization in 2020-21 under
55.1002.395, 1002.394, 1002.385, 1002.40, and 1002.411, Florida Statutes, and look forward to

answering any questions you may have.

Step Up For Students served over 99,700 of Florida’s most economically disadvantaged students on the
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program last year. The average household income was only 9.1 percent
above poverty, and more than two-thirds of the students were black or Hispanic and more than half lived
with a single parent or guardian. The department’s researcher has reported that these students were the
lowest academic achievers from the public schools they left behind and that they are continuing to
achieve the same annual standardized test score gains as students of all income levels nationally.

This past year, Step Up was able to serve 11,458 students with unique abilities on the Gardiner
Scholarship Program and is projecting to serve over 14,000 students in the current year.

In addition, Step Up served 127 students on the Hope Scholarship and 5,639 students on the Reading
Scholarship.

Your department should take pride in the breadth of learning options that Florida and its school districts
provide to parents. We are dedicated to assuring that the FTC Scholarship Program, Family
Empowerment Scholarship Program, Gardiner Scholarship Program, Hope Scholarship Program, and
Reading Scholarship Accounts, are administered faithfully and transparently. We welcome your

questions.

Sincerely,

TAY

Doug Tuthill
President

www.stepupforstudents.org
ST. PETERSBURG OFFICE ¢ 1901 Ulmerton Road, Suite 180, Clearwater, FL. 33762 « 813.258.2700
JACKSONVILLE OFFICE = 4655 Salisbury Road, Suite 400, Jacksonville, FL. 32256 « 904.247.6033
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NONPROFIT SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ORGANIZATION
PARTICIPATION RENEWAL

If your nonprofit charitable organization desires to parficipate, please complete this form

and submit it o the Department of Education with information as requested below.

If you have any questions, contact the Office of Independent Educalion and Parental Choice at:
Telephone (850) 245-0502 or FAX (850) 245-0875 or by mai to: 325 W, Gaines Streel,

Suite 1044, Tailahassee, FL 32353-0400.

SUBMIT BY: SEPTEMBER 1, 2019

INFORMATION REQUIRED ABOUT YOUR ORGANIZATION

Step Up For Students, Inc
{Wame of Crganization)

Joe Pfountz jpfountz@sufs.org 904-352-2246
{Principal Contaci) (E-mail) (Phons) {Fax)

4655 Salisbury Rd
(Mailing Address)

Suite 400
{Matling Address Cont.)

Jacksonville 322586
{City) {Zip Code)

Doug Tuthill
{Name of Principal Officer or Legal Representative)

CHARITABLE SFO ASSURANCES / VERIFICATION

WHICH BEST DESCRIBES YOUR ORGANIZATION? (Circle one)
Municipal (serving one city or county) Regional
WHICH SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM(S) DOES YOUR ORGANIZATION PLAN TO ADMINISTER?

LdFlorida Tax Credit Scholarship Program
EAGardiner Scholarship Program

[AHope Scholarship Program

[4AReading Scholarship Program

AFamily Empowerment Scholarship Program

TO BE CONSIDERED AS AN ELIGIBLE SFO, PLEASE SUBMIT THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTATION
TO THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:

o Asigned [EPC SFO-2 form
e A copy of your IRS Determination Letter as a 501(c)(3) not for profit organization
e A copy of your organization's incorporation and registration with the Florida Division of Corporations,

4
|IEPC SFO-2
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Office of the Secretary of State

= Level 2 criminal background screening results for owners and operators

« A description of your organization's financial plan that demonstrates sufficient funds to operate
throughout the school year

» A description of the geographic region that the organization intends to serve and an analysis of lﬁe

demand and unmet need for eligibly students In that area

The organization's organizational chart

A description of the criteria and methodology that the organization will use to evaluate scholarship eligibility

A description of the application process, including deadlines and any associated fees

A description of the deadlines for attendance verification and scholarship payments

A copy of the organization's policies on conflict of inferest and whistieblowers

A surety bond or letter of credit in an amount equal to the amount of the undisbursed donations

held by the organization based on the annual report provided to the Auditor General and the

Department of Education and conducted by an independent certified public accountant

(s.1002.395(6)(m), F.S.). The amount of the surety bond or letter of credit must be at least

$100,000.00, but no more than $25 million

The organization's completed IRS Form 990 (due no later than November 30)

A copy of the statutorily required audit to the Department of Education and Auditor General

An annual report that includes the number of students who completed applications, by county and

by grade, the number of students who were approved for scholarships, by county and by grade,

and the number of students who received funding for scholarships within each category, by county

and by grade, as well as the amount of funds received, the amount of funds distributed in

scholarships, and an accounting of remaining funds and the obligations of those funds

» A detalled accounting of how the organization spent the administrative funds, i applicable

wr

e # & @& & @

PLEASE RESPOND TO THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS:

« |have read and agree to comply with Florida Administrative Code 6A-6.0960 related to the Florida
Tax Credit Scholarship Program
o | have read and agree to comply with Florida Statutes Section 1002.385, Section 1002.395, Section 1002.40 and
Section 1002.411, if applicable
o | will notify the Department of Education within 7 days if personal or corporate bankruptey is filed
within the next year
+ | have not filed for personal or corporate bankruptcy in a corporation of which | owned more than 20
percent in the last 7 years

| HEREBY ATTEST THAT AS THE PRINCIPAL OFFICER OF THE ABOVE NAMED SCHOLARSHIP
FUNDING ORGANIZATION ALL OF THE DOCUMENTATION SUBMITTED AND INFORMATION
PROVIDED AS A RESULT OF THIS FORM IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

S L
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KE,(;/? "-l;_‘; - "ﬂ Wﬁm |EPC SFO-2
e - MY CONMISSION # GO oi18M

EXPIRES: July 10,
%%Iﬂﬂ Thu '“::ﬁﬁr Page 2


http:100,000.00

Date Received:

Received by:

Action;

Authorization: Date:
SFO Notified: DOR Naotified: DABT Notified:

FOR DOE PURPOSES ONLY;

NOTE:  Section 1002.395, £ 8., requiras the Dapartmen! of Edvucation fo annualy nolify the Deparimant of Revenue and the Division of Alcaholc Boverages
and Tobaceo of the Deparimant of Business and Professional Regulation with & iist of eligible Scholarship Funding Organizations by March 1538,
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF ;
THE NATIONAL EDU ON D ENT ORPO D

ARTICLEI NAME

o
g 2

25 m

The name of the corporation shall be: % E
%.. @

THE NATIONAL EDUCATION DEVELOPMENT FUND, INCORPORA? ED =
2 2

Sm =

ARTICLE NI PRINCIPAL OFFICE
The principal place of business and mailing address of this corporation shall be:

601 North Ashley Drive, Suite 500
Tampa, Florida 33602

ARTT I _PURPOSE(S i
The corporation shall be a not-for-profit entity and no economic bepefit shall accrue
to any member of this corporation. The corporation is being formed for the purpose of
providing economic and other assistance (usually acting as an intermediary) to private
schools (as opposed to public schools operated by a school system) which carry out their
educational missions from physical facilities located in inner city areas of municipalities

located throughout the United States and which are also, in large part, not-for-profit
institutions.

C v OF ON RE

The corporation’s affairs and its assets shall be carried out and maintained by a
Board of Directors having not less than one nor more than seven members. The members
of the Board of Directors shall be elected annually in January of each year by the majority
vote of the members of the corporation, each member being entitled to one vote.
Cumulative voting shall not be permitted in the election of directors. Vacancies occurring
on the Board of Directors may be filled, until the next election of directors, by appointment
by virtue of majority action of the then members of the Board of Directors. Members of
the Board of Directors of the corporation need not be members of the corporation.
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TI v REGISTERED AGENT ET AD S
The name and Florida street address of the initial registered agent are:
WILLIAM T. KIRTLEY, Esq.

2940 South Tamiami T'rail
Sarasota, Florida 34230

ARTICLE VI INCORPORATOR

The name and address of the Incorporator to these Articles of Incorporation are:

WILLIAM T. KIRTLEY, Esq.
2040 South Tamiami Trail
Sarasota, Florida 34239

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, these Articles of Incorporation have been executed as

of the 16th day of February, 2000.
2erom. /

William T. Kirtley/ Incorpor.

Having been named as registered agent and fo accept service of process for the above
stated corporation at the place designated in this certificate, I hereby accept the
appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply
with the provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete performance of my
duties, and I am familiar with and accept the obligations of my position as registered agent.

Dated: February 16, 2000
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www.sunbiz.org - Department of State Page | of 1

Froripa DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of CORPORATIONS

Home Contact Us E-Filing Services Document Searches Forms Help

Return to Detail Screen

Events
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.
Document Number NODDOOO01090

Date Filed 02/18/2000

Effective Date None

Status Active

Event Type Filed Date  Effective Date Description

AMENDMENT AND 01/06/2011 OLD NAME WAS : THE FLORIDA SCHOQL C
NAME CHANGE HOICE FUND, INCORPORATED
AMENDMENT AND 06/01/2000 OLD NAME WAS : THE NATIONAL EDUCATI
NAME CHANGE ON DEVELOPMENT FUND, INCORPORATED

Note: This is not official record. See documeants if guestion ar conflict.

Return to Detail Screen

| Home | Contact us | Document Searches | E-Flling Services | Forms | Help |

Copyright @ and Privacy Policies
State of Florida, Department of State
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State of Florida
Department of State

I certify from the records of this office that STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. is
a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Florida. filed on February
18, 2000.

The document number of this corporation is N00O000001090.
I further certify that said corporation has paid all fees due this office through
December 31, 2019, that its most recent annual report/uniform business report

was filed on April 1, 2019, and that its status is active.

I further certify that said corporation has not filed Articles of Dissolution.

Given under my hand and the
Great Seal of the State of Florida
at Tallzhassee, the Capital, this
the First day of April, 2019

R Mo

Secretary of State

Tracking Number: 2672688049CC

To authenticate this certificate,visit the following site,enter this number, and then
follow the instructions displayed.

hitps://services.sunbiz.org/Filings/CertificateOfStatus/Certificate Authentication
—
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ﬁ% IRS Department of the Treasury
Internal Hevenue Service

ooesa2

P.0. Box 2508, Room 4010 In reply refer to: 4077556534
Cincinnati DOH 45201 Aug. 12, 2011 LTR 4168C 0
59=-36G9371 o0o000DD DO
00025515
BODC: TE

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS INC
% JOHN F KIRTLEY

337 § PLANT AVE

TAMPA FL 33606-2325

Emplover Identification Number: b5b9-3649371
Person to Contact: SHARON LENARD
Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour July 18, 2011, request for information
regarding vour tax-exempt status.

Dur records indicate that you were recognized as exempt under
section B501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination
letter issued in July 2000.

Qur records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within
the mecaning of section 509(a) of the Code becausze you are described in
section(s) 509(a)(1l) and 17D0(b)(1)CA)C(vi).

Donors may deduct contributions to vou as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Begquests, legacies; devises,; transfers, or gifts to you or
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code.

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for information regarding
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(3i) of the Code
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three
consecutive vears results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax-exempt

status was revoked under section 6033(j) of the Code on our website
beginning in early 2011.
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4077556534
Aug. 12, 2011 LTR 4168C 0
59-3649371 oooooOD 00
00025516

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS INC
¥ JOHN F KIRTLEY

337 S PLANT AVE

TAMPA FL 33606-2325

If vyou have any questions,; please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely vours;

Cindy Thomas
Manager, E0D Determinations
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Step Up For Students

Level 2 criminal background screening results for owners and operators

The background screenings for all owners and operators are satisfactory and are on file with the Florida
Department of Law Enforcement. Step Up For Students’ officers are Doug Tuthill, Joe Pfountz, and
Anne White.
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Step Up For Students, Florida Only
3 Year Plan - Income Statement by Category

Each Year, Step Up For Students prepares a detalled three year projection of its revenues and expenses. The income staternent for the SFO
application year is highlighted, Each year's budget must result in a net operating margin between 1 - 4% and provides for capital investment
to support future growth and stability of the programs.

The senior leadership team participates in the budgeting process and the board of directors reviews and approves the budgets before the
beginning of each fiscal year, Monthly financial results are published and shared with the senior leadership team and board of directors,
allewing for timely corrective action when needed. Additionally, te prepare for the unknown and to account for potential risk, a contingency
budget is captured within the budget process, and unfareseen expenditures are managed through this budget item. The contingancy is
reflectad in the ‘other’ line item,

Our revenue sources include administrative allowance from the FTC, FES, Gardiner, Hope and Reading programs. Each program's revenue
and expenses are accounted for separately in the general leader via fund accounting, and separate bank accounts are maintained for each
program’s schelarship funds, For all programs we recognize an administrative allowance of 3% of all scholarship awarded, with the exception
of FES whire we recognize 1%, These administrative allowances are used to fund operating expenses related to administering the programs
which include application and reimbursement processing costs. Additionally, we have planned grant income which provides funding for
additional advocacy initiatives that will help to broaden awareness of the program. The last revenue source Is included in "other income’, and
is related to our philanthropic efforts, where we plan to fundraise non-tax credit donations which can be used on expenditures that further
the mission of the organization.

Fundraising Cap $874M $B74M $874M
12 Months ending Jung 30, . ; ' i i
Operating Revenues : 2020 Oporating Budgoet | 2021 .A.rln ualPlan| 2022 Annual Plan
Flonda Tax Credit Administrative Allowance 25,109,540 27 683,268
Gardiner Administrative Allowance 4,133,885 5842 460
Grants 1,631,705 382,926
FES 1,185,527 1,852,386
Hope Scholarship 49,433 77,239
Reading 135,000 £ 194,063
Other Income 1,546,184 | 3 v 1,704,668
Total Revenues §33,691,274 ﬂs..uh}as- $37 837,009
Operating Expenses 2020 Operating Budget | 2021 Anquﬂi Flhn. 2022 Annual Plan
Salaries, wages and benefits 23,287,330 26,786,251
Ocoupancy 962,128 1.020,722
Insurance 298,856 323,243
Voice and data 1,173,996 1,269,754
Travel BE7,909 722,410
Cellular Phone 116,997 126,544
Dues, Fees & Subscriptions 1.318.819 1,221,556
Professional Services 395476 427 747
Marketing/Advertising 420,861 455,203
Contract Services 989,044 1,068,750
Equipment 75,868 82,059
FPostage & Delivery 182,745 197,657
Printing & Reproduction 200,430 216,785
Conferences & Seminars 2493 947 270,343
Training 102,520 110,888
Employee Recruitment 51,523 55,727
Sponsorship/ Tradeshows 90,140 97,495
Bank Fees 311,015 336,304
Supplies 120,548 130,385
Depreciation &75,706 947 164
Qther 1,322 482 ; 1,403,021
Total Operating Expenses $33,214,340 1$35,089,953 §17,271,135
Net Income/(Loss) $476,934 3534176 3565874
Net Income % of Revenue 1.4% 15% 1.5%
|Capital expenditure $772,000 | $700,000 | $750,000 |
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Step Up For Students
Operational Cash Flow 2021 Plan

The financial planning process includes operational cashflow projections. Cash on

hand is approximately 41 days of expenses at June 30, 2021.

[No. of Days Operating Cash on Hand at June 30,2021 | 41
Operating Cash at July 1, 2020 54,769,837
Operating Revenue
Tax Credit Allowance 26,426,808
ESA Allowance 5,336,106
FES Allowance 1,481,909
Grants 765,853
Other Income 1,623,493
Net Cash Received From Revenue 35,634,169
Operating Expenses
Departmental Operating Expenses 34,189,259
Capital Expenditure 700,000
Net Cash For Operating Expenses 34,889,259
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) 744,910
Operating Cash At June 30, 2021 $5,514,747
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Step Up For Students
SCHOLARSHIP CASH FLOW 2021 Plan

Scholarship cash flow i also projected dursing the planning process. During the 2020 - 2021 iﬁhﬂd\l!ﬂr_ Step ijfnr STIJd!I'IiE will serve ipprmim.nldl\- 106,000 students betwean the FTE and Hope prograrms. To determine the amount of tolal
seholarship paymants for tha year, Step Up balanees the desire to maximize scholarship payments with the uncertainty associated with estimating the setual number of students that will take advantage of their scholarship awards and the need

o reserve evough funds to make the following year's first scholarship payment. As a saleguard to ensure sufficient scholarship cash is available; Step Up For Students maintains a 340 million §ne of eredit which can be used 1o bridge any gap
between scholarship commitments and available funds.

Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oek-20 NowZi Det-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 hpr21 May-21 Jun-21 2021 Total
[Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents $30,094 496,750 $152,083 §23,865 $E5.307 §251,293 §87,757 §130,133 $1,164 419,591 90,838 5547 533,904
Grogs Donations 59,898 57,957 B2, 758 5,055 62,619 123 848 45,008 44,998 51,080 53 &80 80,578 40727 762,805
Admintitrativs allowance {zerm) (2,999 12,579) 12,973 2,975} {2,979) [2,978] |2.878) {2,979] 12,979) 12,573) {2,979 (38, 795)
Net Donatkons 56,418 54,578 59,779 51076 65,840 120,869 42,030 42,017 28,081 50,801 87,547 17,748 727,135
Scholarship Payments . . (ise,B90) " . (185.308) - {1ELE7S] - - (178.670] (739,748]
Payments Recatved lram Sehools 36 36 513 E7 1 346 903 246 291 346 346 BEY 326 B.I55
Lire ut Credit 12,000 [10,009) -
Balance at end of month $96,750  $152,083 §23 825 $8%,307 §151,293 $57,757 $130,133 51,164 $39,561 $80.838 S647 S38,741 438,741

' SUFS mamntains a 540 milllon Ine of credit to cover any shortialls.
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Step Up For Students

The geographic region served and an analysis of the demand and unmet need for eligible students in
that area

Step Up For Students intends to continue serving Florida students statewide in any of the 67 counties in
2020-21. Step Up operates statewide and has seen a growing demand for scholarships which has been
evidenced by an increasing number of applications each year.

In 2014-15, 120,215 students started applications, and Step Up was only able to award 75,859 students
with Florida Tax Credit (FTC) scholarships before the application season closed due to overwhelming
demand. This means that 37 percent of students who tried to apply were unable to be awarded with
scholarships.

In 2015-16, 125,115 students started applications, and 5tep Up was able to award 91,575 students with
FTC scholarships before the application season closed. This resulted in a 10 percent decline from the
previous year, where only 27 percent of students that started an application were not awarded a

scholarship.

In 2016-17, 166,189 students started applications, and Step Up was only able to award 122,013 students
with FTC scholarships before the application season closed. This meant that 27 percent of students who

tried to apply were unable to receive scholarships.

In 2017-18, 179,388 students started applications, and Step Up was only able to award 121,949 students
with FTC scholarships before the application season closed. This resulted in 32 percent of students who
started an application and were not awarded with a scholarship.

In 2018-19, there were 170,063 students who started applications, and Step Up was able to fund 99,727
students with FTC scholarships. There was a wait list since 41 percent of students who started to apply
were not able to be awarded with a scholarship.

In 2019-20, Step Up is seeing unprecedented demand again. We had a change in the scholarship
applications; single application for both the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program and the Family
Empowerment Scholarship Program (FES). As of 08/27/19, there were 194,075 students who started
applications, and Step Up has been able to enroll 101,045 students in FTC and 8,586 in FES.

This data continues to demanstrate the unmet needs of eligible students statewide wha would like to
participate in the tax credit scholarship program.
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Step Up For Students
Organization Chart

Board of Directors

At August 1, 2019, 268 Fres:dent_
permanent staff worked for Doug Tuthill
Step Up For Students.
Chief External Relations Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer Chief Information Officer VP of Leadership Development
Lesley Searcy Gina Lynch Joe Pfountz Jonathan Beckham Jill LaRose
Mlgm Operations Responsibillties: Res cibiilitios: Responsibilities:
Responsibilities: Responsibilities: * Financial record keeping, « Development of customized «  Development of
+ Tax Credit fundraising = Evaluation of applications and planning & strategy application, scholarship organizational leadership
« Donor relationships scholarship awards + Donation receipt & scholarship processing, and learning exchange
+ Department of Revenue = FTC/Gardiner Schalarship payments software
coordination Operations +  Internal controls & risk + Data Security
*  Philanthropic + Customer service management

fundraising
Poli nd Publ ffair
Responsibilities:
= Research & policy development
+  Communications
* Legislative & regulatory issues
= Community relationships
Other
Responsibilities:
* |L Program Management
* Alabama Program Management

*  Process improvement

Marketing

Resgg_rﬁ_ihilit'gs:

+ Scholarship promotion & outreach

* Donor events

* Public relations

Office of Student Learning

Responsibilities:

*  Process development to
assist school with
collaborative partnerships
aimed towards student
SUCCess.

+  Treasuryand Risk

*  Purchasing

* HR

* Professional Development
= Compliance
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The Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program is offered for low-income Florida students in
grades K-12. Applications are processed in the order they are received, including all supporting
documentation. Scholarships are awarded with a priarity given to renewal families followed by
new families with the greatest financial need.

Students who qualify receive financial assistance toward either private school tuition and fees or
transportation to a public school that is not the public school the student is zoned to attend.

Eligibility/Priority Criteria:

Age Eligibility:

Students entering Kindergarten must be 5 on or before Sept. 1.
Students entering first grade must be 6 on or before Sept.1.

Income Eligibility:

s |[f the student is on the direct certification list
e |[f the student’s househaold income level does not exceed 260 percent of the federal

poverty level
e If the student ar a member of the student’s household receives SNAP, TANF or FDPIR

¢ |If the student is currently placed or during the previous fiscal year was placed in foster
care or out-of-home care

Priority:
Scholarships are awarded on a first-come, first-served basis with priority given to renewal
families followed by new families with the greatest financial need.

Priority is as follows:

= Renewal families

s New applicants with a household income that is at or under 185 percent of the federal
poverty level or who are in foster care or out-of-home care

« New applicants with a household income over 185 percent of the federal poverty level

Methodology for Evaluating Income Eligibility:

Direct Certification

Direct certification is the process by which the SFO certifies children who are members of
households receiving assistance under SNAP, based on information provided electronically by
the State/ local agency administering those programs.

Eligibility is extended to all children in a household if one member has been directly certified as
eligible under the Assistance Programs. These children are also considered directly certified.

Because of year-long duration of eligibility, households are not required to report changes in
their categorical eligibility status.
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e The Step Up For Students online application, at the time the applicant completes the
application, submits a bundle of data to the SNAP database housed at the Department
of Education, and returns a YES or NO if a student on the application is found to be in
the SNAP database.

e Applications that are directly certified as receiving SNAP do not require any additional
income validating documentation.

Receipt of SNAP, TANF or FDPIR
Demonstration of any member of the household receiving one of these benefit services from
the State of Florida.

Validating documentation is the most recent document from the SNAP, TANF or FDPIR agency
showing the names of the household members, the address and the valid date of the benefit.

Determination by income

For the 2019-20 school year income eligibility was based on total gross household income,
annualized by the frequency of receipt of the different sources of income. Income validation
may include one or more of the documents listed as Income Validation Documents on the
attached Acceptable Document Listing found at the end of this document.

Questions regarding different sources of income are listed on the application, and validating
documentation varies depending on the income source, Please see the attached Acceptable
Document Listing.

Members of the family unit are identified on the application along with the type and amount of
income for each member.

Househald income calculation are based on gross income. Gross income is defined as the full
amount of pay before taxes or other deductions and includes:

s Gross wages or salary

s Tips

s  Commissions

» |ncentives, bonuses and/or overtime that is regular and recurring

» Holiday, vacation, PTO and/or sick pay

¢ Medical, dental and/or vision benefits paid directly to the employee

¢ Perdiem pay

* Housing allowance
If the total annualized income for all adult members of the economic unit are less than or equal
to the approved income cap guidelines for a household of that size (see Eligibility chart below),
the family is considered to be income eligible. After being determined eligible, the student will
be awarded a scholarship in the priority order outlined in statute.
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Other sources of categorical income eligibility

Foster or out-of-home care
A student who is/was placed at any time in foster care or out-of-home care during the current
OR previous state fiscal year may be eligible.

A child in foster care is defined by the following:

“Foster care” means care provided a child in a foster family or boarding home, group home,
agency boarding home, child care institution, or any combination thereof, as defined by s.
39.01(30).

A child in out-of-home care placement is defined by the following:

“Out-of-home” means a placement outside of the home of the parents or a parent, as defined
by s. 39.01(55).

“Out-of-Home Care” means the placement of a child in licensed and non-licensed settings,
arranged and supervised by the department or contracted service provider, outside of the
home of the parent, as defined by DCF Rule: 65C-30.001 Definitions. (18).

These students may apply at any time during the school year and will receive a scholarship as
long as funds are available. In order to apply after the regular application processing season
closes applicants are directed to call our hotline at 877-735-7837 for assistance.

Acceptable validating documentation for these students is;

s acopy of the official state placement papers

e 3 copy of the current Foster Care license

e acopy of the court documents demonstrating placement of the child with a relative
caregiver

Additionally, children who are indicated as part of the Migrant Education Program (MEP), who
are under the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, who are identified as homeless and residing

with another household are considered to be categorically income eligible .
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Eligibility Chart: If the household income is at or below the following criteria, the student may
be eligible for a scholarship:

FTC Scholarship Income Guidelines
2019-2020 School Year

Household | Annual Maximum Gross Income for a 100%
size Scholarship
1 $ 32,474
2 & 43.966
3 $ 95,458
4 $ 66,950
o) $ 78,442
6 $ 89,934
7 $ 101,426
8 3 112,918
9 $ 124 .410
10 $ 135,902
11 $ 147,394
12 3 158,886
13 $ 170,378
Each addlional membper = 511 482
Studants must
* Guidelines
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Priority Chart: If the household income of a new student is more than the income criteria on
the chart below (185%) the student, while eligible, will be placed on a waiting list until all
renewal families and new families whose income is below the amounts listed on this chart have

received funding.

FTC Scholarship Income Guidelines
2019-2020 School Year

Housechoid Annual Maximum
) size Gross Income for
100% Scholarship
{185%)
1 b 23,107
2 $ 31,284
3 $ 39,461
4 $ 47,638
5 $ 55,815
6 $ 63,892
7 $ 72,169
8 $ 80,346
) $ 88,523
10 $ 96,700
11 $ 104,877
12 $ 113,054
13 $ 121,231

Each additianal
member +$8.177
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ACCEPTABLE DOCUMENT LISTING

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY VALIDATION DOCUMENTS

For Kindergarten;
Birth Certificate or passport showing that the student was at least five years old by September 1%

For 1% grade: 4
Birth Certificate or passport showing that the student was at least six years old by September 1%

HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION VALIDATION DOCUMENTS

ADULT MEMBERS
(Current showing the name and address of the adult)

One of the following:

Current S5I statement

Current VA statement

Current SNAP statement

Current TANF

Section 8/HUD lease

Mortgage / deed / residential lease

Pay stubs with address

Medical or health care benefit or reenroliment statement
Current homeowner or renter's insurance

Utility bill (water / electric; no more than 2 months old)
Medicaid documents

Health benefit statement

MINORS (Current showing name and address of minor)
Current SSI statement
Current SNAP statement
Current TANF
Medicaid statement
Medical or health care benefit or reenrollment statement
Public school transcripts or report card with child's name and address listed
Official court custedy documents showing child's name and custodial parent's name listed
Florida KidCare
Medical benefit statement
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INCOME VALIDATION DOCUMENTS

#1025-SEP / Separation

#1055-CW [/ Cash Wages

Adoption Benefits Verification

Current Bank Statements

Current Child Support Documentation (myfloridacounty.com print out)

Current SNAP/TANF/Food and Distribution Program on Indian Reservation statement

Personal Income Documentation for a Child in Foster Care

Housing / Clothing Allowance Verification

IRS Form 1099 for S5I OR VA OR Pension ONLY

LES (Leave & Earning Statement)

Current Pay Stubs

Current Profit and Loss Statement (Self-Employment ONLY)

551 Dependent Statement

SSI Statement

SSI Supplement Statement

Prior Year Tax Return (Self-Employment or appeal)

Tax Schedules (Self-Employment or appeal)

Unemployment Statement or Paystubs

VA Statement
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Gardiner Scholarship

The Gardiner Scholarship is available to students residing in Florida, ages 3 to 22 with the
following diagnoses:
s Anaphylaxis
e Autism Spectrum Disorder
e (Cerebral palsy
e Deaf
¢ Downsyndrome
e Dual Sensory Impaired
e High-Risk Child
o This diagnosis is specifically indicated for scholarship recipients 3-5 years old
Hospital or Homebound
e Intellectual Disability
e Muscular Dystrophy
e Phelan-McDermid syndrome
s Prader-Willi syndrome
s Rare Diseases
o As defined by the National Organization for Rare Disorders (NORD)
e Spina bifida
e Traumatic Brain Injured
s Visually Impaired
» Williams syndrome

Validation of the student’s diagnosis is required and must come from a Florida physician or
psychologist or a physician who holds an active license issued by another state or territory of
the United States, the District of Columbia or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico OR by an IEP
written in accordance with the rules of the State Board of Education or with the rules of
another state. A current IEP is required to demonstrate a dual sensory impaired or a hospital or
homebound diagnosis.

Students must be at least 3 or 4 on or before Sept 1. Students entering kindergarten must be 5
on or before Sept 1. Students entering first grade must be 6 on or before Sept 1.

Students can participate in the Gardiner Scholarship program as part of home education.
However, they cannot be enrolled in a public school or receive any other state-sponsored

scholarship (McKay Scholarship or the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship).

Policy exceptions follow Step Up For Student’'s documented exception process.
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Hope Scholarship Program

In 2018, the Florida Legislature created the Hope Scholarship Program to give public school
children in Florida relief from bullying and violence. The Hope Scholarship Program gives
parents the opportunity to transfer their child to another K-12 public school with available
capacity within the school district, receive a scholarship to transport the student to a public
school in another school district, or to request a scholarship for the student to attend an
eligible private school.

Pursuant to s. 1002.40, F.5., 2 qualifying incident must have taken place at a public K-12
educational institution, any school-related or school-sponsored program or activity, riding on
the school bus or waiting at the school bus stop. Qualifying incidents include battery;
harassment; hazing; bullying; kidnapping; physical attack; robbery; sexual offenses, harassment,
assault or battery; threat or intimidation; or fighting at school as defined by the Florida
Department of Education in accordance with s. 1006.09(6}.

Beginning in the 2018-19 school year, once a parent or child submits a report of an incident, the
school principal, or his/her designee, will provide a copy of the report to the parent and
investigate the incident. Once the investigation is complete, or within 15 days after the incident
was reported, whichever occurs first, the principal, or his/her designee, will notify the parent
about the Hope Scholarship Program, and provide the Hope Scholarship Notification Form
required for Step Up For Students to determine scholarship eligibility.

Criteria used to evaluate eligibility for the Reading Scholarship Accounts:

Step Up For Students will require an application to be submitted by a parent, along with a valid
Hope Notification Form (IEPC-HS1) that has been provided by a public school principal, or
his/her designee, after a qualifying incident is reported. Step Up For Students will verify that
the Hope Notification Form submitted is complete, and that one of the qualifying incident types
has been identified on the form.

Methodology used to evaluate eligibility for the Hope Scholarship:

Parents must complete and submit the application directly to Step Up For Students via a link
provided on the website at https://www.stepupforstudents.org/for-parents/hope/how-the-

scholarship-works/.

Pursuant to Rule 6A-6.0951, F.A.C., the application submitted by the parent must include, at a
minimum, the student’s name, student’s Florida Education Identifier (FLEID), date of birth,
gender, race, current public school district, current public school attended, grade level, parent’s
name, telephone number, mailing address and email address.

A completed Hope Notification Form (IEPC-HS1) must be submitted with the application.


https://www

Step Up For Students will confirm that this information, and supporting documentation, has
been submitted for each student, will process applications in the order they are received, and
will award scholarships on a first-come, first-served basis, pending funding availability.

Application Process Fees and Deadlines:

There are no fees to apply, and there is no application deadline established at this time.

Deadlines for Attendance Verification and Scholarship Payments:

Attendance verification will take place quarterly prior to each scholarship payment.
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Reading Scholarship Accounts

The Reading Scholarship Accounts program, administered by Step Up For Students, was created
to help public school students in third through fifth grade who struggle with reading. The
program offers parents access to education savings accounts, worth $500 each, to pay for
tuition and fees related to part-time tutoring, summer and after-school literacy programs,
instructional materials and curriculum related to reading or literacy.

* Criteria used to evaluate eligibility for the Reading Scholarship Aceounts:

Pursuant to s. 1002.411(2), F.S., contingent upon available funds, and on a first-come, first-
served basis, each student in grades 3 through 5 who is enrolled in a Florida public school is
eligible for a reading scholarship account if the student scored below a Level 3 on the grade 3 or
grade 4 statewide, standardized English Language Arts (ELA) assessment in the prior school
year.

Eligible students who are classified as English Language Learners, and who are enrolled in a
program or receiving services that are specifically designed to meet the instructional needs of
English Language Learner students, will receive priority.

Methodology used to evaluate eligibility for the Reading Scholarship Accounts:

Students complete and submit an application directly to Step Up For Students on the website at
Readingapp.sufs.org.

Through the application, Step Up For Students collects the student name and demographic
data, FLEID, grade level, and test score data required for the student to qualify under the
eligibility criteria.

As a part of the application process, student FLEIDs are sent to the Department of Education
(DOE) via an automated data exchange to determine if the student FLEID provided on the
application matches with the DOE’s public school list of students in grade 3, 4, or 5 who scored
alevel 1 or 2 on the statewide ELA assessment in grades 3 or 4 in the prior year. The
automated ping also determines whether or not a student FLEID matches with the DOE list of
English Language Learners.

All student FLEIDs that match are sent on a monthly basis to the DOE for a cross-check with
other scholarship programs, and then funded on a first-come, first-served basis, with English
Language Learners on each monthly file receiving priority for funding.

Application Process:

There are no fees to apply. The application deadline is late spring unless available funding were
to require an earlier deadline. The online application will remain open until allocated state
funds have been expended.
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Deadlines for Attendance Verification and Scholarship Payments:

Reading Scholarships are provided to public school students; therefore, the public-school
district is responsible for handling the attendance records of students. Scholarship payments
are made by Step Up For Students on a quarterly basis as reimbursement for qualifying
expenditures.
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Step Up For Students
The Application Process, Deadlines and Associated Fees

Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program

Families interested in receiving the Florida Tax Credit scholarship submit an online application
in advance of the school year. Application start dates and deadlines are established each year.

In keeping with the guiding statute, renewing families receive priority and awards are granted
on a first-come, first-served basis. The application process for renewing applicants begins prior
to that for new families. Generally, renewing families can apply beginning in October and new
families can apply beginning in January. Children in foster, out-of-home care and military
families may apply at any time during the year.

Following the submission of an online application, families may be required to submit
supporting documentation to substantiate eligibility. Step Up For Students operates under the
priority mandated in Florida statue 1002.395 using a rolling admissions-style process with
deadlines establishad based on historical trends in application voelumes and utilization rates,
and also as funding becomes scarce. At the point where funding becomes scarce, any gualified
applicants will be placed on a wait list. Wait List students can become awarded if and when
previously awarded students decline the scholarship and/or additional funding becomes
available. If funding becomes available after the application period has closed, applicants may
request an incomplete application to be reopened for processing.

Scholarship awards have an expiration date that is determined each year, and is indicated on
the award letter. Students must be enrolled in an eligible, participating school by the expiration
date, or request an extension indicating intent to enroll at a later date. Awards not utilized by
the expiration date will be expired. If funding is still available after an award is expired, a family
may request the award be reinstated with a new expiration timeframe. All requests for
reinstatement or extension are subject to the availability of funding. There is no application or

appeal fee,
The Gardiner Scholarship
Families interested in receiving the Gardiner Scholarship submit an online application once the

season opens. Application start dates and deadlines are established each year, with renewals
having priority, followed by students on the wait list from the prior year and new students.

Applications are generally available to renewing applicants in January and prior-year wait list

and new applicants in March. Applications are processed on a first-come, first-served basis.
The application period is closed as funding become scarce.
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Following submission of an online application, new families are required to submit supporting
documentation to substantiate eligibility, including the student’s age, diagnosis and residency
in the state of Florida. Once a student is found eligible, parents access the conditional eligibility
letter within the parent login area of the SUFS website. The conditional eligibility letter
describes the process that the Department of Education (DOE) uses to fund students.

On a monthly basis, Step Up For Students provided The Department of Education with a list of
conditionally eligible students. The Department of Education then cross-checks enrollment lists
for the public-school system, the McKay scholarship, the Florida Tax Credit scholarship and VPK
to ensure the student is not already being funded by one of these programs. Once the student
passes the cross-check the Department of Education will send funds to Step Up For Students for
those students that do not appear on any of the programs listed above.

The scholarship award is based on a matrix established in the following way; 1) for renewal
students the funding calculation remains the same, and defaults to a matrix that assigns the
student to a level three services, unless the student’s parent has asked the school district for a
revised matrix and it has been changed by the Florida Department of Education; 2) for new
students that do not have a matrix level of services, funding defaults to 90% of the 253 level. If
the student has a matrix level of services on file with the Florida Department of Education, due
to public school enrollment, of 254 or 255, they will be funded at 90% of that matrix level, there
are deadlines throughout the year which in turn impact funding amounts.

Funding is prorated based on the date the student is found eligible by the Scholarship Funding
Organization. The application must be received on or before August 1 and found eligible on or
before September 1st for 100% scholarship. Application must be received on or before October
1st and found eligible on or before November 1st in order to receive 75%. Application must be
received on or before January 1st and found eligible on or before February 1st for 50%.
Application must be received on or before March 1st and found eligible on or before April 1st

for 25%.

If funding is exhausted qualified applicants are placed on a wait list. Wait-listed students can
become awarded if and when previously awarded students decline the scholarship and/or
additional funding becomes available. Wait-listed students have priority over new students in
the following season.

There is no application fee for the Gardiner program.

Policy exceptions must follow the documented exception process.
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Reading Scholarship Accounts Program

Pursuant to s. 1002.411(2), F.S., contingent upon available funds, and on a first-come, first-
served basis, each student in grades 3 through 5 who is enrolled in a Florida public school is
eligible for a reading scholarship account if the student scored below a Level 3 on the grade 3 or
grade 4 statewide, standardized English Language Arts (ELA) assessment in the prior school

year.

Eligible students who are classified as English Language Learners, and who are enrolled in a
program or receiving services that are specifically designed to meet the instructional needs of
English Language Learner students, will receive priority.

Students complete and submit an application directly to Step Up For Students on the website at
Readingapp.sufs.org.

Through the application, Step Up For Students collects the student name and demographic
data, FLEID, grade level, and test score data required for the student to qualify under the
eligibility criteria.

As a part of the application process, student FLEIDs are sent to the Department of Education
(DOE) via an automated data exchange to determine if the student FLEID provided on the
application matches with the DOE's public school list of students in grade 3, 4, or 5 who scored
alevel 1 or 2 on the statewide ELA assessment in grades 3 or 4 in the prior year. The
automated ping also determines whether or not a student FLEID matches with the DOE list of
English Language Learners.

All student FLEIDs that match are sent on a monthly basis to the DOE for a cross-check with
other scholarship programs, and then funded on a first-come, first-served basis, with English
Language Learners on each monthly file receiving priority for funding.

There are no fees to apply. The application deadline is late spring unless available funding were
to require an earlier deadline. The online application will remain open until allocated state

funds have been expended.

Reading Scholarships are provided to public school students; therefore, the public-school
district is responsible for handling the attendance records of students. Scholarship payments
are made by Step Up For Students on a quarterly basis as reimbursement for qualifying
expenditures.

Hope Scholarship

Step Up For Students will require an application to be submitted by a parent, along with a valid
Hope Notification Form (IEPC-HS1) that has been provided by a public school principal, or
his/her designee, after a qualifying incident is reported. Step Up For Students will verify that
the Hope Notification Form submitted is complete, and that one of the qualifying incident types
has been identified on the form.
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Parents must complete and submit the application directly to Step Up For Students via a link
provided on the website at https://www.stepupforstudents.org/for-parents/hope/how-the-
scholarship-works/.

Pursuant to Rule 6A-6.0951, F.A.C,, the application submitted by the parent must include, at a
minimum, the student’s name, student’s Florida Education Identifier (FLEID), date of birth,
gender, race, current public school district, current public school attended, grade level, parent’s
name, telephone number, mailing address and email address.

A completed Hope Notification Form (IEPC-HS1) must be submitted with the application.

Step Up For Students will confirm that this information, and supporting documentation, has
been submitted for each student, will process applications in the order they are received, and
will award scholarships on a first-come, first-served basis, pending funding availability.

There are no fees to apply, and there is no application deadline established at this time.
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Deadlines for Attendance Verification and Scholarship Payments

For the FTC program, verification windows will accur a minimum of four times during the 2019-
20 school year. During these windows, participating schools with enrolled students submit an
attendance verification report for all students, Upon the successful submission of said report,
schools will be sent the scholarship payments for the verified students. The verification and

check issuance dates are as follows.

Policy exceptions must follow the documented exception process.

2019-2020 Florida Tax Credit Payment Distribution Schedule

Distribution |

Verification Window

Monday, August 19—
Friday, August 23 at 5 PM

Check Processing

August 26 - September 20

Checks distributed via US Mail

September 20, 2019

Distribution Il

Verification Window

Monday, October 28 —
Friday, November 1 at 5 P

Check Processing

November 4 — December 6

Checks distributed via US Mail

December 6, 2019

Distribution il

Verification Window

Monday, January 13 —
Friday, January 17 at 5 PM

Check Processing

January 20 - February 18

Checks distributed via US Mail

February 18, 2020

Distribution IV

Verification Window

Thursday March 19 -
Friday, March 27 at 5 PM

Check Processing

March 31 — May 12

Checks distributed via US Mail

May 12, 2020
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Step Up For Students
Conflicts of Interest Policy

Article 1

Purpose
The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt organization’s

(Organization) interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction ar arrangement
that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the Organization or might
result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not
replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to
nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Article IT
Definitions

1. Interested Person
Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board delegated

powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested
person.

2. Financial Interest

A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business,
investment, or family:

a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization has a
transaction or arrangement,

b. A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any entity or individual with
which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement, or

¢. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any
entity or individual with which the Organization is negotiating a transaction or
arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are
not insubstantial.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article 111, Section 2, a
person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate
governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

Article I11
Procedures

1. Duty to Disclose
In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must

disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all
material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board delegated
powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement,

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists

After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with
the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while
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the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining
board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest

a. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee
meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of,
and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a
disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction
or arrangement.

¢. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine
whether the Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous
transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of
interest.

d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under
circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall
determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or
arrangement is in the Organization’s best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair
and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to
whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

4, Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy

a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed
to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for
such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
b. If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further investigation as
warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the
member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take
appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Article IV

Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall
contain:

a, The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial
interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the
financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present,
and the governing board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in
fact existed.

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the
transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the
proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with

the proceedings.
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Article V

Compensation

a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or
indirectly, from the Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters
pertaining to that member’s compensation.

b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters
and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services 15
precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.

c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes
compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the
Organization, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information
to any committee regarding compensation.

Article VI

Annual Statements

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board
delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,

b. Has read and understands the policy,

c. Has agreed to comply with the policy, and

d. Understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax
exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-
exempt purposes.

Article VII
Periodic Reviews
To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and

does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews
shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following
subjects;

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent
survey information, and the result of arm’s length bargaining.

b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management
organizations conform to the Organization's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect
reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes
and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit
transaction.

Article VIII
Use of Outside Experts
When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article V11, the Organization may,

but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve
the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Page 36


http:matte.rs

Step Up For Students
Employee Protection - Whistleblower

Purpose
Step Up For Students, Inc, ("Organization”) requires directors, officers and employees to

observe high standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and
respansibilities. As employees and representatives of the organization, we must practice
honesty and integrity in fulfilling our responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws
and regulations.

Guidelines Reporting Responsibility
It is the responsibility of all directors, officers and employees to report ethics violations or
suspected violations in accordance with this Whistleblower Policy.

No Retaliation

No director, officer or employee who in good faith reports an ethics violation shall suffer
harassment, retaliation or adverse employment consequence. An employee who retaliates
against someone who has reported a violation in good faith is subject to discipline up to
and including termination of employment. This Whistleblower Policy is intended to
encourage and enable employees and others to raise serious concerns within the
organization prior to seeking resolution outside the organization.

Reporting Violations

The Organization has an open door policy and suggests that employees share their
questions, concerns, suggestions or complaints with someone who can address them
properly. In most cases, an employee's supervisor is in the best position to address an area
of concern. However, if you are not comfortable speaking with your supervisor or you are
not satisfied with your supervisor's response, you are encouraged to speak with anyone in
management whom you are comfortable in approaching. Supervisors and managers are
required to report suspected ethics violations to the organization's Compliance Officer, who
has specific and exclusive responsibility to investigate all reported violations. When you are
not satisfied or uncomfortable with following organization's open door policy, individuals
may contact the organization's Compliance Officer directly.

Compliance Officer

The organization's Compliance Officer is responsible for investigating and resolving all
reported complaints and allegations concerning violations and, at his/her discretion, shall
advise the President and/or the Chairman. The Compliance Step Up For Students Employee
Protection - Whistleblower Policy Officer has direct access to the board of directors and is
required to report to the board at least annually on compliance activity. The Compliance
Officer is the Chief Financial Officer.

Acting in Good Faith

Anyone filing a complaint concerning a violation or suspected violation must be acting in
good faith and have reasonable grounds for believing the information disclosed indicates a
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violation. Any allegations that prove not to be substantiated and which prove to have been
made maliciously or knowingly to be false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense.

Confidentiality

Violations or suspected violations may be submitted on a confidential basis by the
complainant or submitted anonymously. Reports of violations or suspected vieolations will e
kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate
investigation. '

Handling of Reported Violations

The Compliance Officer will notify the sender and acknowledge receipt of the reported
violation or suspected violation within five business days. All reports will be promptly
investigated and appropriate corrective action will be taken if warranted by the
investigation. Employees using and having access to these corporate assets must take
reasonable and prudent steps to preserve the integrity of the systems, data and to protect
the assets, These assets should be used primarily for purposes that benefit the
Organization and that are directly applicable to an employee's job function and authority.
Occasional personal use is acceptable provided such use does not interfere with company
business or the performance of your duties and incurs little or no cost. All communications
from the Organization or made and transmitted within the Organization shall be
professional in nature as they represent the corporation, its employees, board of directors,

and others.

Violation of policy or misuse of corporate assets is subject to disciplinary action up to and
including termination. Failure to report known violations of policy in itself constitutes a
violation of policy and is therefore subject to disciplinary action.

These policies are intended to augment existing State, Federal and copyright laws, Failure
to comply with applicable State, Federal, or copyright laws is Step Up For Students
Employee Protection - Whistleblower Policy considered a violation of policy and subject to
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Authority and Interpretation
The Organization has the legal right to revise or eliminate this policy at any given time with or

without notice.
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Stale of Florida

SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ORGANIZATION BOND

Bend No.21BSBHF7433
{Ta be Assigned by Suraty}

Know All Men By These Presents, that we____Step Up For Studen!s, [ro, Ea oo e 2
(Principal)
located a!__ﬁﬁwmmmﬁﬂm FL 32958
(Address of Principal)
as Principal and Hartferd Fire Insurance Company , a corporation of the State of Connecticut lawfully doing business in
(Surety Compary)
the State of Fiorida, as Surely, are held and firmiy bound unto an eligibla nonprofit schotarshin-funding organization,
pursuant o 1002.395 F.8. for the usa and banefit of any student whe would have had scholarships furded bul for g
diversion uf funds giving rise to the claim against this bord in the sum of $25,000,000.00 for which sum well and truly te
be pald to the sligible nonprofit scholarship-funding organization, for the use and benefit of any studen! who would have
had scholarship fundad but for the diversion of funds giving rise to the claim against the bond, said Principal and Surety
bind themselvas, thelr hairs, exacutors, adminisirators. successars, and assigns. joinlly and severally, firmly by these
presents.

Wharaas, lhe above bounded Principal, a "Scholarship Funding Organizalion,” desires lo operate its organization at the
above staled location as aulharizad by and in confarmity with the provisions of the Flanda Stalutes and all rules and
reguiations promulgated by the Department of Education thereunder, and

Whareas, said "Flonda K-20 Education Code” retuiras the filing of a 'etler of credit or a surely bond in the sum of
$25.000.000.00 {as detsrminad by the formula in section 1002.385, F.S., adjustable quartedy o equal the actual amount
of untisbursed funds based ypon submission by the organization of 8 statement from a certified public accouniant
verifying the amount of undisbursea funds) before e 'Cenificate of Authonization’ can be issued (o the arganization.

MNow, Therafore, The Condilion OF This Obligation s that if the Principal or any of its officers. aganis. o employess, shall
wall and truly parform ils obligations as sel forth under section 10072395, F S, then this obligation shal be null and void;
othenmse it shall remain in (UMl force and effect.

1 The aggregale Liability of the Surety shall not exceed the penal sum of the bond, as required by section 1002.395,
F.5., on all breachas of tne condilion of the bond by the Principal and its officers, agents, or emplayees, nor shall the
sum of the bond be considered cumulalive frum year lo year. Should lhe Principal fail with respect to any of its statutory
ohilgations under section 1002395, F.5.. as evidencad by agency aclion taken by tha Florida Department of Education,
rasulting In @ diversion, giving rise to the claim against the bond, of funds that would have been provided as schalarship
funds to student{s}, then immediately upon damand, the Surety will be obligated to pay such scholarship funds
hersunder up io the amount of such bond lo the elighle ponprofit scholarship funding organizalion,

2 The Surely shall have the nght to cancel this bond at any time by willien notice, stating when the cancellation shall
iake effect and served by reyistered mail to the Office of Independent Education and Parental Chaice at igast thirly (30)
days prior lo the data hat the cancellation becomes effective, but said Surety so filing said notice shail not be discharged
fram any liability already aceruad or incurred under this bond or which shall accrue or incur hereunder before the
expiraion of said thiny (30) day period, whether known or unknown at the time of expiration

3. Without limiting the sffact af any other provision herein which is not In conflict therewith, this bond is lo be construed
as a statutory bong under tha provision of section 1002.395, F.S,, the Florida K-20 Education Code.

Signed and sealed this 1™ day of August 2015

Allast A

%ﬂu;’ié%_x ”

-3 (Witness)

-J?-[-w{_m—--—x_ =
‘ itnass

l-fpr-,giru}' Defocion - -

Wilneﬁ&}
- :wu%sl
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Diract Inguirias/Claims to:
THE HARTFORD

POWER OF ATTORNEY o T

Hartford, Connecticut 06155
call BBE-266-3488 or fax; B60-757-5835)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: Agency Code: 21-220883

E Hartford Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the lwws of the Stals of Connecticut

E Hariford Casualty Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the s of the State of Indiana

D Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company, s corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
[___] Hariford Underwriters Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Conneeticut
EI Twin City Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

[] Hartford Insurance Company of lllinols, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the Statc of Nlinois

[ ] Hartford insurance Company of the Midwest, s corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana
:] Hartford Insurance Company of the Southeast, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Florida

having their home office in Hartford, Connecticut (hereinafter collectively referred lo as the "Companies”) do hereby make, constiluie and appoint,

up fo the amount of Unlimited ;
Ryan P. Rothrock, Tyler D. DeBord, Steve P. Farmer, Rebecca A.
Robinson, Pamela J. Thompson, M. Decker Youngman, III of DAYTONA

BEACH, Florida

their true and lawful Attomey{s)-in-Fact, each In their separate capacity if more than one Is named above, to sign its name as surety(ies) only as defineated
above by [, and lo execute, seal and acknowiedge any and all bonds, undertakings, coniracts and other written instruments in the nature thereot, on behaif
of the Companies in thelr business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranieeing the performanca of contracts and exaculing or guaranteeing bonds
and undenakings reguired or permitted In any aclions o proceedings allowed by law.

In Witness Whereof, and as authorzed by a Rasolution of the Board of Direclors of the Companies on August 1, 2009, the Companies have
caused these presents to be signed by iis Vice Presidenl and ils corporale seals lo ba herelo affixed, duly allesled by lls Assistant Secrelary. Further,
pursuant o Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies, the Companies hereby unambiguously affirm that they are and will be bound by any

mechanically appled signalures applied 1o this Power of Atlemaey.

-}

Wesley W Cowling, Asslslant Secretary M. Ross Fisher, Vice Prasident

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
} %8, Hartford
COUNTY OF HARTFORD
On this 12th day of July, 2012, before me personally came M. Ross Flzher, 1o me known, who being by me duly swom, did depose and say: thal
he resides in Ine County of Hartford, State of Connecticut; that he is the Vice President of the Companies, the corporations described In and which executed
the above instrument; that he knows the seals of the said corporations; that the seals affixed (o the said instrument are such corporale seals; that they were
s0 affixed by authority of Ihe Boards of Directors of sald cofporations and thal be signed his name therato by like authority.

YeochbansT? )ﬂw

Kathleen T. Maymard
Natery Public
My Commiceion Expirea July 31, 2016
I, the undersigned, Vice President of the Companles, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing le a true and comect copy of the Power
of Attorney executed by sald Companies, which is stlllin full force effeclive as of pugust 1, 2015
Signed and sealed at the City of Hartford,

Gary W, Slumper, Vite Presiden]

A
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Producer Compensation Notice HARTFORD

You can review and obtain information on The Hartford's
producer compensation practices at www.thehartford.com
or at 1-800-592-5717.
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- Verification Certificate
HARTFORD

This is to certify that Bond No. issued by the member company of The Hartford
subscribing this certificate, dated August 1, 2015

in the amount of Twenty-Five Million Dollars

$25,000,000.00

on behalfof Step Up For Students, Inc. , as Principal,
and il"lfﬂ‘h"Of Uf A Scholar=hip Funding Organization on behalf of The Starte of Flarida , a8 Gbligaa.
covers an indefinite term which began on August 1, 2019 . and ends with the cancellation of

said bond: that said bond is now in full force and effect and will continue in full force and effect until cancelled.

ANNIVERSARY PREMIUM PERIOD: August 1, 2019 - August 1, 2020

Signed, Sealed, and Dated May 26, 2019

Attest or Witness Surety
:%_ﬁé%ﬂb Hartferd Mire Insurance Co
By:

L LaPierre
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Direct Inquiries/Claims to!
THE HARTFORD

BOND, T-12
POWER OF ATTORNE one sl
Hartford, Connecticut 06155
d,Claim hartford.co
call: BBB-266-3488 or fax; BE0-757-5835

Agency Name: BROWN & BROWN OF FLORIDA INC

KNOW ALL.PERSDMS BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: Agency Code: 21-220889

Hartford Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut

[] Hartford Casualty Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

[:] Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
I:] Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
:] Twin City Fire Insurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

[:l Hartford Insurance Company of lllinois. a corporation duly orgamzed under the laws of the State of Hhinois

:l Hartford Insurance Company of the Midwest, & corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana
i:] Hartford Insurance Company of the Southeast, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Florida

having their home office in Hartford, Connecticut (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Companies”) do hereby make, constitute and appoint
Joelle L LaPiarre

of Lake Mary, Florida, .
its true and lawful Attorney-in-Fact, to sign ils name as surety{les) only as delineated above by , and to execute, seal and acknowledge the

following bond, undertaking, contract er written instrument;

Bond No. 21BSRHF7433

Maming Step Up For Students, Inc. as Frincipal,

and A Scholarship Funding Organization on behalf of The State of Florida as Obliges,

in the amount of See Bond Form(s) on behalf of Company in its business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performance of
contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions or proceedings allowad by law.

In Witness Whereof, and as authorized by a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies on May &, 2015 the Companies have
caused these presents to be signed by its Senior Vice President and its corporate seals to be hercto affixed, duly attested by its Assistant
Secretary, Further, pursuant to Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies, the Companies hereby unambiguously affirm that they are
and will be bound by any mechanically applied signatures applied to this Power of Altorney.

Johin Gray, Assistant Secretary M. Ross Fisher. Senlor Vice President

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
ss, Hartford

COUNTY OF HARTFORD

On thig Sth day of January, 2018, before me personally came M, Ross Fisher, to me known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and
say: thal he resides in the Counly of Harlford, State of Conneclicut; that he is the Senior Vice President of the Companies, the corporations
described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seals of the said corporations; that the seals affixed to the sald
instrument are such corporate seals; that they were so affived by authority of the Boards of Directors of said corporations and that he signed his

name thereto by like authorily,

A W }'rl.,._, A
Kathlesn T. Mayiard
Meotary Public
My Commission Expires July 31, 2021

CERTIHCATE

|, the undersigned, Assistant Vice President of the Companies, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing is a true and carrect
copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which is still in full force effective as of May 26, 2013,
Signed and sealed at the City of Hartford.
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IRS e-file Signature Authorization OME No, 1545-1878
rom 8879-EQ for an Exempt Organization
For calandir yaar 2017, or fincal yoar bognining _-IIJL 1 V017, and anding. JUN 30 - .-zni 2017
e P Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.
nbormnl Apwerivg Servios B Go to vawwira.gov/FormBSTOEQ for the latest infarmation,
Hama of ex=mpt organizaton Employer |dentification numbear

STEP UF FOR STUDBNTS INC. | 53-3643371

Mame 2nd Litle of off cer
JOE PPOUNTE

CFQ
[Partl | Type of Return and Return information Whole Dollars Cnly)

Check the box for tha retum for which you are using this Form 8878-E0 and anter the apr appliczble amaount, If any, from the retum. If you check the box
on lne 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 8, below, ahd the amount on that ine for the retum belng fiked with this form was hiank, then leave fine 1b, Zb, 3b, 4k, or 5h,
whichever is applicable, blank {dc not enter -0+, But, i you entered -0 on the retum, then enter <0+ on the spplicat!s line below, Do net comolete more

than | linein Part |
ia Form 980 checkhera E b Total revenua, if any (Form 980, Part VI, colurrn (4), ine 12)
2a Form 990-EZ chack hare B 1:' b Total revenue, if any (Form 880-EE, fne®y

3a Form1120P0Lcheckhere B+ || b Totaltax (Form 1120POL, fine 22)
4a Form930-PF checkhere Dl b Tex based on investment income (Form OS0-PF, Part W, fina §) ...

Sa Form 8368 checkhere %[ ] b Balance Due (Form 8868, line 3c) 5

707, 6F1, 184,

ib
2b
3b
db
5h

[Partl! | Declaration and Signature Autharization of Officer

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above crganization and that | have examined a copy of the crganization's 2017
slectranic retum and accompanying schedules and statements and fo the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, corect, and complets. |
further dectare that the amount in Parl | above s the amount shown on the copy of the organization’s electronic retumn. | consent to allow my
intermeciate service provider, transmitier, or electrenic retum originator (ERQ) to send the organization’s return ta the IRS and 1o raceive from the IRS
(a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reasen for relection af the transmission, (b} the reason for any delay in processing the retum orrefund, and (c)
the date of any refund. If 2applicable, | authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an clectronic funds withdrawal (direct
detit] entry Lo the inanc/al institution account indicated in the tax preparation softwara for payment of the organization’s federal taxes owed on this
return, and the financial institution to deblt the entry o this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at
1-ABA-353-4537 no later than 2 business days pricr to the payment (settiement) date. | alse author~e the financial institutions involved In the
processing of tha electronic paymont of taxes to receive conlidential information necessary to answar nguines and resolve issues refated to the
payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN] as my signature for the organization’s elecironic ratum and, if applicatle, the

organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal,

Officer's PIN: check one box only

toentermy PIN[__ 49371 |

(2 11 authorize RSM US LLE ) = -
ERQ firm name Emtar five numbers, but
do nat entar ail zeros

as my signature on the organization's tax yeasr 2017 slectronically fited return. If | have indicated within this retum that 2 copy of ihe ratum
is belng filed with a state agency{les) regulating chavities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | aiso autherlze the aforomentioned ERC 1o

enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent gcrean.

(] As an officer of the organization, | will enter my PIN 38 my signature on the organization's tax year 2017 aleclronically filed retum. If | have
indicated within this retum that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charties as part of the IRS Fad/State

program, | will enter my FIN on the retum's disclosure consent screen.
Officer's signature > - TSLE] |1¥®

[Part W] Cerhilication and Authenticafion
ERO’s EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing nentiﬂcaﬁon
number (EFIN faliowed by your five-digit sell-selocted PIN.

| 50888594016 |
Do aot enter ali zeros

| certify tha! the above numeric entry is my PIN, which iz my sigrature oa the 2017 electronically fled return for the ooganization mdicates above. |
coniirm it | am submritting this return in accorcance with the reguirements =f Pub. 4163, Modernized e-Filz (MeF) '™ormation for Authorized RS

e-flle Providers for Businoss Relums.

ERD's signalure b= Date o

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form BB79-EQ (2017)

723051 10:11-17
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STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.
4655 SALISBURY ROAD NO. 400
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
INTERMAL REVENUE SERVICE CENTER
OGDENM, UT 84201-0027
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o 990

** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 627, or 4847(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (axcept private foundations)

b Do not enter soclal security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

QB No, 1845-0047

Depariment af the Tressury
inzornal Favenus Sevice = Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2017 calendar year, or tax year beginnlng JUL 1, 2017 and ending JUN 30, 2018
B gﬁmﬁh C Name of organization D Employer identification number
[J4%5%° | ster ue POR STUDENTS, INC,
(%% | Doinabusinessas  FLORIDA PARENT NETWORK 59-3649371
(%% | Number and strest (or P.0. box if mailis not delivered lo street address) [Roomssuite | E Telephone number
[ Jrrsl, | 4655 SALISBURY ROAD oo 504-352-2246
wed City or town, state or provines, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code | G Gross recaipts § 707,561 3184
[ Japensed| gacksowviiim, PL 32256 Hia) 18 this 3 group retum
[Jfe¥=" ¢ Name and address of principal officerJOE PFOUNTZ i for subordinates? [ _lves [XIno
= " |EAME A8 € ABOVE | Hib) arm nt sutrorcinmtes st Yes No
| Taxewsmptstatus: ¥  501e)(d) ) S0{e){ )= (insert no.) | 4947(a) 1) or | 527 If *No," attach a list. (sea instructions)
J Website; p WWW, STEFUPFORSTUDENTS , ORG | Hic) Groug exemption number b
Trust Assocaton Other - | L Year of formation: 2000 | p State of Izgal demiciie: FL

K Form ol organizaton: | % Carporation
rmﬂ_ﬁmmary

1 Briefly describe the aorganization’s mission or most significant activities: STEP UP FOR STUDENTS EMPOWERS

?h.ﬂ‘..'EHTE TO F‘UREUE AND EHQAGE IN THE MOST APPROFRIATE LEARNING

3
=
(gi 2 C-hsd:ﬂ'ﬂubm h __if the organization diseontinued its operations or dispesed of more than 25% of it nat assets,
| 3 Number of voting members of the governing bady (PartVi, bne ia) e — _—
,,! 4 Number of independent vating members of the governing body (Part Vi, linet) . 4 s 8
@ | 5 Total number of individuals empioyed in calendar year 2017 (PartV, ine2a) _ ... ... . .. .. £ - s
S | & Total number of volunteers (estimate fnecessany) . ... 1057
g 7 a Total unrefated business revenue from Part Vill, column (C), Bfne12 .. i a,
b Netunrelated busiress taxable income from Form @80T, Ine 34 ., i . E 5 P
. | Prior Year Current Year
| 8 Contributions end grants (Part VIIL fne Thi i il ntud 705,681,555,
9 Program service ravenue (Part Vill, line 2g) i a, 976,220,
§ 10 Investment income {Part VIII, cnlunm[ﬂ&,has&-ﬂf Bnd?d:l ly 388,173, S 9!‘9 419,
| 41 Other revenue (Part Vill, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 8¢, 10c, and 118) | — 339, —a 930,
! 42 Total revenue - add lines B throush 11 (must equal Part VI, column ’ﬁ..l]ne 12} ....... = 533,633 596, 707 661,184,
13 Grants and similar amounts pald (Part IX, column (Ah ines 1-3) L | 548,456 006, 650,975,063,
14 Bensfits pald to or for members (Part X, column (&), Ined) 0. 0
15 Salaries, cther compensation, employes benafits (Part IX, column (A), lines 50) 14,110,116, 15,837,052
18a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), finedte) ! a. v o.
| b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), ine 25) b~ 2,442,330, | >
| 17 Other expenses (Part DX celumn (4], Unes 11a-11d, 11246} ,I 5,466,829, 1,687 602,
18 Total expenses. Addﬁmsmw{muslaquaimvﬂmhmw,rheﬂﬁ} 568,032,553, 674,603 917,
19 Revenue less expenses, Subtractling 1B from Bne 12 e e -34,399 357 33 057,267,
53| Beginning of Gurrent Year End of Year
W 20 Totalassets(Part X, Me 18) 518,562 306, 589,394 333,
|E1 Total lablites (Part 3, e 28) et 37,343 346, 75,630 706,
MNet assets or fund balances. Subtractine 21 from in@ 20 .. .. .. 480, 6db,360. 513,703,627,

| Signature Block

rF'—n

Under penalties of perjury, | deciare that | have examined this refurn, inciuding accompanying schedules and statements, and o the best of my knowledge and bediaf, it iz

frue, cur'w.anﬂ gomplete. Declaration l:ﬂa:ruE

{nlhu' than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has anyh'lm’sedge

lﬂjl‘[j

Sign
Here ’ JOE PFOUNTZ, CFO
} Wm ''''' =
PrinifType DJ’EH!!BFS name ! Preparer’s signature ﬁu,/ﬂ Motk I. -yt e
Pali  |rHERESA A, BURDINE, CPA | 1"“"3*"20"5 I:ﬂmmu ;00362629
Preparer |Fimysname 5, RSM U5 LLP o Fim'sEilly.  42-0714325
Use Only ,rﬂ-|11g;d|:}mss’r 7351 OFFICE PARK PL
MELBOURNE, PL 325‘40 Phonenp.321-751-6200
May the IRS discuss this return M‘ththamﬂrsrshmm above? ses instructions; ST g T A e X Yes No
LHA Feor Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the soparate insh-m:ﬂum. Form 990 (2017

TENOO0T 11-28-17

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION
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Form 890 (2017) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 591649371 Page 2
atemem of Program Service Accomplishments —

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Ul ..o ccis e i [x]

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS EMPOWERS PARENTS TO PURSUE AND ENGAGE IN THE MOST

APPROPRIATE LEARNING OPTIONS FPOR THEIR CHILDRENM WITH AN EMPHASIS ON
FAMILIES WHO LACK THE FINANCIAL RESOURCES TO ACCESS THESE OPTIONS, BY
PURSUING THIS MISSION, WE HELP PUBLIC EDUCATION FULFILL THE PROMISE OF

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 890 o 980-E27 . .. SR -3 \ 3 M [

If *¥es," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? [ Ives [X Ino
If "Yes " describe these changes on Schedule O,

4  Describe the :m;im'zamn's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest prcr'gram services, as maasured by expenses.
Section 501{c)(3) and 501{c){4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported,

da  (Codu } [Exponses 3 648,098, 857. including grania ot s 641,591,249, ) (Roveruas )
FLORIDA TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM:

THIS PAST SCHOOL YEAR, 106,548 UNDERPRIVILEGED STUDENTS ATTENDED 1,818
PRIVATE SCHOOLS ONM A STEP UP FOR STUDENTS SCHOLARSEIP, THE SCHOLARSHIP
PROGRAM WAS CREATED TO HELP ALLEVIATE THE ENORMOUS EDUCATIONAL
CHALLENGES FACED BY CHILDREN WHO LIVE IN POVERTY, THE SCHOLARSHIP GIVES
PARENTS WITH LIMITED FINANCIAL MEANS THE FREEDOM TO CHOOSE THE SCHOOL
THAT BEST MEETS THEIR CHILDREN'S LEARNING NEEDS FROM KINDERGARTEN
THROUGH 12TH GRADE, IT IS THE LARGEST SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM DF THIS
NATURE IN THE UNITED STATES.

FOR THE 201F-19 SCHOOL YEAR, APPROVED STUDENTS COULD CHUOSE BRETWEEN
SCHOLARSHIPS WORTH UBP TO §7, 111 FOR PRIVATE SCHOOL TUITION AND FEES OR
4b  (Cade ) [Expanses § 9,926,404,  pnehuding grants of § 3,387,814, ) fRevenua s |
ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM:
THE ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND (ALCSF) IS A SCHOLARSHIP
GRANTING ORGANIZATION FORMED TO IMPLEMENT THE ALABAMA ACOURTABILITY
ACT, ALOSF AWARDS SCHOLARSHIPS TO ELIGIBLE LOW-INCOME STUDENTS WITH
PRIORITY GIVEN TO CHILDREN WHO ARE ZONED TO ATTEMD A PFAILING PUBLIC
SCHOOL, THE SCHOLARSHIPS PAY FOR PRIVATE SCHOOL TUITION OR TRANSFER
FEES TO A MON-FAILING PUBLIC SCHOOL., TEE FIRST SCHOLARSHIPS WERE
GRANTED POR THE SEMESTER STARTING JANUARY 2014, ALOSF HAS AWARDED
NEARLY 9, 300 SCHOLARSHIPS OVER 4 YEARS REPRESENTING 45 OF THE 67
COUNTIES IN ALABAMA, THE SCHOLARSHIPS ARE FUNDED BY DONATIONS OF
INCOME TAX LIABILITY FROM INDIVIDUALS AND CORPORATIOMNS WHO RECEIVE AN
ALABAMA STATE INCOME TAX CREDIT,
dc  (Cosm ) (Espanses g 3,565,575, incluing grants of § ) (Revenues )
RESEARCH ON STUDENT OUTCOME:
EACH TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP IS INTENWDED TO PROVIDE A LOW-INCOME OR
WORKING-CLASS STUDENT IN FLORIDA WITH A VIABLE LEARNING OFTICH THAT CAN
MAKE A DIFFERENCE IN HIS OR HER EDUCATIONAL LIFE., TOWARD THAT
OBJECTIVE, STEP UP IS BUILDING TOOLS TO ASSEEE ACADEMIC PROGRESS IN A
ROBUST WAY. THE STATE ALREADY COLLECTS STANDARDIRED TEST SCORES EVERY
YEAR FOR ALL STUDENTS IN GEADES 3-10 AND IN ITS MOST RECENT REPORT
DETERMINED THAT SCHOLARSHIP STUDEMTS ACHIEVED THE SAME ACADEMIC GAINS
IN READING ARND MATH AS STUDENTS OF ALL INCOME LEVELS WATIOMALLY, STEFP
UP Is GOING FURTHER. IT HAS COMPLETED A DATA WAREHCUSE THAT PULLS
TOGETHER STUDENT ACADEMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION ACROSS 16 YEARS,
FURTHER , STEP UF HAS INVITED RESEARCH ORGANIZATIONS TO MINE STUDENT
4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
[Expansas & 6,644,817, mewding grants of § ) {Revenue § 280,210,
de  Total program service expenses e 668,235,653,

Form 990 (2017
SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION{S)
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Form 990 (2017) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3645171 Page 3
mhackﬁst of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Isthe organization descnbed in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a){1) (other than a private foundation)?
I "Yes,* complate SCREAUIB A | e e et S 1| X
2 Iz the arganization required to complete Schedule B, Schedula of Gcmﬁhurm ______________________________________________________________ 2 | x
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities an behalf of or in cpposition to candidates for
public office? if "Yes,* complete Schedule ©, Part ! | . e e et s 3 x
4 Sectlon 501{c){3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501{h) election in effect
during the tax year? If "Yas, " compiste Schedule G, Partll I 1
5 |5 the arganization a section 507 (c)(4), S01{e)(5). or EUT{::J[B} organ Lzatpan !hat receives membarshlp duas assessments or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-187 If 'Ves,” complete Schedule C, Part il .1 5 b
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for whsch donors hava tha nght tu
provide advice on the disliibolion or iieestioent of an |u:.r||l.'s iy swch fureds or aceounts? F “Yes, " complete Schedule O, FParl | B K
7 [hd the organization receive or hold a conzervation easement, including easements (o preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If *Yes," complete Scheduwle O, Partyl 7 X
& Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes, " complete
Schedule D, Part ity . g X
9 Did the organization report an amoum: In Pan ?: Hne 21 Tur BECIOW OF Cusmdiak accnunt [ubdny, Serve as a custodlan for
amourts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or dabt negotiation services?
B, OO e B B P N e et e ] X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a re1ated nrganrzatlnn hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanenl
endowments, or quaskendowments? If "Yes," complate Schedufe D, Part V| o ) 4
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then cumplate Echadule D Farts w UII Vlll |x or X
as applicable,
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and eguipment in Part X, line 107 /f "Yes,* complete Schedule O,
L A s R Y o g O s U S s e (e O S 1ia| £
b Did the Brgamzatu:m rapclr't an amnunt fnr nvestmams mhar secmilles in F'aﬂ J( Hna 1 2 tha't is 5% or more of its total
assels reported in Part X, line 167 /f “Yes,* complete Schedule D, Part VIl || i 11b ¥
¢ [id the organization report an amount for investmants - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f "Yes," complete Schedule O, Fart VI v | MG X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Pat X, ine 15 tha! is 5% or mana ul‘ rts tntal assets rapnrted h1
Part X, line 167 If “Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part X e e o | 11d ] ®
e Did the organization report an amount for other I‘iabifbas in Part ¥, line 257 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PantX | 11e kS
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnota that wdressas
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)7 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X = |11 X
12a Did the orpanization obtain separate, independent audited financial statemants for the lax year? If "Yes, " complete
Schedule D, Parts XTANGUKIL | i irsessssrnsasess s est e e o2 451 e odm et S5 e A S ket e e 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, ind anandr:mt audited financial statements for the tax year?
If *Yes," and if the organization answeraed "No™ to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xf and X/l is optional 12 | X
13 Is the organization a scheol described in section 170{DN1)ANIN? If "Yes, " complete Schedufe e |13 i
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents cutside of the United States? 1da 4
b Did the organization have aggregate revenies or sxpenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
ormoie? I "yes," complete Schedie R, PartS TAMD IV . s siissns srins s sidbess oo emiad s ossa brsdaboi sl ot il e sasa s 14b X
15 Did the arganization report on Part X, column (4), line 3, more 1han $5,000 of grants ar other asslstance to or for any
loreign arganization? If "Yes, " complate Scheduls F Parts N and IV 15 x
16 Did the organization report on Part X, column (A), line 3, more than §5,000 of aggregate grants or othar assmlance to
or for foreign individuals? If *Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partsilland IV ||| e s, 16 i
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Parl 1%
column (A), lnes & and 11e? If "Yes, " complete Schedule G, Partf . X
i8 Did the arganization report more than $15.000 total of fundraising Event gross income and n:unmbuhons on Paﬂ ‘ﬂll Imes
1cand Ba7 If Yes, " complete Schadule G, Part Il e —————— 18 %
19  Did the organization repert more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VI, line 8a7 If *Yes, "
compiste Schedule G, Partill ... ... e G Al b S Ao T 1 s T 19 X
Form 990 (2017
732003 11-28-17
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Form 990 {2017} STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 55-3645371 Page 4
| Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital faciities? If "Yes,” complete Schedule H PREP Ao P |- 1 2
b If “yes® to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this reh..lm'? R - - |
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic gavernment on Part X, column (&), line 17 /f "Yes,* complete Schedule /, Parts land it 21 x
22 Did the organization report more than 55,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part [X, column (&), line 27 If "Yes, " complete Schedule |, Parts fand Il AT e |22 x

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part V|, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about cumpﬂnsafm of the nrganlzstmn s current
and formar officers, directors, trustess, key employeas, and highest compensated employees? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule J ... . |28 ]| X

24a Did 1!'1& omgamzatmn ha\ra a tax—axempt h-nnd issug w.rth an ol.!tstandmg pnnclpeJ amnunt Df' more ﬂ'-an 51 Dﬂ 00{] as ui ih&
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes," answer fi nes 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "No", go to line 25a P - X

b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
c [id the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exempt bonds? R RO eacll Lr', .
d Did the organization act as an "on bshz]f m" issuar furbnndsoutstandmg at any hms dunng th& }'Eaf? BLP RO LR oty [, {1
25a Section 501[c)(3], 501 c)4), and 501(c){29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excass benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complote Schedule L, Part/ 25a £

b Isthe organization aware that it engaged in an excess benehit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 980 or 890-E27 If *Yas, " complete
e L B v s s D e e e e e S e 25b x

26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for recelvables from or payables to any current or
former officers, directars, trusteas, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? If "Yes,*
Eiripleie S P e 8 st el L e e | 26 x

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee. substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, of te a8 35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? If “Yas, " complete Schedule L, Part Il aT X

28 Was the organization 2 party to a business transaction with one of the Iuiuwlng partlus {ssa Suhadule L Fart I'u'
instructions tor applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and axceptions):

a A cument or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f “Yes," complete Schedule L, PtV | 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? if "Ves, " complete Schedule L, Part IV 28b X
¢ Anentity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee {(or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If “Yes, " complete Schedula L, Part IV 28c
29 [id the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes, * complete Schedufen 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other simifar assets, or qualified congervation
contributions? Jf "Yes." complete Schedwle M P T T T TERRMPRNY 11, X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dlssuhfe and cease opmtlons?
s, mermpiel i SeREERE NI i e s S L N X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or ransfer more than 25% of its net assels?if "Yes, " complete
Schedufe N, Part i T T el i~ X
33 Did the organization own 1Uﬂ% Df an en‘T:lh.r dlsrsgﬂldﬁd as saparate from iha urganlzallun unda'-r Fiegula'huns
sactions 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If "Yes.” complete Schedule B, Part | il X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Fart Il, i, or IV, and
A e N T o L R s B e b 3 £
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within thB I'HEBHII'IQ DT Saﬂlﬂ'n 512{*:}(13!? .................................................... o |38a) X
b If "Yas" to line 35a, did the organization recelve any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)7 If “Yes." complete Schedule A, Part V. ine 2 e —— 35h #
36 Section 501(c)(2) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If 'Yes,” complete Schedufe R, Part V, line 2 et 108 X
37 Did the organization conduct maore than 5% ul its aetmtpes thn‘.lug‘h an Br‘:t:rhr that is nut a ralataci orgamzatmn
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If *Yes," complete Schedule R, Patv | a7 X
38  Did the organization complete Schedule © and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197
Note. All Form 990 filers are required tocomplete Schedule O o, | 38 ] X
Form 990 (2017)
32004 19-28-17
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F0rrn gga 017) STEP UF FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3645371 Page §
tatements Regarding Other IRS Fllmgs and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPgty [
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0-if not applicable . | 1a 437
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter-0- if not applicable . . 1b 0
¢ [Did the orgenization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
{gambling} winnings to prize winners? ... ... Ve S i ey jc | X
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmlttal of Wage and Tax S'Iatements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this retum 2a 232
b If at least one is reported on line 23, did the organization file all required federal arnp1oymam tax raturns? _____________________________ 2h | X
Note, If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-fife (see instructions) 5
3a Did the organization have unrelated busness gross income of $1.000 or more during the year? Ja X
b If *Yes," has it filed a Form 980-T for this -_-,aear‘? If “No," to lne 3b, provide an explanation in SchedweC 32b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other mantp ovar, a
financial account in a forgign country (sueh as a bank account, securities account, or other financial aceounty? 4a X
b I "Yes." enter the name of the foreign country; B
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Sa Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? SR Sa
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? Sh X
¢ If "Yes," to line S5a or Sb, did the organization file Farm 8886 T e, .. 15e
Ba Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the nrgamzattﬂn solnmt
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? Ga &
b if "Yes," did the organization include with every sclicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
T D e s s Ty Gy
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in axcess of $75 made partly as & contribution and partly for goods and services provided 1o the payor? | 7a -4
b I "Yes, " did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . L1 T
¢ [Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
Yol FonmBERET. oy R e e S e e e S T St g s TC X
d If ¥es,” indicate the number of Forms B282 filed during the year i L T7d l
e [3d the organization recaive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contrast? Te X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? i X
g I the arganization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form B899 as !eqmrad'? ._1'3
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, aiplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1088-C? | Th | X
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? Rt e B
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distnbution 10 a doner, donor adviser, or related pemon‘? b
10  Section 501(c)(T) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, fine 12 e R T [,
b Gross receipts, included on Form 980, Part Vill, line 12, for public use Uf ciub i‘acllmes e [+ i -
11 Section 501(c){ 12} organizations. Enfer:
a Grossincome frommembers orshareholders . i 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other scurces against
amounts due orreceived fromthemu) | i e e e eranes 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. [s the organization filing Form 890 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year LS 1Zh
13 Section 501(c){29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? .. v | 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional nfermation the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
arganization is licensed to issue qualified health PIaNE et e 13b
© Enterthe amount of reservesonhand sissssice A0
14a Did the organization receive any pa:.rments for mdﬂor tanmng sServices durrlg the tax year'? e e 14a X
b _If "Yes.* has it filed a Form 720 to repoit these payments? If "No, * provide an explanation in Suhedul'e O _______ TR 14b
Form 990 (2017)
732005 11-28-17
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Form 990 {(2017) STEE UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page B

art Governance, Management, and Dlsdnsura Foreach “Yes" response to lings 2 through 7b below, and for a *No® response
to line 8a, &b, or 10k below, describe the circumstances, processes, ar changes in Schedule O, See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part WVl R L e e _IIJ_
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voling members of the governing body atthe end of thetax year ia B
It there are material differences in voling rights among members of the governing body, or it the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committes or similar commities, explain in Scheduls 0.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent .. ib
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, of Kay 8MPIOYBET i et e m e b et s e b ee e 2 X
3 [id the organization delegate control over managemeant duties customarily performed by or under the direct supearvision
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employeas ta é management company or other person? . 3 i
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its goveming documents since the prior Form 880 was filed? q X
§ Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have membars or stockholders? SR 2] X
Ta Did the arganization have members, stockholders, or other parsnns whc had me powsr to elact or ﬂppmnl one or
O e Ol I B DO . o e e L e i b A bbb e bt L I B - X
b Are any govemance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
paisona othar than the govemng DOOW? i R R R R e L b e b £
g Did the organization contemparangously document the meetings hetd or written actions undertaken during the year hyr the following:
a The goveming body? | e e S S S e e S S e e Ba | X
b Each committes with aulhuntyto acl on behalf of the goveming body? i BRI
8  |s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VIl, Section A, whn cannnt be reauhed at :ha
organization's mailing address? If “Ves * provide the names and addressesin Schedule © . oo ] X
Section B. Policles This Section 8 requests information about policies not required by the internal Revenue Code)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, oraffiliates? | . s . | 102 X
b if "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures goveming the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? | 10k

11a Has the crganization provided a complete copy of this Form 580 to all members of its govemning body beiore hhng me 1nrrn? iia] %
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 980.

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy?/f "Na,"gotoline 13 L |12a) X
b Were officers, direclors, or frustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interesis that could giveriseto conflicts? | 12b| X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently moniter and enforce compliance with the poficy? If "Yes, " describe

I Schecilea G hOW TRIS WASTIOME . . i ar st san o esais femboa s Smte ed e s s Smh sk AR b e et 12 | X

13 Did tha organization have a written whistleblower poicy? . 3| %

14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent

persons, comparabllity data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the defiberation and decision?
X

a The organization's CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official 155
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . ) 156 | X
If *Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schodule D {sae mstrur:tu::ns}
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute agsets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with

taxable entity dunng the year? . ... s 1182 X
b It "Yes," did the organization follow a wnttan pnhcy or pmcedura mquinng the o:vgamzallon tu ava.luatn ﬂs panlmpaﬂcn
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps 1o safeguard the crganization's
exempt status with regpect to such armangements? . e e b e LT B e e e e B U
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 Is required 1o be filed PAK AR CA CO CT FL DC GA HI,IL K8 KY
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 930, and 990-T (Section 501{c)(3)s only) avarable
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website |:[ Another's website EI Upon request I:l Other fexplain in Scheduwie O}
18 Describe in Schedule © whether (and if so, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the parson who possesses the organization's books and records: -
JOE PFOUNTZ - 904-352-224¢6
4555 SALISEURY RD, SUITE 400, JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256
722008 11.28-17 SEE SCHEDULE O FOR FULL LIST OF STATES Form 980 (2017)
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Form 890 (2017) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS K INC, £9-3649371 Page 7
[Part VIl[ Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lina in this Part Vil LT E eI e R T e T e o e s El

Section A. _Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated En'plo_yus
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardiess of amount of compensation,

Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compansatlon was paid,
@ List all of the mg&n:zahm's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employes.”

® |ist {he organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officar, director, trustee, or key employes) who received report-
able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 108%-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations,
® List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employeas who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than 510,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 3
List persens in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees: officers; key employees; highest compensated employees:
and former such parsons,
|___| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A} (8) ic) o) (E) (F)
Name and Title LT T U L, Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | bes, unless person 18 Both an compensation compensation amount of
week gl s 3 it e from from related othar
{list amy g the ocrganizations compensation
hours for | . § organization (W-2/1098-MISC) from tha
refated | 2 E g (W-2/1088-MIST) organization
organizations| 2 3 g g and related
below 32 & % %g & organizations
ey |E|2 |2 |5 |86 2
{1} JOHN EKIRTLEY 2.00
CHAIRMAM, SUFS/DIRECTOR, A % 0. 0. o,
{2} ALISON HERTOG 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS % a. 0. a.
{3) ALFRED "AL" LAWSON 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS x 0. 0. a,
[{4) RICHEARD DUTRAM 2,00
DIRECTOR, SUFS £ 0, 0. o,
{5) PAUL SHERMAN 2,00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(&) CURTIS STOKES 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. B, o,
{7} TERRY JOVE 2.00
DIRBCTOR, SUPS X 0. 0. ;
(8) JOHN LEGG 2,00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0., 0. 0,
{8) DOUG TUTHILL 40,00
PRESIDENT, SUFS X 282, 023, 0, 26,153,
{10} ANNE WHITE 40,00
CoO, SUFS X 160,343, 0. 21,015,
{11} JOE PFOUNTE 40.00 3
TREAS & CFO, SUPS X 188 BHL. 0. 21, 321,
{12} SCOTT MASSEY 40,00
CI0, SUFS X 152,703, 0, 29,364,
{13) ALISSA RANDALL 40,00
VP MARKETING & EVENTS, SUFS S 152,272, 0. 14,786,
{14) JOMATHAN BECKHAM 40.00
VP INMOVATION X 134,623, o, 28,516,
{15) CAROL THOMAS 40,00
VP STUDENT LEARNING X 13,959, 0. 21,532,
{16) GIMA LYNCH 40,00
VP OPERATIONS x 131,460, 0. 1% 721,
732007 11:28-17 Form 990 (2017)
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Form 590 (2017} STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 580-3643371 Page 8

| Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employess (continued)

(A) (B} ic) (D) (E) {F)
Name and title Aversgy: | Fostion . Reportable Reportable Estimated
ROUFS PEF | kow, unfess parson i beth an compensation cormpensation amount of
weak abficor and & direstor rustes) from from related other
(istany | & the organizations compensation
hours for E 5 organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related ¥ g g (W-21099-MISC) arganization
arganizations| 2 a 1 E and related
below k- 2 2 |28 erganizations
BB o i s e R e b e > 1,338,363, 0. 182,408.
¢ Total from continuation sheets m Part Vil, SectionpA > a. 0. 0.
d Total{addlines 1bamd 16 ... it imcsians i ies i peens srrees B 1,338 263, 0. 182 408,
2 Total number of individuals {including but not limited to those listed above) who received mare than $100.000 of reportable
compensation from the organization - 19
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes,™ complate Schadule J for sueh individusl e e i e o e T S e ] X
4 For any individual listed on line 1z, is the sum of raportable cumpanﬁahnrn and uihar cemanaatmn from 1h& nrganlzﬂtloﬂ
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f *Yes," complete Schedule J for such individua! 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or nndruudual for services
rendered to the organization? If "Yes, " complete Schadule J for SUGR PErEON s i 5 A

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent centractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the grganization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

B
Mame and business address Descﬁpti::'\ l:!.tf services qupfﬁ}satimm
PREMIKATI, INC. 310 N, ALABAMAR ST, STE
200, INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204 SOFTWARE SERVICES 360,993,
TADS, 110 W. STH ST, 2ZND FLOOR,
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55403 PPPLICATION PROCESSING 274,485,
CUTHBERTSON & ASSOCIATES, 9802 BAYMEADOWS
RD, STE 12 #200, JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256 COMSULTING SERVICES 357,701,
EPIC SOFTWARE CORPORATION
1975 MILKY WAY, VERONA, WI 53593 EOFTWARE SERVICES 227, 442,
ARIBA, INC,
PO BOX 642562, PITTSBURGH, PA 15264 POFTWARE SERVICES 214 260,
2  Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
£100,000 of compensation from the organization P 14

Form 990 2017)

732008 11.28-17
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Form 950 (2017} STEF UF FOR STUDENTS, INC. 56-3649371 paggg
| %art ?!ll Statement of Hevenue
Chack il Schedule O contains a response ornoteto any fineinthis Part VIl . i, -
Total revenue Rala{Ea}d or Unr[;gted Fh;verrutL echﬁﬂsﬁ
exempt function business tll.':lrls
revenue rEvEnUe 5&
g-g 1 a Federated campaigns ... ... 1a
5 g b Membershipdues  |1b
m‘g ¢ Fundraisingevents . ... |1¢
gi d Refated organizations 1d
g% e Govenment grants (contributions) | 1e
% 5 Al other contributions, gifts, grants, and
Eg similar amountz not included above 11 ?35 681,555,
E'ﬂ g Hongash contributions mehuded m linss Ja-11 3 *
O8] n Total Addlines 1a-1f ... p | 705 681 555,
usiness Co
& 2 a SERVICE CONTRACT 561000 Ti& 720. 718, 7340,
'50 b ADVOCACY & CIVIC ENGAG 900088 257,500 257,500,
wy E c
EZl «
a2
o f Al other program service revenues
g Total. Add lines 2a-2F . ... N 976,220,
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) . 929,419, 993,418,
4 Income from investment |:|1I tax -exampt bonl:l pmmedt B
Bl PSYRIEELL s s b el e e R >
{i) Real (il) Parsanal
6 a Grossrents ’
b Less: rental expenses
¢ Rental income or (loss)
d Netrental income or I988) ... -
7 a Grossamount from sales of | () Securities fii) Other
assets other than inventory
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses
c Gainorloss) ... ...
o Mot R ORTIOEE) . i timtiiia b i e i st te |
@ | 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
g inckiding $ of
é contributions reported on line 1¢). See
5 Part IV, line 18 . a
g b Less: direct expenses b
¢ Met mcome or (loss) from fmdralslng events .
9 a Gross income from gaming activities, See
PatViioeis ..
b Less: direct expanses b
¢ Metincome or {loss) from gammg acmmes ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, | &
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less relums
andallowances . ... a
b Less: cost of goods sold - b
¢ Net income or {loss) from sales of |n1.rt¢r|lur\r . |4
Miscelaneous Revenue Business Co
i1 g OTHER INCOME 300099 3,990, 3,890,
b
(S
d Alotherravenue . . .. ...
e Total, Add lnes 11a11d . 3,980,
12 Total revenue. See Instructions, - . 707,661,184, S80,210, 0. 999 419,
732008 17-28-77 Form 990 (2017)
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Form 990 (2017)
| Part Ig] Statement of Functional Expenses

STEF UF FOR STUDENTS,K6 INC.

559-3649371

Section 501(c){3} and 501{c){4) organizations must completa all columns. All other organizations must completa column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or !'IOIG{AO} any ling in this Part !J;B} ............... i C] D} LJ
Do not include amounts reperted on lineg &b, 2 -
75, 8,50, and 100 f Par Vi, Todscame | PRombeavos | Mawmwiwid | R
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, ine 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part W, line22 E50, 979 063, 650,979 063,
3 Grants and other assistance to forgiagn
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals, See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 :
4 Bmeﬁtspmdtoorformambm
5 Compensation of current officers, dmctars
trustees, and key employees " 531,246, 631,240,
& Compensation not included above, To dlsquauﬁad
persons (a5 defined under section 4958{1)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c){3)(B)
7 Other salaresandwages 12,075 312, 9,609, 712, 1,206, 240, 1,259,360,
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
saction 401{k) and 403(b) emplayer contributions) 453 779, 268,739, 111,114, 113, B66.
9 Other employee berefits 1,160,815, B50,713. 178,331, 121,765,
10 Payolltaxes 1,565,900, 1,319,474, 177,517, 58,909,
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
o MaREemBaL e
T 314,822, 37,722. 210,738, 66,362,
c Accounting 156,584 156, 5680
d Lobbying 115 003, 115,003,
e Professional I'undmmmg 3srwnes Saa Parr I".I' Il.ne 1?
f Investment management fees
g Other. (Iffine 11g amount exceeds 10% of fine 25
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0J) 2,050, 945, 1,501,175, 407 824, 141,946,
12 Adverising and promation 293 653, 207,516, 10,380, 75,757,
13 Office expenses 528 598 423 221, 51,286, 54 091,
14 Information technology . .
15 Royallles . ... TP L e
16 Occupancy .. ... 809,539, 585 021, 143,085, 81,433,
T R =re A 616 355, 422,905, 100, BL6. 82,634,
18 Payments of travel or entertamment expenaes
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest B LI N S Seoy et e ARLL
21 Payments o aﬂﬂsat&s __________________________________
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 184,633, 291,028, 57,542, 35,662,
23 Insurance 274,012, 201 388, 44 514, 28,1140,
24  (ther expenses. Itemrza axuenses nm cauered
above, (List miscellaneous expenses in ine 24e. If line
24g amount exceeds 10% of fine 25, column (A)
armaunt, list ling 248 expenses on Schadule Q)
a OTHER COSTS 877,960, 565,905, 128,535, 183,520,
b BANH FEES 431,287, 308,361, 122,715, 151,
¢ REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 408 BOT. 282,877, B3 224, 42 706,
¢ PRINTING AND POSTAGE 308 887, 125,043, 36,787, 83 057,
e All other expenses 126,721, 126,721,
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 246 674,603,917, 66B 235,653, 3,918,934, 2,449,330,
26  Jointcosts. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
pducational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Chuck hora e it tollowing SOP 88-2 (ASC BE8-720)
TH0T0 11-28-17 Form 290 (zo17
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Form 980 (2017) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, K INC, S9-36493171 F’gpe'”
[Part X [ Balance Sheet
Check If Schedule O contains a response of nota to any line in this Part X S e i ek L B L3
(A) (B}
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-nondnterestbearing it s et 41,303,733.) 1 15,085 583,
2 Savings and temporary cash investments e, 235,000, 2 196 000,
2  Pledges and grants receivable, net 436,647,533, 13 502,620,023,
4 Accounts receivable net | . 1,582,791, 4 5,137, 783,
5 lLoans and other receivables frum curren! and formar c'fﬁcws duaq:tors
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L Ao AR iy sl 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
saciian 4958(f1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3}(E), and contributing
employers and spensorning organizations of section 501{cH9) voluntary
» employees' beneficiary crganizations (see instr). Complete Part llof Seh L 6
g 7 MNotesand loans receivable, net e 7
B e O dOr Bl O R e At AR N S o i A 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 573,212.0 o 701,402,
10a Land, buildings, and equipment; cost or other
basis. Complete Part V1 of ScheduleD | 10a 4,%22 943,
b Laess:accumutated depreciation 10b 1,836 777. 1,412,932 | 10¢ 2,986 165,
11 Investments - publicly traded securities B | oy 11
12 Investments - other securities, See Part |V, Jlne 11 e TN 12
13 Investments - program-related, See Part M, ne11 13
14 Intangible assets e e LS e 14
16 Otherassets SeePartiVfine 11 . 36,231.,019.] 15 58,467,378,
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequalfine34) . ... . 518,532 3D6.| 18 589,394 333,
17 Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses | . ... 1,714,327.) 17 2,236,696,
18 Grants payable .. ... 18
19 Defemedrevenue 18
20 Taxaxemplbond RabRieE: . e s b et b 20
21  E=zcrow or custodial account liability. Complate Part IV of Schedute D 36,231,015, 21 58,467,378,
8 |22 Loans and other payables to cument and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key emplayees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons,
4 Complete Part I of Schedule L. 22
= | 238 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelata-d' thirﬁ parhﬁs _________________ 23 14,986 632,
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabllities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
BTN EE . e i 25
|28 Total liabilities. Add fines 17 through25 . 37,345,346.] 26 75,650,706,
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 988), check here B L% and
2 complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
g |27 Unrestrictednetassets .. ... e T B s 5,110,184, 27 8,115,532,
ﬁ 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 475,536,166, 28 505,588,085,
z 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
i Organizations that do not follow SFAS 7 {.&SB 9581 check here h- % i |
g and complete lines 30 through 34,
% 30 Capital stock or trust poncipal, or current funds 30
5 31  Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, Draqmpmentfund 31
+ |32 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
< | a3 Total netassets orfund balances 480,646,360.] 33 513,703,627
34 Total liabilities and net e 518,5%2,306.) 34 589,394,333,
Form 920 (2017)
T30 11-28-1T7
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Form 990 (2017) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3643371 Page 12
[ Part XI| Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPart X0 e e e e 1
1 Telal revenue (must equal Part VIl column (4), line 12) 1 707,861 184,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) i 2 " i 2 674,603,917,
3 Revenueless expenses, Subtractline 2fromline 3 33,057,267,
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year {must equal Part X, line 33, column (A . . 4 430 646, 360.
& Netunrealized gains (losses] on investments T A e A 5
8 Donated sepices anduse oHACHIIRS. | i ioneisimt b s AR b Lemat bk 4 b T ]
7 Investment expenses e i o oy /A== e ([
B P P A I, oy S S SR e T RV 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) ... ..o a 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines a through 9 (must equa! Part X, ling 33,
column Bl .. A b R S A iV A e i e it e i o . R 513,703,827,
| ﬂ Financial Stataments and Flepurtmg
Check if Schedule © contains a response or note to any lina in this Part XII EH_J
Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash E Agerual D Othar

If the crganization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checkad “Other,” explain in Scheduls O,
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? Pt - | X

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whather the financial statements for the year were compiled or rewewad ona

saparate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

r:_] Separate basks 1: Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis

X

b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? e
If "Yes " check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were auu:lrted ona saparata basra
consolidated basis, or both:

B Separats basls (2] consolidated basis (1 Both consolidated and separate basis

¢ If *Yes® to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compiation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? s 2¢ | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or seiection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O,

3a As aresultof afederal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit

Aot and OMB Circular A-1337 . ... | 2a X
b If "Yes," did the organization undargu 1h-a raqmred audll or aud-is‘? 11' 1he organlzatrUn dld nol undargo tha raqmred auclrt
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken toundergosuchaudits 0 o 3b
Form 980 (2017
TI2012 11-28-17
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SCHE!

(Form 920 or 990-EZ)

DULE A OMB Na. 1545-0047

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 20 1 7
4947(a){1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Diepartrant of the Treasury I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
AL e By P Go to www.irs.gow/Forma90 for instructions and the |atest infarmation. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, G9-264937]1

Part | | Reason for Public Eﬁarily Status {All organizations must complete this part.) Ses instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box,)

1

L] £ I ]

0 00 A0 O

&

10

1 [
=

12

A church, corwvention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){ 1)(Al(i).

(] A school described in section A70{B ) 1)(ANiT). (attach Schedule E (Form 990 ar 390-E2).)

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b){1}AMiii).
A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(bI 1 AKII). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university ownad or operated by a governmental unit describad in

section 170(b}{ 1){A){iv). (Complete Part |1.)
A federal, state; or local govemment or governmental unit described in section 170(b){1){A)(v).

An arganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or fram the general public described in
section 170{b){ 1){A)(vi}. (Complete Part Il
A community trust described in section 170(b){1){A){vi). (Complate Part I1.)
An agricultural research arganization described in section 170(b)(1){A}{ix) operated in conjunction with 3 land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and stale of tha college or
university:
An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions. membership fees, and gross recaipts from
activities related to its exampt functions - subject to cenain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
inzome and unrelated businass taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the arganization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)|2). (Complete Part 1)

An organization organized and operated exclusively to lest for public safety. See section 509{a)(4).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in

nes 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a I:l Type L. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization{s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization, You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b D Type I, A supporting organization supervised or contrelled in connection with its supported crganization(s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control er manage the supported
organization{s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c :[ Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organzation operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,

its supperted organization(s) (see instructions). Yeu must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Ej Type lll non-functionally integrated, A supporling organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must compiete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ | Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il Typa Il

funetionafly integrated, or Type Hll non-functionally integrated supporting organization,

f Erter the number of supported Organizations I — | |
g Provide the following nformation about the supported organization(s).
(i) Mama of supported i) EIN {iii) Typa of organization |'1.""| |=r~""mm“?"*% (v} Amount of monatary {wi} Amnount of other
organization oescrbacon M V10 - Yoe No | zupRort (ses instructions) | support (sea instructions)

above (see instructions))

Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 722021 10-06-17  Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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www.irs.gov/Form990

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2017 STEF UF FOR STUDENTS,

upport 5¢ uie Tor

INC,

rganizations Described in
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or B of Part | or if the croanization failed to qualify under Part 11 If the organization
fails te qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11

ctions

IV} an

59-3645371
Wi

Fage 2

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) =
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do net
include any "unusual grants.”)
2 Taxrevenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and sither paid to
or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a gnvemmenmi unit {o
the organization without charge
4 Total. Add lines 1 through3
5 The portion of total contributions
by each persen (other than a
govemmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (f)
6 Public support. Sustroct line & from line 4

(a} 2013

(b) 2014

(c) 2015

{d) 2016

(e} 2017

{f} Total

332,392,878,

456 345 377,

521,372,137,

533,245 078,

705,681 555,

2549037035,

332,392,878,

456,345 377,

521,372,137,

533,245,078,

705,681 555,

2549037025,

1039324727,

1509712298,

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) B
T Amounts from line 4
B Grossincome from interast,

dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources
9 Met income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regulary carriad on

Other income, Do not include gain

ar loss fram the sale of capital

assets (Explain in Part V1) _

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

2

10

(a) 2013

(b} 2014

{c) 2015

{d) 2016

{8} 2017

(1) Total

332,392,878,

456 345 377.

521,372,137,

533,245,078,

705,681 555,

2545037025,

12,414,

B, 223,

90,398,

397,500,

999,419,

1,507,952,

1,518,

12,665,

7,046,

11g,

1,890,

23,538,

2550570535,

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions)

12 |

2,662,588,

13 First five years, If the Form 290 is for the organization's first, second, l.hm:r fcurrh or frl"th tax yearas a sentmn S01(e)(3)

zation, check this box and stop here

%gan A F
ction C. Gomputation of Pu

= uppurt Parcantaga

pL ]

14 Public support percentage far 2017 (ine 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (0) . .
15 PFublic support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part Il, line 14
16a 32 1/3% support test - 2017. i the organization did not check the box on Hn—a ‘FE— and Ilne 14 is 33 1!3% or more, check this box and

14

§9.15 g9

15

80.50 oy

stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supportad organization || pLE .
b 33 1/3% support test - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 1Ea. arH.‘I Ilna 15 is 33 1."3% ar mare, (:he::k thls bﬁx
and stop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly suppored onganEation 1 i:|
17a 107 -facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a bcx on Ilna 13 *Iﬁa ar 15b and hne 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI haw the organization
meets tha “facts-and-circumstances” test, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization - ; o :I
b 107 -facts-and-circumstances test - 2016. i the organization did not check & box on fine 13, 18a, 16b, or 1?a. am:l Ilna 15 Is 1:}% ar
more, and if the organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI howthe
organization meets the “facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualities as a publicly supporied organization b [:[
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on fina 13, 16a, 18b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see mmtuclsnns | £

TI2022 10-06-17

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E7) 2017 STER UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 3
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed 1o qualify under Part Il If the organization fails to

gualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 11.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) =] (a) 2013 {bj 2014 {c) 2015 {d) 2016 (e} 2017 {f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
inchude any "unusual grants.”)

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
marchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities fumished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purposa

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section813

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
fumnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

& Total. Add lines 1 through5 ...
Ta Amounts included on ines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons
b Armcunts inciuded on lines 2 and 3 recelved
lrom oiber than diegualifisd peraons that
nxcesd the groater of $5,000 ar 1% of the
amgunton ime 13 forthe yeer

cAdd lines Taand 7b ..o

8 Public support. jgewseiin o mmine &
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) b {a) 2013 {b) 2014 {e} 2015 [d) 2016 (e} 2017 {f} Tetal

9 Amountsfromlineé
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources
b Unrelated business taxable income

{iess section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines10aand10b
11 Met income from unrelated business
activities not included in fine 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on
12 Other income. Do not include gam
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part V1) -oooeeee
13 Total supporl. (add tines 9. 102, 11, and 12}
14 First five years. |f the Form 930 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(¢)(2) organization,

chockthis box and SO RES .. .. i i s i g h-[j
Section C. Computation of Public Support Parcantage
15 Public support percentage for 2017 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column () ... |18 %
16 Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, PartliLling 15 ... - TP I Ty ot [+ ]
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investmant income percentage for 2017 (line 10¢, column {f) divided by line 13, eclurmn () . |7 o
18 Investment incoma percentage from 2016 Schedule A Part ll e 1?7 .. 18 a9
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2017. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publcly supported organtzation | 3

b 233 1/3% support tests - 2016. If the organizatien did not check a box on line 14 or line 18a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 1 not mare than 33 1/3%, check this box andstop here, The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . B ]
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 18a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ...
732023 10-06-17 Schedule A {Furm 390 or 950-EZ) 2017
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Paged_
[Part VT Supporting Organizations
{Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part |. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complate Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If vou checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complste Part V)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's goveming
documeants? if “No, " describe in Part VI how the supperied organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historc and continuing relationship, expiain, 94

2 [id the organization have any supported organization that does not have an |IRS determination of status
under section 508{(a)(1) or (2)7 If *Yes, " explain in Part V1 how the organization determined that the supparted
organization was described in section 508{a)(7) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501 (c)i4), (5), or (6)7 If “Yes, " answer
() and (&) befow. da

b Did the arganization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c){4), (5). or (&) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 508(a)(2)? If "Yes, " describe in Part V| when and how the
arganization rmade the determination, 3b

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)E)
purposes? If "Yes,* explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in pface o ensure such vse.

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization®)? If
“Yes," and If you checked 123 or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate controd and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? if "Yes, ' describe in Part V] how the organization had such controf and discretion
despite baing conlrofiad or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 508(a)(1) or [2)7 If *Yes," explain in Part VI what controfs the organization used
1o ensure that all support to the foreign supporied organization was used exclusively for section T70(c){ZNB}
purposes. 4c
5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,®

answar (b) and (g} below (f applicable). Also, pravide detall in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN

numbers of the supported arganizations added, substituted, or rermowved,; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(i} the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and () how the action
was gccomplished {sueh g5 by amendment to the organizing document). Ga

b Typel or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted suppored organization pant of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an avent beyond the organization's control?

& Did the organization provide support {whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than ({) its supported erganizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
banafited by one or more of its supported organizations, or ) othear supperting organizations that also
support or benefit one or mare of the filing organization's supported organizations? /f "Yes,* provide detail in
Part VI. [

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other simidar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in section 4958(c)(3)C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controfled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," compiete Part | of Schedule L (Form 930 or 990-E£). 7

& [id the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4858} not described in line 77
If "¥as, " complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 980 or B90-E2). 8

9a \Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any fime during the tax year by one or more
disqualfied persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section S08(a)(1) or (2))7 /f "Yes," provide detail in Part V1. Ba

b Did one or more disqualfied persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If 'Yes, " provide detail in Part VI. 9b

¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any persanal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting erganization also had an interest? /f *Yes," provide datail in Part V. ¢

10a Was the arganization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4843 because of section
4843(f) (ragarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type lil non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? If "Yes, " answer 70b befow. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedula C, Form 4720, fo
datermine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

732024 10-06-17 Schedule A [Form 980 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schadule A (Form 990 or 890-E7) 2017 STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

55-3649371 Paae&

| PartIV'| Supporting Organizations jnontinyed)

11  Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the foliowing persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone ar together with persons described in (b) and (c)
balow, the goveming body of a supported organization?
b A family member of a person described in (a) above?
¢ A 35% controlied entity of a person described in () or (b) abova? i’ “Yes" to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part Vi,

Yes | No

11a
11b

11¢e

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appeint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controfled the erganizalion's activities. if the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers {6 appoint andlor remaove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conaitions or rastrictions, if any, applied ta such powers during the tax year,

2 Did the arganization oparate for the benafit of any supported crganization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes, " explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the suipported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or contralled the supporting erganization.

Yes | No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

1 Ware 2 majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization{s)? ff "Ngo, " describe in Part VI how contra/
or management of the supgorting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

the supported arganization(s).

Yes | No

Section D, All Type lll Supporting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and ameunt of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 830 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i) copies of the
organization’s govemning documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization{s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a suppoerted organization? If “No, * expiain in Part V| how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working reiationship with the supported organization(s).

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2}, did the arganization's supponted organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the arganization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If *Yes, ® describe in Part VI the role the arganization's
supparted organizations played in this regard.

Yes | No

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Chaeck tha box next to the method that the crganization used to salisfy the integral Fart Test during the yeafseas instructions).

a [_Imhe organization satisfied the Activities Test, Complete line 2 below.
b |:] The arganization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 befow.

c l:l The organization supported a govemmental entity. Describe in Part VI how pou supported a govermment entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes, " then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered thelr exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supparted organizations, and how the organization defarmined
that these activities constituted substantiafly all of its activities.

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but tor the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged In? If *Yes,” explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's invalvemant,

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer {a) and (b} below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of gach
of its supported organizations? If “Yeg, " describe in Part VI the role played by the crganization in this regard.

Yes | No

3a

3k

732025 10-08-17 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page &
[PartV | Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
b | L_J Check here if the organization satisfied tha Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part V1.) See instructions, All
other Type Il non-functicnally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A Prior Year (B) Etgtr;?‘ta E’ear

Mat short-term capital gain

Recovernes of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add fines 1 through 3

Depreciation and depletion

Partion of operating expenses paid or ncurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, consarvation, or
maintenance of propetty held for production of income (see instructions)
7 Other expenses [see instructions)

8 Adjusted Net income (subtract lines 5, & and 7 from line 4) 8

O b fld (M |

= - - U ST

m

=]

. Current ¥
Section B - Minimum Asset Amount {A) Prior Year (®) ( opi'if.?, i

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (seo
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
Average monthly value of securities 1a
Average monthly cash balances ib
Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢) 1d
Discount claimed for blockage or otheér
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-axempt-use assets 2
Subtract line 2 from line 1d

Cash deemed held for exempt use, Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions)

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract fine 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 035

Recovaries of prioryear distributions

Minimum Asset Amount {add line 7 to line §)

o |a |6 o

[5]
(=]

-

o~ en
@ =i |0 | |8

Section G - Distributable Amount Current Year

Adjusted net iIncome for prior year (from Section A, ling 8, Column A)
Enter 85% of line 1

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)
Enter greater of line 2 or line 3

Incame tax imposed in prior year

Distributable Ameount. Subtract line 3 from line 4, unless subject to

emergency temporary reduction {see instructions) 6
[__I theck here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-unctionally integrated Type |ll supporting organization (see

instructions).

LCRE-N [0 LV

& [ | [ R

-

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990.E7) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

55-36459371 Page 7

|PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations ;-onsinued)

Saction D - Distributions

Current Year

.$

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

3]

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supportad organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assels

Quzlified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions {describe in Part V1), See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

0 (=3 j3r b | |G

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(previde details in Part V1), See instructions,

Distributable amount for 2017 from Seclion C, line §

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 8 amount

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions

] (i)
Underdistributions
Pre-2017

{iii)
Distributabla
Armount for 2017

Distnbutable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2017 (reason:
able causa required- explain in Part VI). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2017

From 2013

From 2014

From 2015

From 2016

Total of lines 3a through &

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Appliad to 2017 distributable amount

Carmryover from 2012 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtrast lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 21,

Distributions for 2017 from Section O,
line 7 3

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2017 distributable amount

Remainder, Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2017, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part V1. See instructions.

Remalning undardistributions for 2017, Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part V1. Sea instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2018. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2013

Excess from 2014

Excess from 2015

Exceass from- 20168

a0 o

Excess from 2017

Schedule A (Form 990 or 980-EZ) 2017

732027 10-06-17
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Schedule A (Form 980 or 990-E2) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 55-3645371 Page 8
Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part |l line 10: Part I, line 17a or 17b; Part IIl, line 12;
Part IV, Sectlon &, lings 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4¢, 5a, 6, 92, 9b, 8¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section T,
line 1; Part IV, Saction D, lines 2 and 3, Part IV, Section E. lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1, Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Saction D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 8. Also complete this part for any additional information.
{See instructions.)

SCHEDULE A, PART II, LINE 10 6 EXPLANATION POR OTHER INCOME:

CTHER INCOME

2013 AMOUNT: § 1,518,

2014 RMOUNT: § 12,665,

2015 AMOUNT: & 7,046,

2016 AMOUNT: § 339,

2017 AMOUNT: ¢ 3,990,

732028 10-06-17 Schedule A (Form 920 or 980-EZ) 2017
21 Page 66

10291031 136733 7726658 2017.04030 STEFP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 77266581



** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

Schedule B Schedule of Contributors e
e i B Aftach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.
o P Goto www.irs.gow/Ferm990 for the latest information, 20 1 7
Department of the Treasury
intarnal Revanus Sorvice
Name of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3645371
QOrganization type (check one):
Filers of: Section:
Form 990 or 990-EZ [x] so1 ) 3 ) (enter number) organization
' D 4947{a){1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
1 se7 palitical erganization
Form 990-PF (] s01(e)(z) exempt private foundation
D 4947{a)(1) nonaxempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation
[ 501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(e)(7). (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

1 Foran erganization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 980-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
proparty) from any one contributor, Complete Parts | and . See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

m For an organization described in section 501 (c)(3) fiing Form 980 or 980-E7 that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a){1) and 170(){1)(A)vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 820 or 990-EZ), Part |, line 13, 18a, or 16b, and that received from
any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 880, Part VIII, line 1h;
or (i) Form 920-EZ, line 1, Complete Parts | and [1.

[ ] For an organization described in section S01(c)(7), (8), ot (10) filing Form 860 or 890-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religicus, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for
the prevention of cruelty to children ar animals. Complete Parts |, I, and lIl.

1 Foran organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10} fiing Form 930 or 980-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, chantable, etc.. purposes. but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is checked, anter hera the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively refigious, charitable, ete.,
purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year SESTT V- |

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 880, 980-E2, or 990-FF),
but it must answer “Mo” on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 9980; or check the box on line H of its Form 880-EZ or on s Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to

certify that it dogsn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.  Schedule B (Form §80, 890-E2, or 390-PF) (2017)

723451 11-01-17
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Schedule B {Form 950, 990-EZ. or 890-PF} (2017)

Page 2

Name of arganization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC,

58-

Employer identification number

3648371

Partl Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(al
Me.

{b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

g 18,500,000,

Person @
Payoll [_]
Noncash [_]

(Complete Part || for
noncash contributions,)

(a)
Mo.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(=]
Total contributions

(d}
Type of contribution

$ 29,500,000,

Person E
Payrall L1
Noncash [ _ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

{a)
Na.

{b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

{c
Total contributions

{d)
Type of contribution

$ 22,000 000,

Person 1]
Payrall |:|
Noneash [ |

(Complete Part |l for
noncash contrbutions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

5 65,720,000,

Person Ei:i
Payroll ]
Moncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
Mo.

(b}
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d}
Type of contribution

] 150,450,000,

Person EI

Payrall

Moncash [ _ |
{Complete Part || for
noncash contributions.)

{a)
Ma.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(e}
Total contributions

(d}
Type of contribution

g 20,000,000,

Parson E‘j
Payroll [ ]

Noncash [ |

{Complete Part Il for
noncash cantributions.)

T23452 110117

10291031 136733 7726658
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Schedule B (Form 580, $90-EZ, or §50-PF) (2017)

Page 2

Name of organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

Emplayer identification number

58-3645271

Partl Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needead.

(al
No.

(b)
Mame, address, and ZIF + 4

] {d}
Total contributions Type of contribution

Person E]
Payroll [ ]

% 17,000,000, Moncash [ |

{Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
MNo.

(b)
MName, address, and ZIF + 4

{c) (d)
Total contributions Type of contribution

Person I.E
Payall [ ]

3 20,000, 000, Moncash [ ]

(Completa Part il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
Mo.

(b)
Mame, address, and 2IP + 4

{c) (di
Total contributions Type of contribution

Person [x]
Payroll |:]

e 30,000,000, Noncash [ |

(Complete Part |l for
nancash contributions.)

{2
No.

(b}
Marne, address, and ZIP + 4

(€] (d)
Total contributions Type of contribution

10

Person E
Payrall D

$ 75,000,000, Moncash [ |

{Complate Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No,

(b}
Mame, address, and ZIP + 4

=] id
Total contributions Type of contribution

Person [:]
Payroll |:]
& Noncash [ |

{Complete Part || for
naoncash contrbutions.)

{a)
MNo.

(b}
Mame, address, and ZIP + 4

(c) (d)
Total contributions Type of contribution

Person D
Payroll i)
g Noncash [ _ |

{Complete Part Il for
nongash contributions.)

723452 110117

10291031 136733 7726658
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Schedule B (Form 880, 890-EZ, or 930-PF) (2017)

Page 3

Mame of organization

Employer identification number

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 55-3649371
Partll MNoncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate coples of Part Il if additional space is needed.
(a)
(c)
Mo. {b) (d)
< FMV [or estimate)
;r;rl:‘tl Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
(=)
(e
No. {b) (d)
g FMV (or estimate) >
;r::ll Drescription of noncash property given {See instructions.) Date received
{a
c)
Ne. L] ; (d)
. ? FMV (or estimate)
:::hl Description of noncash property given {Sae instructions.) Date received
(&)
(e)
No. {b) (d}
. FMV (or estimate) 1
m Deseription of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
(a)
:"' (b) J EMV {ur{:::;tjmata] e
p::' Description of noncash property given (See Instrictions.) Date received
(a)
::' () FMV [url::]sﬂrnah!-} B
: H:nl Description of nencash property given (See instructions,) Date received

T23453 11-01=77
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Echedula B (Form 980, 980-EZ, or 990-FF) (2017) Page 4
Name of organization Employer identification number

STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 58-3649371

X gl , able, elc., con [ an GiLry, (8], ol IIEHI ALToIal more ﬁansl,ﬂﬂﬂicr
the year from any one contributor. Compiste columns (a) through (e) and the following ine entry. Fer srgamizations
camplating Part ill, snter tha tolal of sxclusively religious, charitabie, sto., contributions of §1,000 o leas for the year, {Enter fhusintd, goce | ." g

Use dupiicate copias of Part il if additional space is neaded.

~(a) No.
B’;l;rﬂl {b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferea's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
gm {b) Purpose of gift () Use of gift {d) Description of how gift is held
(@) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transfaree
{a) No.
I!’r:r'inl {b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
{e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
{a) No.
gﬂl {b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferaa’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferes

Schedule B (Form 930, 990-EZ, or 880-PF) (2017)
26 Page 71
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities G . 0047

(Ferm 990 or 930-EZ) : Ei i ?
For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527

P Complete i the organization is described below. B Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Degartmént of the Tramsury
internal Revanus Service B Go to www.irs.gow/Form290 for instructions and the latest information, Inspection

If the erganization answered “Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 890-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
® Section 501(c){3) organizations: Complete Parts |:A and B. Do not complete Part |-C.
® Section 501 (¢} (ether than section 501 (c){3)) organizations: Completa Parts |4 and C below. Do not complete Part |-B.
# Section 527 organizations: Complete Part |-A anly,
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 920, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
® Section 501(c){3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501{h)): Complete Part Il-A. Do not complete Part |1-B.
® Saction 501(c){2) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under gsection 501(h)}: Complete Part I|-B. Do not complete Part I1-A.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 930, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate mstrut:'tmns] or Form 930-EZ, Part V, line 35¢ (Proxy
Tax) (see separate instructiuns}, then

® Saction 501 (ch4), (5), or (8) organizations: Complete Part IIl.
Mame of arganization Employer identification number

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3645371
[Part-AT Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization's direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV,

2 Political campaign activity expenditures
3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities

|Part I-B| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under sectiond9ss s
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section4855 >3
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 forthisyear? | _lves [_INo
daWasacomeconmade? . i s 4 Ak A A b kg 8 2 s A A E:I Yes El No
b If “Yes." describe in Part IV,
rti- omplete if the organization is exempt under section 501(cj, except section c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities | |
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization’s funds contributed to other organizations for section 527

exempt function activities
3 Total exempt function uxpencﬂturas Actd lnes. 1 and 2 Ent‘ar hera and an Farm 1120-POL,

TR o oo o e e e e S R e L g

Did the filng organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? v bdves L _INo

& Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN} af aﬂ sect:on 52? puiltlical Orgamzatmns to which the filing organization
made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization’s funds. Also enter the amount of political
contributions recelved that wera promptly and directly delivered to a separate poltical organization, such as a separate segregated fund or a

political action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part IV.

(a) Nama {b) Address (c) EIN ({d) Amount paid from (e} Amount of political
filing organization's contributions received and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly
delfiverad to a separate
poiitical erganization,
If none, enter -0-.

&

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 890 or 990-EZ, Schedule C {Form 920 or 990-EZ) 2017

LHA
TA041 110577
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www.irs.gov/Form990

Schedule C (Form 990 or 980-E7) 2017 STEP UF FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-36489371 Page 2
i Eaﬂ: I-A | Complete if the organization is exempt under section c)(3) and filed Form alaction under
section 501 (h)).
A Check B LI #tne filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and fist in Part IV each affiiated group member's name, address, EIM,
expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).
B Check ™[] itthe filing organization chacked box A and “limited control” provisions apply.

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures w;:;m?gn,s b) Mir:::g group
(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid or incurred.) totals
1a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinien {grass roots lebbying) 18, 858,
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) . ... ... 86,145,
c Tetal lebbying expenditures (add lines taand 1b) . . 115,003,
d Other exempt purpose sxpenditures. | s e 674,488, 314,
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1c and 1d} | | S e S e Bl 674,603 917,
f Labbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table in both celumns. 1,000, 000,
If the amount on ling 1&, column [L'l_#l' (b} is: The Inhhying nontaxable amount is:
Mot ower 3500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e.
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000.
Over 1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over 31,000,000
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17.000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess aver $1,500,000.
QOver $17,000,000 £1,000,000.
g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line M) 250,000,
h Subtract ine 10 from Ine Ta. I Zer0 O 1888, BN -0 it i ertaas st assesaesssssn 0,
I Subtract ine 11 from fne 1o, L zer or loss, amer D e 0.
j Ifthereis an amount other than zero on either ling 1h or ling 1i, did the organization file Form 4720 sl
rapoiting section 40T b TOrthIBYERET. .o i et s b e b e i S e st b B L LRSS AR Bk R as I_] Yes [:[ No
4-Year Averaging Period Under section 501(h)
[Some organizations that made a section 501(h] election do not have to complete all of the five columns below,
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 21.)
Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period
% ﬁm‘;[‘*::”a‘:fnm;mg @ (a) 2014 {b) 2015 {e) 2018 {d) 2017 (&) Total
2a Lobbying nontaxable ameunt 1,000, 000, 1,000,000, 1,000,000, 1,000, 000, 4,000,000,
b Lebbying ceiling amount
(150%¢ of lina 2a, column(a)) 6,000,000,
C TDTBI Iobbwng expendnures 55r750‘. 11_942_ EErBUB. 115.5‘03. 24?,514.
d Grassroots nontaxable amount 250,000, 250,000, Zsﬂl'ﬂﬂﬂ. 250,000, 1'm}ﬂ.(}|}ﬂ-_
e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d, column (&) 1,500,000,
f G-l'&SSI‘OUtSFObb\FF!ﬂ&!DEHdEMJ’ES 55,760, B 171. 10,454, 18,858, 93,243,

Scheduls C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017

732042 11-00-9T7
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Schadula C {Form 990 or 990-E7) 2017 STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 3
Part I-B | Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768

{election under section 501(h)).

For each "Yes,* response on lines Ta through T/ below, provide in Part IV & detailed description la} (bj
of the lobbying activity. Yes No -

1 Duwring the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or

local legislation, including any attempt to influence public apinion on a legislative matter

or referendum, through the use of:

NONINIRRIET Ll i e I il o st g UL e e
Paid staff or management (m :Iude compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 107
Media advertisements? R R T S o A S b e _
Mailings to members, legr.slaior& or the publlc'? ...........................................................................
Publications, or published or broadcast statements? e

Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? e = Eie T
Direct comtact with legistators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative hﬂdy? __________________
Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means?
Other acthities? | . ...

Total. Add lines 1e through 11
2a Did the activities in Ine 1 cause the organization to be not described in section S01{c)3)7 .
If "Yes,* enter the amount of any tax incurred under sectiondg12
It "¥es, " enter the amount of any tax incurred by organzation rnanagars Uﬂder se;tlon 4912

e T @ = DR 0 TR

o o

d If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?
plata if the organization is exempt under section 501{c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).
Yes Mo
1 Were substantially all (30% or mare) dues received nondeductible by members? 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? 2
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political campalgn activity expenmiures fmm the prior \rear'f' 3

— Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(8) and if either (a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part llI-A, line 3, is
answered "Yes."
Dues, assessments and Similar amountsfrommembers | s s
2 Section 162{e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not includs amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid),
SCUmENLPBEE. . e AT PR S L PO e SR A T
b Caryoverfromlast year e basth e e vl L e e L et
c Total . ...
3 Aggregate a.mount repurted ] sec.hon Enaa{e}mw nnuces cf nnndadumble sachncn 152{ej duas
4 |f notices were sent and the amount on line 2¢ exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and pofitical
expenditure noxt year? T A O R dhik i
Taxable amount of lobbying and polmcal expendllwes (see Instructmnsj e o e ey [ |
|Part IV | Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part -4, line 1; Part -8, line 4: Part |-C, line 5: Part |I-A (affiliated group list): Part ll-4, lines 1 and 2 (see
instructions), and Part |I-B, line 1, Also, complete this part for any additional information.
SCHEDULE C, PART II-A

-
=y

w |

THE EXTEBNAL AFPFAIRS DIRECTOR AND POLICY DIEECTOR FOR STEP UP FOR 3TUDENTE

PLAYED A PROMINENT ROLE IN 2018 IN THE LEQISLATIVE ADOFTICN OF

IMPROVEMENTS TO THE GARDINER SCHOLARSEIP AND TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP

PROGRAMS AND THE CREATION OF TWO NEW SCHQLARSHIPS & ONWE FOR ELEMENTARY

STUDENTS WHO STHUGGLE IN READING AND ONE FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE VICTIMS OF

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017

TIRO43 17108-17
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Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 50-3648371 Page 4
| Part IV| Supplemental Information (confinued)

BULLYING, THE TWO DIRECTORS ADVISED LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE STAFF AND

LEGISLATORSE ON DIFFERENT POINTS ON THE BILL, THEY ALSC WORKED WITH THE

DIRECTOR OF ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT TO CONNECT GARDINER FAMILIES AND

TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIF FAMILIES WITH LAWMAKERS TO SUPPORT FOR THE BILLS,

THESE LOBBYING EFFOATS ARE FINANMCED BY PRIVATE FUNDRAISING AMD MOT THRCUGH

EITHER THE‘DIR_EC'I‘ APPROPRIATION OR TAX-CREDITED CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED

UNDER EACH PROGRAM,

Schedule C (Form 590 or 390-EZ) 2017

Tiz044 19.08-17
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OMB Mo 1545-0047

SCHEDULED Supplemental Financial Statements =
(Farm 990) P Complete if the organization answered "Yes” on Form 990, 20 17
Part IV, line €, 7, & 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11, 12a, or 12b.
Departmant of the Treasury P Attach to Form 930, Open to Public
imtarnal Revenue Sorvice P Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Mame of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UF FCOR STUDENTS, IRC, 59-3648371

[Part 1] Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Complete if the
organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part [V, line 6.

{a) Doneor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total number at end of year
2 Aggregate value of contributions to {dunng year}

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

4 Aggregatevale atendofyear ...
5 Cid the nrgar]lzatlcn inform a2l donors aond dunul .:idh'i!i-u-!b in writinng sl U sssuls held in dornwor advised Tunds

are the organization’s property, subject to the arganization’s exclusive legal contrel? 1: Yas D Mo
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that gl'a.nt ‘Funds- can be usad ml'_.'
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the dener or donor advisar, or for any other purpose confering

impermissible private benefit? ... |:|' Yos I:I MNo
Part |l ’Gonsew&tlnn Easements. Complete !Hha organlzatlm answered Yes on Furm 990 Part w Ilna ?
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements hald by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
(1 Protection of natural habitat W Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:| Preservation of open space
2 Complete ines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easament on the last

day of the tax year. Held atthe End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation B BmMENS i et e enn Za
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easemardts A e e 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historc s!ruclure mcluded n (&} 2c
d MNumber of conservation easements included In (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and notcn a hrs‘ronc: stm::.‘rum
Nstan i the Mationzl RegBer: .o e e e e e 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transteired, released. extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year pr

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementa ®holds? . i [ Yes LI o
& Staff and voluntesr hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements durning the year

B
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, nspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

]
8 Does each conservation easament repartad on line 2(d) above satisty the requirements of sectien 170/ (2B

and section 170(N&BIN? o Edves Tlwne

9  InPart X, describe how !:ha org amzatlon repm'ts Gnneerva!mn easamanta in rts revenue and axpenae slatement and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for

gonsernvation easements. A -
Part Ill | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form %30, Part |V, fine 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 {ASC 858), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar azsets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part X1,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of ant, historical
treasuras, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or résearch in futherance of pulbliic service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

{i) Revenueincluded on Form 980, PartVill line 1 | s, PE S
(i) Assetsincluded in Form 990, PanX . P 3

2  [f the organization received or held works of art, hmoncal treasures or othar simnlar assaets for ﬂnancral gan pmvlde
the following amounts required to be reparted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these itéms:

a Revenue included on Form 880, Part VIl line T i i il i, b 3
b Assets included in Form 880, Part X . ... ... e e e s e e T e e e | ]
LHA Fer Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, sea the Instructions for Form 900, Schadule D (Form 980) 2017
THNST 10-08-17
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2017 STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 55-3649371 Page 2
| Part Il | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assetscontinved)
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and ather records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items

{check all that apply):
a 1 Public exhibition d [_]Loanor exchange programs
p ] Scholarly research e [ other

c D Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XlII.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's colection? i:l Yes I:] Mo
| Part WI Escrow and Custodial Arrangemants. Complete if the organization answered "Yas" on Fa:m 99-:: Pm IV, fine 9, or
reported an amount on Form 9380, Part X, line 27,
1a |s the crganization an agerrt.‘tn..rslae. custodian or other intermediary for contnbutions or other assets not i_nch,uded
on Form 990, Part X? L Y = S T Y
b If *Yas " axplain the anangarnan: in Part }<III and cumpime 1he fcnowlng lanie

Amaount
OSBRI ie 36,231,018,
e DR A o e e e e e oz f D 99,416,729,
e Distributions during the year o = 1e 77,174,370,
e L e R e e 1 58,467,378,
2a Did the arganization include an amount on Ferm 990, Part X, line 21, for eserow or custedial account liabilty? — X | Yos L] No
b If *Yes," explain the arrangement in Part Xl Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xl .......... T o

v | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answerad “Yas" on Form 980, Part IV, line 10,
{a} Current year (b} Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three vears back | (e} Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance

Centributions |

Met muestmem eamhga gsurvs and Inssss
Grants or scholarships .
Other expenditures for facilities

and prograims

Li- I = T+ B =

f Administrative expenses

g Endofyearbalance . . o
2  Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column {a}) held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment P %6

b Permanent endowment B %

¢ Temporarily restricted endowment b %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100% .

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administared for the organization

by Yes | No
) et ed OIGAREANONGE . .. i i s T sk L e S s A P e S e g 3afi)
O releted-opgBnZEHONE o s e AT e e A R e A 3alii)

b if "Yes" on line 3alii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedula R? i | Bh

4 Describe in Fart Xll| the intended uses of the crganization's endowment funds.
- Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Completa if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 880, Part IV, line 17a. See Form 890, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Gostor other (b) Cost or other (e) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis {invastment) basis (other) dapreciation
ARl o s e

b Buidings

¢ Leasehold improvements 58,625, 36,408, 22,117,

d Equipment 4,864,317, 1,900,363, 2,963 948,

ORI
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. ['Ccu'l:.rmn {d) must sq-ua!Form 990, Part X, column (B), kine 10¢) T 2,986 165,

Schedule D (Form 980) 2017
FA2052 0.08-17
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Schedule D (Form 390) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 3

[Part Vil Investments - Other Securities.
Completa if the croanization answered "Yes® an Form 980, Part IV, line 11b, See Form 380, Part X, fine 12.
{a) Description of security or CAlEaoTY (ncluding name of sscurkty) (b} Book vaiue (c] Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives AT S s LI T
(2) Closely-held equity interests . .
(3} Other

(A

(8}

(€}

(2]

{E)

(),

()

H)
Total, (Col. {b) must equal Form 890, Part X, col. (8) line 12.) =
| Part 'U'IIII Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the erganization answered "Yes" on Form 90, Part [V, line 11¢. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Descrption of investment (k] Book value (e} Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1
(2}
(3)
(4)
()
(6}
{7)
{8)
)]

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 950, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) =
Part IX| Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 90, Part |V, kne 11d. See Form 930, Part X, lne 15.

(a) Description {b) Book value
(1) FUNDS HELD IN TRUST FOR STUDENTS 58 467,378,

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6]
(7)
(8l
@
Total. (Column (B} must squal Form 990, Part X, col (B ine 18] b 58,467,378,
| Part X | Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 830, Part [V, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
i, (a) Description of liability {b) Book value

{1) Federal income taxes

2
(3
{4)
(s)
(8
{7
18
)
Total, (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (Biline25.) .. ... .. | 2
2. LUability for uncertain tax positions_ in Part Xl provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC T40). Check here if the text of the footngte has been provided in Part Xl
Schedule D (Form 990} 2017

organization's liabili

732053 10-08-17
33 Page 78

10291031 136733 7726658 2017.04030 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 77266581



Schedule D (Form 980} 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 55-3649371 Paga 4
IPar.t Xi | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Retum.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a,
1 Total revenie, gaing, and other support per audited financial statements
2 Amounts included on ling 7 but net on Form 390, Part Vill, line 12:
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Donated services and use of facilites
Recoverios of DRor YBar QRanbe | e b e s b e s et i
her{DescdRm Il s et i e s e e
Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1
4 Amounts included on Form 920, Part VI, line 12, but not on line 1
a Investment expenses not included on Form 980, Pant Vil fme?7b | da
b Other Describe inPatXIL) ... e e L
c Addlines4aandab e i e 0,
5 Total mvenue. Add lines 3 and 46. ﬂ'hrs mustequapranQﬁ F‘Bd-f !-fﬂﬂ 12.:' 5 707,661 184,
- Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With E Expansns par Return.
Complete if the organlzation answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements
Amounts included on lins 1 but not en Form 890, Part 1X, line 25:
Donated servicesand useof facilties 2a
Par e adRteente e s e e e v |
RRREEIEERE o i e e s R R R S e 2c
O (eSS I PRIERILY L it asaninssmpasis ers oS Ghaie v o imass A n Aty 2d
R IR 2 PGB = o e S R e S e e ST
3 SUBEStine O OMBENT | s bl et b mne :
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part [X, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Pat VIl lireve ... | 4a
b Cther [DascADB I PRI i e e e A e ab
O R R . i o e e st i
5 Total expensas. Add lines 3 and 4¢. (This must equal Form 350, Part i, iine 18)  ....oocoiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiniiaenns
I Part KIIII Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il fines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4: Part X, line 2; Part X,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part X, lines 2d and 4b, Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

1 708 029 489,

368,305,

2e 168 305,
3 707 B61,184,

T a0 o o

1 674 872 222,

-

ha

368,305,

368,305,
674,603,917,

e a0 e

w B

0.
674,603 917,

L]

PART IV, LINE 2B:

IN JUNE 2014, LEGISLATION CREATING SCHOLARSHIPS FOR SPECIAL NWEEDS CHILDREN

Whs SIGHED INTO LAW IN FLORIDA. A GARDINER SCHOLARSHIP ACCOUNT IS

ESTABLISHED FOR EACH CHILD THAT IE AWARDED A SPECIAL NEEDS SCHOLARSHIP,

PARENTS USE THIS MOWEY TO PERSONALIZE THE EDUCATION OF THEIR CHILDREW WITH

UNIQUE ABILITIES BY DIRECTING MONEY TOWARDS A COMBINATION OF PROGRAMS AND

STATE APPROVED PROVIDERS, THESE INCLUDE BCHOULS, THERAPISTS, SPECIALISTS,

CIRRICULUM AND TECHNOLOGY AND COLLEGE SAVINGE ACCOUNTS.

DURING THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS

DISTRIBUTED AFPPROXIMATELY $77.1 MILLION AND 60,7 MILLION, LERVING A

BALANCE OF APPROXIMATELY 558.4 MILLION AND §36.2 MILLION RESPECTIVELY,
732054 10-08-17 Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
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Schedute D (Form 980) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 5
[Part XIlI| Supplemental Information (continued)

WHICH IS RECORDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS

BOTH AN ABEET AND A LTABILITY, STEP UOP FOR STUDENTS IS ACTING AZS AN AGENT

FOR THIS PROGRAM ZTHEREFORE, THERE ARE NO REVENUES AND EXPENSES REFORTED

O THE STATEMENT UF ACTIVITIES FOR SCHOLARSHIF FUNDS RECEIVED AND

DISTRIBUTED FROM THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

PART X, LINE 2:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS IS5 EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAXES UNDER SECTION

501(c)(3) oF THE INTERHAL REVENUE CODE AND FROM STATE INCOME TAXES UNDER

SIMILAR PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA ETATUTES, ACCORDINGLY, NO PROVISION FOR

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES HAS BEEN RECORDED IN THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS. ETEP UP FOR STUDENTS HAS MADE AN ELECTION UNDER SECTION

501(H) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE, WHICH PERMITS CERTAIN ELIGIBLE

501(C){3) ORGANIZATIONS TO MAKE LIMITED EXPENDITURES TO INFLUENCE

LEGISLATION, STEP UF FOR STUDENTS WOULD BE SUBJECT TO AN EXCISE TAX IF IT

SPENDS MORE THAN THE AMOUNTS PERMITTED, SUCH LIMITS HAVE NOT BEEN

EXCEEDED,

THE ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND IS A DISREGARDED ENTITY FOR

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX PURPOSES AND THEREFORE, REPORTS ALL FEDERAL

AND STATE TAX INFORMATION THROUGH STEP UP FOR STUDENTE, ACCORDINGLY, NO

PROVISION FOR FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXKEE HAE BEEN RECORDED IN THE

ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS FOLLOWS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS RELATING TO ACCOUNTING

FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES, MANAGEMENT ASSESSED WHETHER THERE WERE

ANY UMCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS WHICH MAY Q@IVE RISE TO INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

AND DETERMINED THAT THERE WERE MO s5UCH MATTERS REQUIRING RECOGNITION IN

Schedule D (Form 990) 2017

732055 10-08-17
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Schedula D (Form 990) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 58-3649371 Page 5
[Part Xill| Supplemental Information (continued)

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS, GENERALLY, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS IS

NO LONGER SUBJECT TO U.5. FEDERAL OR STATE INCOHME TAXK EXAMINATIONS BY TAX

AUTHORITIES POR YEARS BEFORE JUNE 30, 2015,

Schedule D {Form 990) 2017

732085 10-08-17 36 hg' s1
10291031 136733 7726658 2017.04030 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 77266581



SCHEDULE |
(Form 990)

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,

Governments, and Individuals in the

nited States

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or 22,

CBAB Mo, 1545-0047

2017

Diapartmant of the Traasury P Attach to Form 930, Open to Public
AT B TR P Go to www.irs.gow/Form230 for the latest information. Inspection
Mame of the organization Employer identification number
ETEP UP FOR ETUDENTS, INC, 59-31649371
rP‘H‘" [ General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection
criterin uned 10 award The' Grante OF ASSIBYANCET. | . ... ....ercrmrriessss e sertrssrasisass s sasessbsstsssnsns exsshestsssre ssnananssi Esbsrsb s mannsa s essersnms s sbo b uBEHEVAH sb b sBabbdaibhbhnins Yes :I No

2 Desciibe in Part |V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

I Part i | Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Gomplete if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 890, Part IV, line 21, for any

recipient that received more than 3

55,000, Part || can be duplicated if additional space is neaded.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (&) IRC section {d) Amount of (e} Amount of uﬂumu{g ::Iv. (g} Description of {h) Purpose of grant
or government {if applicable) cash grant non-cash EMV. & raisall nencash assistance or assistance
assistance 'uufp :
ar)
2 Enter 1otal numbier of section 501(6)(3) and govermment organizations sted N the Ine 1 table B
3 Enter total number of other organizations listedinthelinettable ..o e et N e NI ok mp e e R e .. P
LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 890, Schedule | (Form 990) {2017)

T32109 110137

37
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Schedule | (Ferm 990) (2017) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

59-3649371 Page 2

I Part Il l Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 330, Part [V, lne 22.

Part Ill can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

{a) Type of grant or assistance (&) Number of | (e} Amount of | {d) Amount of non- lﬂ{MaThﬂd of valuation (f) Dascription of nencash assistance
recipients cash grant cash aszistance | (book, FMV, appraisal, other)
FLORIDA TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 106548 641 591 2485, 0.
ALABAMA OQFPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP 1580 9,387 814, o,

l Part [V l Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part |, line 2: Part lll, column (b): and any other additional information.

PART I, LINE 2:

STEF UF FOR STUDENTS RECEIVES GRANTS TO FUND PROGJFECTS AND INITIATIVES TO

EMPOWER THE FAMILIES OF OUR STUDENTS, THE GRANT EXPENSES ARE TRACKED BY

FROJECT CODE FOE BASE OF REPORTING TO OUR GRANTCRS, IF APPLICABLE.

Tazwz 10177

38
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB No. 15450047

(Form 930) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 2i i 1 ?
Compensated Employees

P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Dupariment of ihe Trassury P Attach to Form 920, Open to Public
Internal Reversie Serdcs P Go to www.irs.gow/Ferm390 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
MName of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 55-3645371
|Part | | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No

4a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 550,
Part VI, Section A, line 1a. Completa Part lll to provide any relevant information regarding these items.

First-class or charter travel L__| Housing allowance or residence for personal use

Travel for companions . !: Payments for business use of personal residence

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [ Health or social club dues or initiation fees i
D Discreticnary spending account D Personal services (such as, maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the erganization follow a written policy regarding payment or

reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses descrbed above? If *No," complete Partll toexplam . | 1b
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the GEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on bneta? . .| 2

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing erganization used to establish the compensation of the organization’s
CEQ/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do niot check any boxes for methods used by a related organization lo
gstablsh compensation of the GEC/Executive Director, but explain in Part [Il.

[(x] Compensation committee [ written employment contract
[x ] Independent compensation congultant [x] Compensation survey or study
(%] Form 990 of other organizations [x] Approval by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
arganization or a related organization;

a Receive a severance payment or change-ofcontrol payment? i 4a 1
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nanqualified retirement plan? b X
¢ Participate in, or receive payment from, an equily-based compensation arrangement? 4c X

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each ltem in Part i,

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c}{28) organizations must complete lines 5-9,
5 Forpersons listed on Form 990, Part VIl, Section A, line 1a, did the erganization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
B TR aPPATEEAIENT ... s s s e s S b e A R S A o i b o s s .. | ba =
b Any related organization? ... 5h
If “Yes® on lne 5a or 5b, describe in .F’ari |r|
6 Far persons listed on Form 920, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net eamings of:

i CENEEIRRIEa BN o oo e e e e e s et e e B e e oo -l X
b Any related organization? X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Il
7 For persons listed on Form 920, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nenfixed payments
not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes,” describa in Part Il e e i M £
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 980, Part VIl, paid or accmad pursuant toa Gun!ract fhat Was sub;ac:t TD the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53 4956-4(a)(3)7 If "Yes," describein Part Il ___ T Ty | L
9 N “Yes® on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure descrbed in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)7 ... ... ... e o o R e 9
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Hntlce. s00 thu lrmruthﬂl‘lﬂ for Fm"l‘n 990- Schodula J (Form 990} 2017

732111 10-17-17
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,K INC, 55-31649371
{ Part il Jthcors. Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is nesded.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, describad in the instructions, on row (ii).
Do not list any individuals that aren’t listed on Form 980, Part VIl

Note: The sum of eolumns (B){i)-ii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and [E) amounts for that individual,

Page 2

[B) Breakdewn of W-2 and/or 1039-MISC compensation | (C) Retirementand | (D) Nontasable [{E) Total of columns | (F) Compensation
e = e other deferred benefits {BYR-D) In ealumn (B)
i ] i) Bonus & ner

{A) Name and Title cun{::;jaenﬂaﬁan [‘icmtm rtep]grtabre compensaton lﬂpﬂﬂﬂlﬂ as delemad
compensation compensation on prior Form 980
{1) DOUG TUTHILL [} 282 023, o, o, 13 408, 12,745, ine 176, G,
PRESIDENT, SUFE i) 0. 0. 0. 0, b. 0. 0.
{Z) ANNE WHITE 1] 160,343, 0. 0. 8,971, 12,070, 181,386, 0.
CDO, BUFS (il 0. G, 0. 0. 0. 0. 0,
(3) JOE PFOUMTZ {i) 188 881, 0, o, 8,576, 12,745, 210,202, 0,
TREAS & CFOQ, SUFS ii) o, a, o, 0. 0. Q, [
(4) =SCOoTT MASSEY i) 152 702, 0. 0. 8,581, 20,783, 182,066, 1,
CIO, SUFS (i) 0. Q. G. 0. 0. g fh;
[} ALISSA RANDALL i) 152,272, 0. 0. 8,307, 5,489, 167 068, 0.,
VP MARKETING & EVENTS K& SUPS i 0, 0. 0. 0. a, o, 'R
(6} JONMATHAN BECKEAM 0] 134,623, a. 0. 7,733, 20,783, 163,139, 0,
VE INNOVATION {ii) 0. a. 0. 0. 0, 8. o,
(7] CAROL THOMAS (0] 136,959, 0. 0, 1,852, 13 892, 158,503, 0.
VP STUDENT LEARNING (i) 0. g. a, g, i, a. 0.
{8} GINA LYNCH fi) 131,460, 0. 0, 7,250, 13 43%, 151,181, 0,
VP CPERATIONS (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0, o,

i)

(ii)

M

{ii)

i

(i)

i

(1]

[1]]

{ii)

(1)

i)

{i)

i)

i

i}
Schedule J (Form 880) 2017
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Schedule J (Form 980} 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 3
| Part Il | Supplemental Information
Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, fines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a. 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, Ba, €b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017
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QAR N, 15450047

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
{Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 20 1 7
Form 980 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information,
Degarment of the Tréasury I Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
infernal Favenus Servics P Go to www.irs.gov/Form880 for the latest information. Inspection
Marne of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 58-364%371

FORM 580, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISEION:

QPTIONS FOR THEIR CHILDRENW,

FORM 9%0, PART III, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION;

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY,

FORM 990, PART TII, LINE 2, MEW PROGRAM SERVICES:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS HAS CONTRACTED WITH EMPOWER ILLINOIS, AN APFROVED

S01{C)3, SCHOLARSHIP GRANTING ORGAMIZATION (SG0) IN THE STATE OF

ILLINOIS, THAT ADMINISTERS THE ILLINOIS INVEST IN KIDS SCHOLARSHIP

PROGRAM, SINCE NOVEMBER 2017, STEF UP FOR STUDENTS HAS PROVIDED

SCHOLARSHIP ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR EMPOWER ILLINOIS, BOTH IN-HOUSE

AND THROUGH A THIRD-PARTY PARTNER, TADS. THE ILLIROIE INVEST IN XIDS

SECHOLARSHIF PROGRAM IS A TARX CREDIT PROGRAM. EMPOWER ILLINOIS IS

ALLOWED TO USE UP TO 5% OF THE CONTRIBUTIONS COLLECTED TO ADMINISTER

THE SCHOLARSHIF PROGRAM, AND STEF UP FOR STUDENTS 15 COMPENSATED FOR

ITE WORK BY EMPOWER ILLIMOIS VIA THOSE ADMINISTRATIVE FUNDS.

FORM $90, PART III, LINE 4A, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMEMNTS:

UP TO §750 IN TRANSPORTATION COSTS TO ATTEND AN QUT-QF-DISTRICT PUBLIC

SCHOOL, SINCE ITS CREATICN, THE FLORIDA TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIF PROGRAM

HAS AWARDED 686,257 SCHOLARSHIPS. FOR 2018-1%, THE AVERAGE INCOME FOR

PARTICIPANTS WAS 9,6% ABOVE THE FEDERAL POVERTY GUIDELINES, AND 55% OF

THE STUDENTS WERE FROM SINGLE-PARENT HOUSEHOLDS,

STANDARDIZED TEST SCORES RELEASED IN AUGUST 2017 SHOWED THAT
LHA Fer Paperwark Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ. Schedule O (Form 2930 or 990-EZ) (2017)

TAZEN D&-07-A7
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Schedule O (Form 980 or 980-EZ) (2017) Fage 2
MName of the organization Employer identification number
STER UP FOR STUDENTS, IHC. 5%-31649171

SCHOLARSHIP STUDENTS WERE ACHIEVING THE SAME GAINS IN READING AND MATH

AS STUDENTS OF ALL INCOME LEVELS NATIONALLY, BY LAW, SCHOLARSHIP

RECIPIENTS EVERY YEAR MUST TAKE A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED NORM-REFERENCED

TEST APPROVED BY THE STATE AND MOST TAKE THE WELL-REGARDED STANFORD

ACHIEVEMENT TEST. THE RESULTS REPORTED IN 2017 TRACKED CLOSELY WITH

RESULTS IN PRIOR YEARS AND THE RESEARCHER ISSUED TWO KEY FINDINGS:

-S8TUDENTS WHO CHOSE THE SCHOLARSHIF WERE AMONG THE POOREST AND

LOWEST-FERFORMING STUDENTS FROM THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS THEY LEFT BEHIND,

-PHESE SAME STUDENTE ACHIEVED GAINE IN READING AND MATH THAT WERE THE

SAME AS ALL STUDENTS HATIONALLY REGARDLESS OF INCOME LEVEL.

FOR THE 137TH TIME, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS WAS AWARDED THE COVETED

FOUR-STAR RATING BY CHARITY NAVIGATOR FOR FINAMNCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY AND

TEANSPARENCY. IN OTHER PUBLISHED HATIONMAL RANKINGS OF NONPROFITS K6 STEP

UP HAS BEEN RANKED 24TH BY FORBES AND 48TH BY THE CHROMICLE OF

PHILANTHROPY.

FORM %%0, PART III, LINE 4C, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

DATA AND IN THE FALL OF 2017, THE URBAN INSTITUTE RELEASED A REPORT

FINDING THAT STUDENTZ ON THE SCHOLARSHIF AT LEAST THREE YEARE ARE 40

PERCENT MORE LIKELY THAN THEIR COUNTERPARTS IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS TO ATTEND

COLLEGE,

FORM 980, PART IIT LINE 4D, OTHER PROGHRAM SERVICES:

THE GARDINER SCHOLARSHIP ACCOUNT PROGRAM: §3,234,009

IN 2017-18,6 STEP UF ALSO ADMINISTERED A STATEWIDE SCHOLARSHIP AVAILABLE

TO SPECIAL-NEEDS STUDENTS WITH ONE OF TEN SPECIFIC DISABILITIES:

AUTISM, CEREBRAL PALSY, DOWN SYNDRCME, PHELAN-MCDERMID SYNDROME,
732212 09-67-17 Schedule O (Form 990 or 390-EZ) (2017)
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E7) (2017) Page 2

Name of the organization Employer identification numbaer
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3645371

PRADER-WILLI SYNDROME SPINA BIFIDA, WILLIAMS SYNDROME K& INTELLECTUAL

DISABILITY (SEVERE COGNITIVE IMPAIRMENT), MUSCUOLAR DYSTROPHY, DEAF,

VISUALLY IMPAIRED, OR DUAL SENSORY IMPAIRED, HOSPITAL HOMEBOUND, BRAIN

INJURY OR "HICH RISK" CHILDRENW IN KINDERGARTEN, FOR THE 2017-18 SCHOOL

YEAR, THE PROGRAM SERVED 9 601 STUDENTS WHO RECEIVED SCHOLARSHIPS WORTH

AN AVERAGE OF 510,279 EACH. THE PROGRAM EMPOWERS FAMILIES TO CHOOSE THE

EDUCATIONMAL SERVICES THAT BEST MEET THE NEEDS OF THEIR STUDENT AND THE

MONEY CAN BE FOR SCHOOLS, THERARPISTS, SPECIALISTE, CURRICULUM,

TECHNOLOGY, OR A COLLEGE SAVINGS ACCOUNT.

SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT AND STUDENT LEARMING: 51 893, 947

STEPF UP FOR STUDENTS IS HELFING STRENGTHEN THE PROGRAM'S PARTNERSHIP

SCHOOLES BY OFPERING FREE PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT THROUGH STER UR'S

OFFICE OF STUDENT LEARNING. THIS DEPARTMENT'S LARGEST INITIATIVE,

SUCCESS PARTNERS, IS A PROFESSTONMAL DEVELOPMENT PROGEAM DESTGNED TO

CREATE CLOSER RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEM PARENTS TEACHERS AND

ADMINISTRATORS RAND STUDENTS., THE INITIATIVE IS5 BASED ON THE BENEFITS OF

STRENGTHENING THE FAMILY-SCHOOL PARTMERSHIP FOR THE WELL-BEING OF TEE

CHILD, SCHOOLS THAT WORK CLOSELY WITH PARENTS OFTEN HAVE HIGH STUDENT

ACHIEVEMENT AND QUALITY PHOGRAMS. THE CAPSTONE OF EUCCESS PARTNERS

NETWORK IS A PARENT-SCHOOL PARTNERSHIP PLAN DESIGNED TO GIVE TEACHERS,

FAMILIES AND STUDENTS A WAY TO UTILIZE THE FLORIDA STATE STANDARDS,

WITH THE COMPACT, EACH PARTY AQREES TO SUPPORT ONE AMOTHER FOR THE

SUCCESS OF THE STUDENT. THE STANDARDS ARE A NATICONAL INITIATIVE OF

UMIFORM ACADEMIC BENCEMARKS ADOPTED IM 45 STATES FOR GRADES

KINDERGARTEN THROUGH 12 TO ENSURE THAT S5TUDENTS ARE READY FOR CAREERS

AND COLLEGE, THE TEACHING AND LEAERNING EXCEANGE ALSC FROVIDES ALL

PARTICIPATING SCHOOLS WITH THE FOLLOWING CUSTOM FUNCTIONS: GRADE BOOK,
732212 090717 Schedule O (Form 990 or 880-EZ) (2017)
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Mame of the organization Employer identification numbaer
STEF UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59=3649371

ATTENDANCE, LESSON AND UNIT PLANS & REPORT CARD, AND PARENT PORTAL. IN

ADDITION STEP UP FOR STUDENTS HAS DEVELOFPED A MASTER LEADERSHIP

ACADEMY WHICH IS FOCUSED ON SUFPORTING SCHOOL LERDERS TO BECOME DATA

DRIVEN DECISION MAKERS IN ALL ASPECTS OF EDUCATIONAL FUNCTICHS,

ILLINOIS INVEST IN KIDS SCHOLARSHIP PROCRAM: §$766,733

STEF UP FOR STUDENTS HAS CONTRACTED WITH EMPOWER ILLINOIS, AN APPROVED

501(C}{2), SCHOLARSHIP GRANTING ORGANIZATION (5GO) IN THE STATE OF

ILLINOIS, THAT ADMINISTERS THE ILLINOIS INVEST IN KIDE SCHOLARSHIP

PROGRAM, A TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM. SINCE NOVEMBER 2017, STEP

UP FOR STUDENTS HAS PROVIDED SCHOLARSHIP ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR

EMPOWER ILLINOIS K BOTH IN-HOUSE AND TEROUGH A THIRD-PARTY PARTNER.

EMPOWER ILLINOIS CAN SOLICIT AND RECEIVE CORFORATE AND INDIVIDUAL

CONTRIBUTIONS THAT ARE ENTITLED TO A 75% STATE TAX CREDIT OF CORPORATE

AND INDIVIDUAL STATE INCOME TAX. THOSE CONTRIBUTIONS, IN TURN MUST BE

SPENT TO PROVIDE SCHOLARSHIPS TO LOW INCOME ILLINCIS SCHOOL CHILDREN IN

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INVEST IN KIDS ACT, FOR THE 2018-2019 SCHOOL YEAR,

QUALIFIED STUDENTS RECEIVED SCHOLARSHIPS OF UP TO §12 373, OR FOR

INDIVIDUAL DISABILITY EDUCATION ACT STUDENTS UP TO $25 §46, TO ATTEND

A PARTICIFATING PRIVATE SCHOOL WITHIN THE ETATE OF ILLINOIS,

ECHOLARSHIPS ARE EKPENDED WHEN A STUDENT ATTENDS A PRRTCIPATING SCHOOL.

EMPOWER ILLINOIS IS ALLOWED TO USE UP TO 5% OF THE CONTRIBUTIOMS

COLLECTED TO ADMINISTER THE SCHOLARSEIP PROGRAM, AND STEF UP FOR

STUDENTS IS COMPENSATED FOR ITS WORK BY EMPOWER ILLINOIS VIA THOSE

ADMINISTRATIVE FUNDS,

ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT: £472 516

ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT, THROUGH THE FLORIDA PARENT METWORK,
733212 09.07-17 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017)
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Scheduie O (Farm 980 or 980-EZ) (2017} Page 2
Mame of the organization Emplayer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 55-3649371

ORGANIZES PARENTS AND SUPPORTERS WHO BELIEVE CHILDREN SHOULD BE

EDUCATED BASED ON HOW THEY LEARN & RATHER THAN WHERE THEY LIVE. THIS

INCLUDES PARENTS WHO UTILIZE SCHOLARSHIPS AS WELL AS CHARTER K MAGNET,

HOME AND VIRTUAL SCHOOLS. THE FLORIDA PARENT NETWORK EDUCATES, INFORMS

AND TRAINS PARENTS TO BE ADVOCATES AND SUPPORTERS FOR THE PROTECTION

AND EXPANSION OF CHOICE OPFORTUNITIES. ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT

PROVIDES THESE BERVICES TO PARENTS OF CHILDREN PARTICIPATING IN

PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY THE ORGAMIZATION AND TO PARENTS UTILIZING

OTHER CHOICE OPFTICNS UNDER CONTRACT SERVICE AGREEMENTS WITH CHOLICE

ADVOCACY GROUPS.

HOPE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: §151 511

THE HOPE SCHOLARSHIP WAS ESTABLISHED BY FLORIDA STATUTE 1002,40, WHICH

WAS CREATED IN 2018 TO PROVIDE THE OPTION OF FRIVATE SCHOOL

SCHOLARSHIPES TO ETUDENTE IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS WHO HAVE EXPERIENCED ACTS OF

BULLYING AND INTIMIDATION. STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, AS AN AFPROVED

SCHOLARSHIF FUNDING ORGANIZATION (5F0), IS5 AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER

HOPE SCHOLARSHIFS, THE HOPE LAW PROVIDES THAT AUTOMOBILE BUYERS MAY

REDIRECT UP TO 5105 OF THEIR STATE TAXES ON EACH PURCHASE TOWARD AN

AUTHORIZED SFO. THOSE CONTRIBUTIONS MUST BE USED TO PROVIDE TUITION

SCHOLARSHIPS TO PARTICIPATING PRIVATE SCHOOLS OR A $750 TRAMSPORTATION

SCHOLARSHIP TO A PUBLIC SCHOOL IN ANOTHER DISTRICT. THE MAXIMUM

TUITION SCHOLARSHIPS FOR 2018-201% ARE §6 519% FOR ELEMENTARY GRADES,

56,815 FOR MIDDLE BCHOOL AMD 57,111 FOR HIGH SCHOOL, STEP UP FOR

STUDENTS IS ALLOWED T0 USE UF TO 3% OF THE CONTRIBUTIONS TO ADMINISTER

THE SCHOLARSHIF.

READING SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: $126 091
732212 08-07-17 Schedule O (Form 230 or 930-EZ) (2017)
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Schedule O (Form 980 or 890-E7) (2017) Page 2
Mame of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UF FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3£40371

THE READING SCHOLARSHIP WAS ESTABLISHED BY FLORIDA STATUTE 1002411,

WHICH WAS CREATED IN 2018 TO PROVIDE ACADEMIC SUPPORT FOR PUBLIC

ELEMENTARY SCHOCL STUDENTS WHO STRUGGLE IN READING. STEP UP FOR

STUDENTS, AS AN APPROVED SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ORGANIZATION (BFO)} IS

AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER THE PROGRAM, THE SCHOLARSHIF IS AVAILABLE TQ

STUDENTS IN THIRD- THROUGH FIFTE-GRADE WHO HAVE SCORED A LEVEL 1 OR 2

OM THE EMGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS SECTION OF THE FLORIDA STANDARDZ

ASSESSMENT (FSi). EACH SCHOLARSHIP IS WORTH $500, WHICH THE PARENT CAN

USE TQ PAY FOR TUITION AND FEES RELATED TO PART-TIME TUTORING, SUMMER

AND AFTER-SCHOOL LITERACY PROGRAMS, INSTRUCTIOMAL MATERIALS AND MORE.

THE FUNDING IS FROM DIRECT STATE AFPROPRIATIONS (A TOTAL OF §%.7

MILLION FOR 2018-2019). STEF UP FOR STUDENTS IS PROVIDED AN AMOUNT

EQUAL TO 3% OF EACH SCHOLARSHIP TO ADMINISTER THE PROGRAM,

EXPENSES § 6,644,817, INCLUDING GRANTS OF § 0. REVENUE § 980,210.

FORM 850, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

FORM 550 IS DREDARED BY THE FUND'S INDEFENDENT CPA FIRM, AFTER BEING

REVIEWED BY MAMAGEMENT K THE FULL FORM 950 INFORMATIONAL RETURN IS PROVIDED

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IS

ALS0 AFFORDED THE OPPORTUNITY TO ASE QUESTIONE WITH RESPECT TO THE PORM 230

BEFORE THE RETURN IS FILED.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

STER UP POR STUDENTS ENSURES THAT THE CORFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY IS

ADHERED TO WITH THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES: 1) REGULAR EDUCATION WITH THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND KEY STAFF, EACH YEAR, THE POLICY IS

REVIEWED WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE EXECUTIVE TEAM. EARCH

ACKNOWLEDGE THEIR UNDERSTANDING AND COMPLIANCE BY SIGNING AN ANNUAL
732212 08-O7-77 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) [2017)
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Schedule O (Form 980 or 880-E7) (2017} Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number
STEF UP FOR STUDENTS,K INC. 38-3649371

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT, 2) THE CFO REVIEWS EACH CONTRACT THE ORGANIZATION

ENTERS, 3} PIMANCE STAFF AND THE PRESIDENT REVIEW ALL PAYMENTS AS THEY ARE

MADE FOR POSSIBLE CONFLICTS.

FORM 93¢, PART VI, SECTIOR B, LINE 15:

THE COMPENSATICM COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REVIEWS COMPARABLE

COMEENSATION AND BEMEFITS DATA OF SIMILAR ORGAWNIZATIONS, DURING FISCAL YEAR

2016, AN INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTING FIRM CONDUCTED A FULL

COMPARATIVE STUDY FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE POGSITION AND ALL

NON-EXECUTIVE JOB GHADES, THE COMMITTEE USES THIS INFORMATION, COMBINED

WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE PRESIDENT, To RECOMMEND THE PRESIDENT'S

COMPENSATION PACKAGE FOR APPROVAL OF THE FULL BOARD, THE FULL BOARD

APPROVES THE PACKAGE.

FORM 590, PART VI, LINE 17, LIST OF STATES RECEIVING COPY OF FORM 22%0:

AK AR, CA,CO,CT,FL,DC,GA HI,IL K3 KY ME MD MA MI MN MS NV NH NI NM, NY NC,OH

OR,PA,RI SC, TN, UT, VA WA, WV, WI

FORM 550, PART VI, SECTION C, LINME 1%:

ETEP UP FOR STUDENTS MAKES ITS GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST

POLICY AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AVAILABLE ON ITS WEBSITE,

WWW ., STEPUPFORSTUDENTS ,0RG. PRINTED COPIES ARE AVAILABLE BY REQUEST FOR THE

SAME PERIOD OF DISCLOSURE AS S5ET FORTH IN IRC SECTION 6104(D).

FORM 950, 6 PART XII, LINE 2C:

THIS PROCESS HAS NOT CHANGED SINCE THE PRIOR YEAR.

SR TR Schedule O (Form 980 or 890-EZ) (2017)
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SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships S

(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33, 34, 35b, 38, or 37. 2017
P Attach to Form 990, Open to Public
Itarnnd n«:::m P Go to www.irs.gow/Form890 for | I infarmatian. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-31649371
Partl Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered *Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.
(a) o) <) (d) (=) n
Name, addreas, and EIN (f applicabla) Primary activity Legal domicile (state or Total income | End-of-year assets Direct controlling
of disregarded entity foreign country) entity

THE ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND -
49-3813722, 2101 MAGNOLIA AVE 5, STE 423,
BIRMINGHAM, AL 3520% ECHOLARSHIP FUNDING RLABAMA 21,305 696,

13,703 ,401.FTEP UF FOR STUDERTS

Part il Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations, Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 890, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more refated tax-exempt
- organizations during the tax year,

{a) (b} (e} (d) (e) (f 9l
Mama, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile (state or | Exempt Code | Public charity Direct centrofling 5"2:.“.,1“]
of related organization fareign country) saction status (if section antity wntity?
S0 (ch3n Yaz | No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 290, Schedule R (Form 990) 2017

732161 081117 LHA 49
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S‘:MEEHEW 990) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 559-3649371 Page 2
Part il Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related
organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.
{a) (b} l:'i (d) {I! 0 (a) (h) (i | i (k)
Mama address, and EIN Primary activity | '*%¥ | Direct controlling | Predominant income | Share of total Share of | dussenonn | Code V-UBI =Percentage
i Tekated, unrelated, - i o
of related organization istala oo entity lludwrmmmxunuw income end-of yoar cates? élén:;mlnhm managng| ownership
coxantry} r“:lectms 512-514) Yes | No | K1 (Form 1065) lesiNa

|dentification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust. Completa if the organization answered “Yes® on Form 880, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related

Part IV organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.
(a) ib) () (d) (=) i) (o) (h) B.mm
MName, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile | Direct controlling | Type of entity | Share of total Share of Percentage| 51213
of related organization {atmin or entity (C corp, S corp, Income end-of-year |ownership | ©n
m o trust) assets Sritil
Yes | No
50 Schedule R (Form 990) 2017

TE2NEZ 08-11-97
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Schedule R (Form 930) 2017 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 55-3649371 P

PartV  Transactions With Related Organizations. Complete if the organization answered “Yes® on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

£

Mote: Complote line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts II, lil, or IV of this schedule.

1 Dunng the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts IIV?
Receipt of (i) interest, (i) annuities, (ili) royalties, or (iv) rent fromacontrolled enlity e s st n s einninns | L
Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) ... . ib

Yes | Na

Loans or loan guarantees by related organizationds) s i " e 1e

Dividends from related organization(s) e e e e "
saumwmmmm

S R UG- Rt e R |
Exchange of assets with related organizationfs) e e e L B e g e ot oo 1N
Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related organZation(S) .. .. ... 1j

== Ta =

k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) e T TN T SRS . W R WP o Tk
1 Pﬂhmmedswcuarmbmpmfmdmm!wmwm T B L s s s A LS
m Perlormance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organiZathon(s) . s s e et eran e saseensnnsnees |00
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s} ., ... ...

o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s)

in

....................................................

........................................................................ SERRDILEI . S BRI LovT o R POtacs oo o G e e st U e B |

p Raimbursement pald to related organizationis) TOr BXPEIMEEE .. ... . .o et i vesssisss i ss i §ed saesrhassas s er e ssas e bspepasss Ssbssresraseieasutnstsintinnsies

1p
q HReimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses

ig

r Other transfer of cash or property to related organization(s) ; 1
s _Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s) ... . | 18
2  if the answer to any of the above is "Yes " see the instructions fnr mformhm an M'rn mua! L‘-nrrp!ﬂu 1hh ina inch.ndng cnwad ruinlbnmkps and Iransaatnon m:ad'mlds

(a) (b) fc) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount invohved

type {a-5)

(1

(5]

TAZ183 09-1%17 5 1

Schedule R (Form 990) 2017
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STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 50-3649371 Page 4

Schedule R {Form 880) 2017
PartVl Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answerad “Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 37,
Pravide the fallowing information for each entity taxed ag a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (maasured by total assets or gross ravenus)
that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for cartain investment partnerships,
(a) (b} {=) (d} iﬂi n (a) (h) (i) 1] (k)
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile Ffeﬁméﬂﬂﬂl i:gtur;e pg-‘lun;s?( Share of Share of "‘E‘..“.'ﬁ" Cﬂdi‘!_\"-’!.ﬂﬂl_zﬁ 'E:'wlw Percentage
' related, unrefated, e ¥ amaunt in box naging -
of entity (state or foreian o, ciiicq fom tax under g total end-otyear  lueatane "0t Schadule K1 Leaner? | OWnership
country) seclions 512-514)  fyeg No income assels eelto | (Form 1065} yvas|no
Schedule R (Form 590} 2017
52
Page 97
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Schedule R (Form 990} 2017 ETEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3645371 Page 5

! Eart E“ | Supplemental Information.
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

7R2IES 08-17-17 Schadule R (Form 990) 2017
53 Page 98
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Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File a
(Rev. January 2017) Exempt Organization Return sl e

RN fo SR P File a separate application for each return,
Intesnal Aevanus See-ico P Information about Form 8888 and its instructions is at www./rs.gov/form8868 .

Electranic filing fe-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the
torms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Retumn for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit
Cantracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the |RS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this farm, visit www.irs,gov/efiie, click on Charities & Non-Profits, and click on e-file for Charities and Non-Profits,

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit ariginal (no copies needed).

All corporations required to file an income tax retum other than Form 880-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 1o request an extension of time to file income tax retums.

Enter filer's identifying number

Type or | Mame of exempt crganization er other filer, see instructions, Employer identification number (EIN) er
print
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,K INC, 59-3649371
:L::i::‘ tar | Number, street, and room or sulte no. If a P.O. box, ses instructions. Social security number (SSN)
:'l':' :;*;:_ 4655 SALISBURY ROAD, No. 400
instructiens. | City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32238
Enter the Aeturn Code for the return that this application is for {file a separate application foreachreturn) .. |o ]z ]
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code | Is For Code
Form 980 or Form $90-EZ 1)} Form 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-8L 02 | Form 10418 08
Form 4720 {individual) 03 | Form 4720 {other than individual) | oo
Form 990-FF 04 Form 5227 10
Farm 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 ] Form 6069 11
Form 990-T {trust other than abovea} 06 Form 8870 12
JOE PFOUNTZ
® The books are in the care of P+ 4655 SALISBURY RD, SUITE 400 - JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256
Telaphone No B 904-352-2346 Fax No, b
e If the organization does not have an office ar place of business in the United States, checkthisbox [ ]
® |f this is for a Group Retumn, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number {GEN) . If this is for the whaole group, check this
box P ). iitis for part of the group, check this box [ ] and attach a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for.
1 |request an automatic -month extension of time until MAY 15, 2013 , to file the exempt organization retum

far the organization named above. The extension is for the organization’s retumn for:

=3 1 calendar year or
h- tax year beginning  JUL 1, 2017 ,and ending JUN 30, 2018 ;
2 If the tax el entered in ling 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: I_f Initial return |_I Final retum

Change in accounting period

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or BOBY, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a| 3 0.
b If this application is for Forms 980-PF, 980-T, 4720, or 6068, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. b | & o,
¢ Balance due, Subtract line 3b from lina 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required,
by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment Systern). See instructions. 3| 8 o,

Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EQ and Form 8879-E0 for payment
instructions.

LHA  For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see Instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2017)

723847 Dd-01-17
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RSM

RSMUS LLP

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Step Up For Students, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of Step Up For Students, Inc. and
its subsidiary, which comprise the consclidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and
the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the conselidated financial statements,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abaut whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatemeant.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial staternents,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the conselidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinicn An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In aur opinion, the consclidated financial statements referred fo above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiary as of

June 30, 2018, and the changes in their net assefs and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordanece with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiary s 2017 consolidated financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consalidated financial
statements in our report dated October 31, 2017 In our opinion, the summarnzed comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited consclidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters — Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying consolidating statement of financial position and consolidating statement
of activities is presented for purposes of additidnal analysis and is not a required parl of the consolidated
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance, as
required by State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, is also presented for purposes
of additional analysis and 15 not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The infarmation has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consclidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated October 30,
2018 on our consideration of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiary’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that repert is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Step Up For Students. Inc. and its subsidiary’s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Governmeant Auditing Standards in considering Step Up For Students, Inc. and its
subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

PSS Us LLP

Qrlando, Florida
October 30, 2018
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2018
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2017)

2018 2017

Assets
Current Assets ;
Cash and cash equivalents
Pledges receivable, less allowance for uncollectible pledges
of $20,000,000 and $18,000,000 in 2018 and 2017, respectively
Accounts and grants receivable, less allowance for uncellectible
accounts of $102,760 and $246,428 in 2018 and 2017, respectively
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Funds held in trust for students
Total current assets

Restricted Certificate of Deposit
Property and Equipment. Net
Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Line of credit
Funds held in trust for students liability
Total current liabilities

Commitments (Mote &)

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See notes to consclidated financial statements.

§ 19,085,583 §$ 41903759

502,820,023 436,647,533

5,137,782 1,592,731
701,402 579,212
58,467,378 36,231,018
586,212,168 516,954,314
196,000 225,000
2,986,165 1,412,992

$ 589,394,333 $ 518592306

$ 289,742 § 140,765

1,946,954 1,574,162
14,986,632 -
58,467,378 36,231,018
75,690,706 37,945,848

8,115,532 5,110,124

505,588,095 475,536,166
513,703,627 480,646,360

$_589,394,333 $_518.592,306
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subaidiary

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2017)

2018
Temporarily Total
Unrestricted Rastricted Total 2017
Revenues and Support
Contributions and granis:
Fierida Tax Credit Scholarship Pregram. nel $ 18342797 & 860TGB2T1  § 679,141,068 5 521382018
Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program 1,126,045 19,883,701 21,009,746 8,416,856
Grants and other contribulions 818,075 2,276,740 3,004,815 1.523 656
Gardiner Scholarship Program 2,834,231 - 2,834 231 2.084 47T
Other revenue 1,260,909 - 1,260,909 397 839
Scholarship service contract revenue 718,720 - T18.720 us
Neat assets refeased from restrictions 852,876,783 (652,875,783) - =
Total revenues and support 677,977,580 30,051,928 708,029,489 533.784 824
Expenses
Program services:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program 648,283,010 - 648,283,010 541.915.225
Alabama Opporlunity Scholarstup Program 9,926,404 - 9,926,404 12,492 437
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 3,565,575 - 3,565,575 3.388.070
Gandiner Scholarship Program 3,418,161 - 3,418,161 2 6BB, 10T
School Development and Student Learning 1,893,847 . 1,893,947 1.581.306
Scholarship Serviee Contract 766,733 - 768,733 =
Advocacy and Civic Engagement 472,526 - 472,528 142 578
Hope Scholarship 151,511 - 151,511 =
Reading Scholarship 126,091 - 126,001 .
Total program services 668,603,958 - 668,603,958 962,208.783
Supporting services:
General and adminisirative 3,918,934 - 3,918,934 3,694,166
Development and fundraising 2,449,330 = 2,449,330 2,138,326
Total supporting services 5,368,264 - 6,368,264 5,833,481
Total expenses 674,972,222 - 674,872,222 568,042 274
Change in net assets 3,005,338 30,081,929 33,057,287 (34,257 450)
Met Assets
Beginning 5,110,194 475,536,166 480,646,360 514,803,810
Ending $ 8115532 $ S505588,095 § 513 703,827 § 480646360

See notes to consolidated financial stalemenis.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2018
[With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2017)

e
Progrem Serces Supporting Services

Flonea Mabama Communitaions, School

TazCred  Oppostunity Policy and Gardiner Devalopmani Scholarship  Advecacy Todal Gomeal  Development Todgl

Scholanhip  Scholarship Public Scholarship  andStudesd  Sendce  eadCivic  Hope  Rmading  Progam and and Total 017

Progam Progrm Alfainy Progam  Leaming  Conbad  Engapemani Scholanhi Scholarshlp  Senices  Adminisimive Fundnising  Expemas Exzenses
Scholarkhigs aad geants §HLENIG § AW - 3 - % - § - % C | - 4 - FEIATHREY 4 L | = ¥ ESLSUNEI S 548455008
Salants hnd wages JATL066 a2 1ML016 2420 198305 AW 61BN To.348 B4 523 8,048,750 107486 1,259,350 12743502 11,347 985
Payiok laes and efnpiyes benghls 1,096,390 wan (121> S HEE ETEW SIEDE B8 MEN 4N 456562 e S40 L ZI62123
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2013
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2017)

2018 2017
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 33,057,267 $ (34,257.450)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation 384,833 257,002
Provision for uncollectible pledges 19,450,366 5207177
Write-off of school receivables 126,721 70,171
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 9,321
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Pledges receivable (85,622,856) 22,643,803
Accounts and grants receivable (3,671,712) (682,530)
Prepaid expenses and other assets {122,190) (89.164)
Funds held in trust for students (22,236,359) {9,500,838)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 148,977 {286,969)
Accrued expenses 372,192 391,364
Funds held in trust for students liability 22,236 9,500,839
Net cash used in operating activities {35,876,002) (6,737,275)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,957,806) (1.115779)
Decrease in restncted certificate of deposit 28,000 -
Net cash used in investing activities {1,928,806) (1,115,779}
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Borrowings on line of credit 20,000,000 -
Repayments on line of credit (5,013,368) -
Met cash provided by financing activities 14,986,632 -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (22,818,176} (7,853,054)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 41,903,759 49,756,813
Ending $ 19085583 5 41903759

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Fiow Information:
Cash paid during the year for interest E 13,368

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

MNotes to Consalidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Mature of organization: The primary mission of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiary
(collectively, the Organization) is to empower parents to pursue and engage in the most appropriate
learning options for their children, with an emphasis on families who lack the financial resources to
access these options. By pursuing this mission, the Organization helps public education fulfill the promise

of equal opportunity.

Step Up For Students, Inc. (Step Up For Students) is a not-for-profit organization incorporated on
February 18, 2000 Through the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship program, Step Up For Students served
106.548 and 101,869 students in 1,818 and 1,730 private schools across Flarida during the 2017 - 2018

and 2016 — 2017 school years, respectively

Additionally. Step Up For Students administers the Gardiner Scholarship Program. The Gardiner
Scholarship Program was created to provide the option for parents to better meet the individual educational
needs of an eligible child. The Gardiner Scholarship Program provides eligible students a scholarship that
can be used to purchase approved services or products. During the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, Step Up For Students administered the program on behalf of the State of Florida for 9,601 and
7,583 eligible children, respectively,

The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund, LLC (Alabama Opporunity Scholarship Fund) is a not-for-
profit limited liability company established on October 4. 2013. whose sole member is Step Up For
Students. Ths Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund was formed to help implement the Alabama
Accountability Act of 2013, Through the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund K-12 schelarship
program, approximately 1,550 and 2,741 children received schelarships to atiend private schools for the
2017 — 2018 and 2016 — 2017 school years, respactively,

The following is 8 summary of the programs operated by the Crganization:

Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program: Step Up For Students, Inc. is approved under Florida
Statute 1002.395 to serve as a Scheolarship Funding Organization (SFO). Since July 1, 2011, Step Up
For Students has been the predominate Florida SFO. As an SFO, Step Up For Students can solicit
and receive corporate contributions that are entitied to a state tax credit against 100% of corporate
income tax, insurance premium tax, and direct-pay sales {ax liabilities, 80% of alcoholic beverage tax
liabilities, and 50% of oil and gas severance tax liabilities. Those contributions, in turn, must be spent
to provide scholarships o low income Florida school children in compliance with the Florida Tax
Credit Scholarship Program. For the 2017 — 2018 schoal year and the 2016 - 2017 school year,
gualified students received a maximum scholarship of §6,820 and $5,886 respectively, to attend a
private school that have been approved by the State of Florida or $750 for transportation to an out-of-
district public school. Scholarships are expensed when a student attends a qualified school. Step Up
For Students is allowed to use up to 3% of the contributions collected to administer the scholarship

program.

Page 108



Step Up For Students, inc. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program: The Alabama Oppertunity Schelarship Fund was
established to operate under standards prescribed in the Alabama Accountability Act of 2013 and is
approved under the Alabama Department of Revenue to serve as a Scholarship Granting Organization
(SGO). In accordance with the Alabama Accountability Act of 2013 and the Administrative Rulings by
the Alabama Department of Revenue, the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund must use at least
85% of revenue from credit eligible scholarship donations and all interest and investment income
attributable to these scholarship funds for educational scholarships. Therefore, the Alabama
Opportunity Scholarship Fund may use no more than 5% of the amount of its scholarship donations
for purposes other than making scholarship grants. As an SGO, the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Fund can solicit and receive corporate and individual donations that entitle the donors to cartain tax
credits administrated by the Alabama Department of Revenue

School Development and Student Learning: This program oversees the process development
intended to assist schools and families in establishing and maintaining collaborative partnerships that
ensure the academic, social and emotional success of svery child, while at the same time, uphoiding
the belief that the ultimate responsibility for the education of the child resides with the parent.

Gardiner Scholarship Program: In June 2014 legislation creating scholarships for special needs
children was signed info law in Florida. This schelarship is for Florida students in kindergarten
through 12th grade with one of the following disabilities: Autism. Muscular Dystrophy, Cerebral palsy,
Down syndrome, Prader-Willi syndrome, Spina bifida, Williams syndrome, intellectual Disability
(severe cognitive impaimment}, Phelan McDermid Syndrome, rare diseases as defined by the National
Organization for Rare Disorders, Anaphylaxis, deaf, visually impaired, dual sensory impaired,
traumatic brain injured, hospital or home bound. Also, kindergarten students deemed “high risk"
because of developmantal delays may be eligible. The students nead either an Individual Eduecation
Plan (IEP) from a Florida school district or a formal diagnosis from a licensed physician or
psychologist to qualify. Students can participate in this scholarship as part of home education;
however, they cannot be enrolled in a public school or be receiving any other state-sponsored
scholarship, including the McKay Scholarship or the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship. A Gardiner
Scholarship account is established for each child that is awarded a special needs scholarship.
Parents use this money to personalize the education of their children with unique abilities by directing
money towards a combination of programs and state approved providers These include schools,
therapists, specialietz, curriculum and technology and college savings accounts.

Step Up For Students, per the provisions of state statute, receves an administrative fee of 3% of
funded scholarships from the State of Flonda to cover the administration of the program on behalf of
the State of Florida. During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, Step Up For Students received
an administrative fee for administering the program on behaif of the State of Florida in the amount of
approximately $2,834,000 and $2,084,000, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. Step Up For Students distributed approximately
§77.2 million and $58.7 million, leaving a balance of approximately $58.5 million and $36.2 million,
respectively, which is recorded in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position as
both an asset and kiability Step Up For Students is acting as an agent for this program, therefore,
there are no revenuas and expenses reported on the accompanying statement of activities for
scholarship funds received and distributed from the State of Florida.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Communications, Policy and Public Affairs: This program takes the message of the scholarship
program to constituency groups. community and paolitical leaders, and local, state and national news
publications. It publishes a newsletter with a circulation in excess of 50.000, four times a year, creates
monthily student spotlights, issues press releases on topics of special concern, and writes commentary
for various publications. The group also analyzes demographic, achievement and participation data
and trends in the program and school choice movement,

Advocacy and Civic Engagement: This program, through the Florida Parent Network, organizes
parents and supporters who believe children should be educated based on how they learn, rather
than where they live. This includes parents who utilize scholarships as well as charter, magnet, home
and virtual schools. The Florida Parent Network educates, informs and trains parents to be advocates
and supporters for the protections and expansion of choice opportunities. Advocacy and civic
engagement provides these services to parents of children participating in programs administered by
the Organization and to parants utilizing other choice options under contract service agreements with
choice advocacy groups.

Scholarship Service Contract: Step Up For Students has contracted with Empower lllinois, an
approved 501(c)(3), Scholarship Granting Organization (SGO) in the State of lllinois, that administers
the lllinois Invest in Kids Scholarship program, a tax credit scholarship program. Effective November
2017, Step Up For Students has provided scholarship administration services for Empower llinois
both in-house and through a third-party partner. Empower lllinols can solicit and receive corporate
and individual contributions that are entitled to a 75% state tax credit of corporate and individual state
income tax. Those contributions, in turn must be spent to provide scholarships to low income lllincls
school children in compliance with the Invest in Kids Act. For the 2018 - 2019 school year, qualified
students recefved scholarships of up to $12 873, or for Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
students, up to $25.946. to attend a participating private school within the State of lllincis. Scholarships
are expended when a student attends a participating school. Empaower lilinois is allowed fo use up to
5% of the contributions coliected to administer this program, and Step Up For Students is compensated
for its work by Empower lllinois via those administrative funds.

Hope Scholarship: The Hope Scholarship was established by Florida Statute 1002.40, which was
created in 2018 to provide the option of private-schoaol scholarships to students in public schools who
have experienced acts of bullying and intimidation. Step Up For Students, as an approved Scholarship
Funding Organization (SFO), is authorized to administer Hope Scholarships. The Hope law provides
that automobile buyers may redirect up to $105 of their state taxes on each purchase toward an
authorized SFO. Those contributions must be used to provide tuition scholarships to participating
private schools or a 3750 transportation scholarship to a public school in another district. The
maximum tuition scholarships for 2018-18 are $6 513 for elementary grades, 56,815 for middle
school and $7.111 for high school. Step Up is allowed to use up to 3% of the contributions to
administer the scholarship. The Hope Scholarship program is in effect for the 2018 - 2019 school

year.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 1.  Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

= Reading Scholarship: The Reading Scholarship was established by Florida Statute 1002.411, which
was created in 2018 to provide academic support for public elementary school students who struggle
in reading. Step Up For Students, as an approved Scholarship Funding Organization (SFO), is
authorized to administer the program. The scholarship is available to students in third- through fifth-
grade who have scored a Level 1 or 2 on the English Language Arts section of the Florida Standards
Assessment (FSA). Each scholarship is worth $500, which the parent can use to pay for tuition and
fees related to part-time tutoring, summer and after-school literacy programs. instructional materials
and more. The funding is from direct state appropnation (a total of $9 7 million for 2018-18). Step Up
For Students is provided an amount equal to 3% of each scholarship to administer the program. The
Reading Scholarship program 1s in effect for the 2018 — 2019 school year.

A summary of the Organization's significant accounting policies follows:

Principles of consolidation: The consclidated financial statements include the accounts of Step Up For
Students and its wholly owned subsidiary, the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund, LLC. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Comparative financial statements: The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
acceptad in the United States of America Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization's consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which

the summarized information was derived.

Use of estimates: The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America {U.S. GAAP) reguires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
support, and expenses during the reporting penod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of presentation: The accompanying consclidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting.

A not-for-profit organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted.
Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes thersin are ¢lassified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted nat assets: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. but may be
designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Directors,

Temporarily restricted net assets: Net assets subject to doner-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met gither by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a restriction expires, temporarily
restricted net assets ara reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statement
of activities as net assets released from restrictions

Permanently restricted net assets: Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be
maintained permanently by the Organization The Organization does not have any permanently restricted
net assets.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 1.  Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all
short-term securities purchased with an ariginal maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash aquiualanls_ excludes funds held in trust for students.

The Organization maintains their cash accounts at five commercial banks, which are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Balances exceed amounts insured by the FDIC and the
Organization has not experienced any losses on such accounts. To help reduce any potential losses,
excess balances are swept into a money market fund which is invested in U 8. Government Obligations.

Pledges receivable, contributions and grants: Contributions and grants are recorded in the period
received al fair value as unrestricted or tempararily restricted support depending on the existence or
nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions and grants that are restricted by the donor are reported as
increases in temporarily restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions, When time
restnctions expire or purpose restrictions are fulfilled, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets.

Unconditional promises to give {pledges) are recognized as support in the period received at fair value.
Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially
met The Organization uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible pledges receivable. The
allowance is established based upon managemeant’s analysis of specific pledges and other economic
factors. The Organization has received promises to give from corporations for the Florida Tax Credit
Scholarship Program, from corporations and individuals for the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Program, and from private foundations.

Pledges, which become uncollectible or for which an allowance is established in the year of the pledge,
are written off against contribution revenue. Pledges which become uncollectible in subsequent years are
charged to the allowance for uncollectible pledges.

Contributed services are recognized and reported at fair vaiue in the period received, if the services
received create or enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals
possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by contribution. There
were no contributed services for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Accounts and grants receivable: Accounts and granis receivable are slated at net realizable value. The
Organization uses the aliowance method to determine uncollectible accounts receivable The allowance
is established based upon management's analysis of specific accounts and other economic factors. In the
opinion of management, an allowance for uncoliectible accounts of $102 760 and $246,423 was considered
necessary at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Restricted certificate of deposit: Restricted cerificate of deposit held by the Organization represents
funds required to be set aside by the lessor relating an office lease signed by the Organization in 2015 for
collateral and is carried at amortized cost.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair vaiue
at the date of gift, if contributed. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-
line mathod of accounting over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets. Routine maintenance
and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred, while major replacements and improvements are
capitalized as additions fo the related assets. When assels are sold or retired, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and gains or losses from dispositions are

credited or charged to income.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 1. Nature of Qrganization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of long-lived assets: The carrying value of property and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate such value may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets or asset groups to be held and used is measured by a comparisan of the carrying
amount of an asset or asset group to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or
asset group. If such assets or asset groups are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized
is measured by the amount by which the carrying ameount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the
assets or assel group Assets or assel groups to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less cost to sell. No impairment of the Organization's long-lived assets or assat
groups have been recognized during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Funds held in trust for students and funds held in trust for students liability: Funds held in trust for
students and funds held in trust for students liability represents funds received for the Gardiner Scholarship
Program. A Gardiner Scholarship account is established far each child that is awarded a special needs
scholarship As parents use these funds in accordance with State of Florida guidelines, the asset and
liability are reduced accordingly

Functional expenses: The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been
summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities and in the consolidated
statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the various
programs and supporting services benefited,

Income taxes: Step Up For Students is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c¢)(3) of the
internal Revenue Code and from state income taxes under similar provisions of the Florida Statutes.
Accordingly, no provision for federal and state income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements Step Up For Students has made an election under Section 501(h) of
the Internal Revenue Code, which permits certain eligible 501(c)(3) organizations to make limited
expenditures to influence legisiation. Step Up For Students would be subject to an excise tax if it spends
mare than the amounts permitted. Such limits have not been exceeded.

The Alabama Oppertunity Scholarship Fund is a disregarded entity for federal and state income tax
purposes and therefore, reports all federal and state tax information through Step Up For Students.
Accordingly, no provision for federal and state income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
consalidated financial statements.

The Qrganization follows aceounting standards relating to accounting for unceriainty in income taxes.
Management assessad whether there were any uncertain tax positions which may give rise to income tax
liabilities and determined that there were no such matiers requiring recognition in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Generally, the Qrganization is no longer subject to U.S, federal or state
income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before June 30, 2015,
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Step Up For Students, Inc, and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Mote 1. MNature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continuad)

Recent accounting pronouncements: In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Confracts with Customers

( Topic 606), requiring an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers The update will replace most existing revenue
recognition guidance in U.S, GAAP when it becomes effective and permits the use of either a full
retrospective or retrospective with cumulate effect transition method. The updated standard will become
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Organization has not yet
selected a transition method and is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued its new lease accounting guidance in Accounting Standards Update
{ASU) No, 2018-02, Leases (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, lessees will be required to recognize
the following for all leases (with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date: (1) A
lease liability, which is a lessee's obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a
discounted basis; and (2) A nght-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right to use.
or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. Lessees will no longer be provided with a
source of off-balance sheet financing. Lessees must apply a modified retrospective transition approach
for leases existing at, or entered Into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in
the financial statements. Nonpublic entities should apply the amendments for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

The FASB has issued ASU No. 2018-14, Not-for-Profit Entities {Tapic 858). Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. ASU 2016-14 amends guidance on the current net asset
ciassification requirements and the information presented in the financial statements and notes about a
not-for-profit entity's liquidity, financial performance, and cash flows. ASU 2016-14 replaces the currently
required three net asset classes with two net asset classes. nel assels with donor restrictions and net
assels without donor restrictions Other amendments within ASU 2016-14 will improve the usefulness of
information provided to donors, grantars, creditors, and other users of a not-for-profit's financial statements.
The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. The Organization is
currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

The FASB has issued certain new or madifications to, or interpretations of existing accounting guidance
in addition to the ASU's described above. The Organization has considered the new pronouncements and
does not believe that any other new or madified guidance will have a2 material impact on the
Organization’s reparted financial position or actities in the near term.

Subsequent events: Management has assessed subsequent events through Oclober 30, 2018, the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued,
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 2.  Tax Credit Scholarship Programs and Scholarships Awarded

Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program and Scholarships Awarded - Florida Statutes permit Scholarship
Funding Organizations participating in the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program to use up to 3% of
eligible contributions received for administrative expenses. Scholarship Funding Organizations must
expend for annual or partial-year scholarships an amount equal to or greater than 75% of the net eligible
contributions remaining after administrative expenses during the year in which such contributions are
collected. No more than 25% of such net eligible contributions may be carried forward for expenditure to
the following year During the year ended June 30, 2018, Step Up Feor Students collected $611,426.578 of
eligible contributions Step Up For Students claimed an administrative allowance of $18,342 797 and
expended 5641 591,243 for scholarships during the year ended June 30, 2018. During the year ended
June 30, 2017, Step Up For Students collected $548 818,096 of eligible contributions. Step Up For
Students claimed an administrative allowance of $16,464,543 and expended $536,440,926 for
scholarships during the year ended June 30, 2017

Scholarships under the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program are awarded annually to qualified
students To qualify for a scholarship, a student and the parents or guardian of that student must meet
economic need requirements, enroll in an eligible private school and comply with certain other
responsibilities for program participation. Scholarships for the 2017 — 2018 and 2016 — 2017 school years
could not exceed $6,920 and $5,886, respectively The scholarship checks are made payable to the
student's parent or guardian and the private school. The checks are mailed to the schools in quarterly
installments. Before the mailing, the schools verify the students’ attendance and that the students'
parents or guardians have complied with their responsibilities under the program. Both the parents or
guardians and schools endorse the checks before they are deposited into the schools' bank accounts.

Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program and Scholarships Awarded — The Alabama Accountability Act
of 2013 and the Administrative Rulings by the Alabama Department of Revenue permit Scholarship
Granting Organizations participating in the Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program to use up to 5% of
eligible contributions received for administrative expenses. Scholarship Granting Organizations must
expend for scholarships an amount equal to or greater than 95% of the net eligible contributions
remaining after administrative expenses. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Alabama Opportunity
Scholarship Fund collectad $22,521 746 of aligible contributions. The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Fund claimed an administrative allowance of $1,128,045 and expended $3 387 814 for scholarships
during the year ended June 30. 2018. During the year ended June 30, 2017 the Alabama Opportunity
Scholarship Fund collected $8,832,356 of eligible contributions. The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Fund claimed an administrative allowance of $441 843 and expended 512,015,070 for scholarships
during the year ended June 30, 2017

Scholarships under the Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program are awarded annually to qualified
students. To qualify for a scholarship. a student and the parents or guardian of that student must mest
economic need requirements, enroll in an eligible private school and comply with certain other
responsibilities for program participation.
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Step Up For Students, Iric. and Subsidiary
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Note 3. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2018 2017
Furniture and equipment $ 150580t $ 1,329,889
Software 3.358,718 1,576,622
Leasehold improvements 58,625 58,625
4,922,942 2,965,136

Less accumulated depreciation 1,936,777) (1,552,144)
5 2985185 1,412,892

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, was $384,633 and $257,002,

respectively.

Note 4. Line of Credit

Step Up For Students has a $40,000,000 line of credit agreement with a bank bearing interest at the one-
menth LIBOR interest rate plus 1 5% (3.5% at June 30, 2018). Interest on the line of credit is payable
menthly and matures on April 30, 2019, The line of credit is collateralized by substantially all the assets of
Step Up For Students. The line of credit had an outstanding balance of $14,986 632 at June 30, 2018.

There was no outstanding balance on the line of cradit at June 30, 2017,

Note 5. Temporarily Restricted Net Assels
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at June 30.

2018 2017
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program $ 491496263 § 472385063
Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program 12,937,578 2,669,334
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 1,153,854 481,769
$ 505588.095 § 475536166

MNet assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the purpose specified

by donors as follows:

2018 2017
Florida Tax Credit Schelarship Program $ B41657071 $ 536518688
Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program 9,910,152 12,546,988
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 1,308,560 226,805

§ 652876783 § 549.292 481
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for Year Ended June 30, 2017)

MNote B. Commitments

The Organization leases certain office equipment and office space under operating leases which expire at
various dates through August 2021, Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, was
$809,539 and 8777 444, respectively

Minimum future annual lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

Years ending June 30;

2018 3 764,083
2020 546,328
2021 3,896
2022 6849

8 1314866

Mote 7. Major Donors

Step Up For Students: Contributions from two major donors accounted for approximately 32.0% of
centributions and grants — Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30, 2018,
At June 30, 2018, approximately 34.4% of pledges receivable are due from these major donars.
Contributions from two major donors accounted for approximately 41.2% of contributions and grants -
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30 2017_ At June 30, 2017
approximately 47.4% of pledges receivable are due from these major donors.

Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund- Contributions from one major donor accounted for approximately
14.3% of contributions and grants — Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program during the year ended
June 30, 2018, Contributions from two major donors accounted for approximately 59.4% of contributions
and grants — Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30, 2017.

Note 8. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution 401(k) Savings Plan (the Plan). All employees who mest
certain age and service requirements are eligible to participate in the Plan. The Plan provides for salary
reduction contributions from employees up to the federal tax limit according to the Internal Revenue
Code. In addition, there could be additional retirement benefits from discretionary employer contributions.
Contributions to this Pian for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, were $658,683 and $479,985,
respectively, which is included in payroll taxes and employee benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statement of functional expenses,
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2018
Alabama
Opportunity
Step Up For Schoelarship
Students Fund Eliminations Consclidated
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5500130 § 13585453 5 - $ 19,085,583
Pledges receivable, net 502,820,023 - - 502,820,023
Accounts and grants receivable, net 5,050,724 87,058 - 5,137,732
Prepaid expenses and other assets 673,784 27 608 - 701,402
Funds held in trust for students 58,467,378 - - 58,467,378
Total current assets 572,512,049 13,700,119 - 566,212,168
Restricted Certificate of Depaosit 196,000 - - 196,000
Property and Equipment, Net 2,982 883 3282 - 2,986,165
Total assets $ 575690932 § 13703401 3 - 3 580,394,333
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 22T % 16871 % - 5 289,742
Accrued expenses 1,875,664 71,280 - 1,846,954
Line of credit 14 986,632 - - 14 986,632
Funds held in trust for students liability 58 467,378 - - 58,467,378
Total current liahilities 75802 445 88,251 - 76,680,708
Met Assels
Unrestricled 7,438,370 677,162 - 8,115,532
Temporarily restricted 492 650,117 12,837,978 - 505,588,095
Total net assets 500,088 487 13,615,140 - 513,703 827
Total liabilities and net assets $ 575690832 § 13703401 S - $ 589,394 333
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidating Statemaent of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Step Up For Studenls Alabama Opporiunity Scholarship Fund
Temporanily Tempomdly
Unresticled Restricled Total Unrestricted Resiricled Total Consclidated
Revenues and Suppon
Contributions and granis:
Florida Tax Credit Schalarship Program, net § 18342797 § 660768271 § 679111088 § - & - . $ 679.111,088
Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Program - . - 1,126 045 19,883,701 21,008,746 21,009,746
Grants and olher contributions B17.220 1.981.845 2,798,865 855 295,085 285950 3,084 815
Gardiner Scholarship Program 2834231 - 2.834,231 - . s 2,834 231
Other revenue 1,260,809 1,260,908 - - 1,260,909
Scholarship service contract revenue 718,720 - 718,720 - - = 718720
Net assels released from resirctions 642.966 631 {642.966 631) - 9.810.152 (9.910.152) i 3
Total revenues and support 666,940,508 19,783,285 G686, 723,793 11,037,052 10,268 644 21,305 696 708,029,489
Expenses
Program services:
Florida Tax Credit Schalarship Program 648,283,010 - 648,283,010 - . . 648 283,010
Alabama Opporunity Scholarship Program - - - 4,626,404 9,026 404 9,026,404
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 3,566,575 - 3,565,675 - = 4,565,575
Gandiner Scholarshig Program 3418181 - 3418161 - - 3418161
School Development and Shudent Learming 1,893,947 - 1,893,947 - 1,893 947
Scholarship Service Contract 766,733 - 766,733 - - - 78E,733
Advocacy and Chvic Engagament 409 439 - 409,439 63,087 - 63,087 472 526
Hope Scholarship 151,511 151,511 - - - 151.511
Reading Scholarship 126,091 126,091 - - = 126,091
Total program services 658,614 487 - 658,614,487 5.980.461 9,989,491 668,603,958
Supporfing senices:
General and administrative 3,885,512 - 3,685,512 233422 - 233422 3.918,934
Development and fundralsing 2,311,284 - 2,311,284 138,048 - 138,046 2,449 330
Total supporting services 5,998,796 - 5.996, 798 371,468 - 371,468 5.358.764
Total expansas 664,611,263 - 564,611,263 10,360,950 - 10,360,959 674,972 222
Change in not assels 2,320 245 15,783,285 22.112.530 676,083 10,268 644 10,944,737 33.057.267
Net Assels
Beginning 5,109,125 472,866,832 477,975,957 1,068 2.669.334 2.670.403 460 846 360
Ending $ 7438370 § 492650917 S 500088487 i anim $ 12837978 S 13&1 5140 $ 513,703,627
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2018

State Contract/
CSFA Grant State
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
State Financial Assistance ) ;
Florida Department of Education and Commissioner of Education:
Gardiner Scholarship Program 48113  92X-90025-8D001 $ 80,008,601

Total expenditures of state financlal assistance

See notes to schedule of expendifures of slate financial assistance.

18
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance (the Schedule) includes the
state financial assistance project activity of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiary (the
Organization) under programs of the State of Florida for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in
this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the State of Florida Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or
cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are reported following the cost principles established by the State of Flonda Department
of Financial Services, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers (contract or grant number) are presented where
available.

Step Up For Students is acting as an agent for this program, therefore, there are no revenues and
expenses reported on the accompanying statement of activities for scholarship funds received and
distributed from the State of Florida. The expenditures reported as state financial assistance on the
Schedule represent amounts distributed for reimbursement of program-related educational expenditures
on behalf of eligible children which totaled $77,174,370 and $2,834,231 received from the State of Florida
which was used to pay administrative expenses for the administration of the program on behalf of the

State of Flerida.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Step Up For Students, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Amernica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Step Up
For Students. Inc. and its subsidiary (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated siatement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consclidatet! statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consoclidated
financial statements. but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal cantrol.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent. or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A malerral weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yel important enough to merit altention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncempliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govermment Auditing Standards.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTDOD

s
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance,
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

RSk Vs LLP

Orlando, Florida
Cctober 30, 2018
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RSMUSLLP

Report on Compliance for its Major State Financial Assistance Project and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance required by State of Florida
Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Step Up For Studants, Inc,

Report on Compliance for its Major State Financial Assistance Project

We have audited Step Up For Students. Inc. and its subsidiary's (the Organization) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the Department of Financial Services' State Projects
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Organization's major state
financial assistance project for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Organization's major state financial
assistance project is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its state financial assistance applicable to its state financial assistance project.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Organization's major state financial
assistance project based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State of Florida Chapter
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General Those standards and the State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of
the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major state financial assistance project occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other pracedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabie basis for our opinion on compliance for its major state
financial assistance project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Organization's compliance.

Opinion on its Major State Financial Assistance Project

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state financial
assistance project for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major state financial assistance project
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for its major state financial assistance project and to test and report
on intemal control over compliance in accordance with the State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the
Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal contro! over compliance. g

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
state financial assistance project on a timely basis. A matenial weakness in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
financial assistance project will not be prevented, or detected and cormrected, on a timely basis. A signdficant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state financial assistance project that
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet imporiant encugh to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rufes of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for

any other purpose.

RSk vs LLP

Orlando, Florida
October 30, 2018
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2018

| - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Financial Assistance

Internal control over major program:
Material weakness{es) identified?
Significant deficiency({ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major program:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
10.654{1)(n)(1)f), Rules of the Auditor Genaeral ?

|dentification of major program:

CSFA Number(s)
48.113

Dollar threshoid used to distinguish between type
A and type B state financial assistance projects:

ll. Financial Statement Findings

No matters to report.

lil. Findings and Questioned Cests for State Financial Assistance

No matters lo report.
IV, Other Reporting

Unmodified

Yes X No

Yes X Mone Reported

Yes X Mo

Yes X No

Yes X  None Reported
Unmaodified

Yes X No

Name of State Financial Assistance Project

Gardiner Scholarship Program

$

2,400,258

1. No Summary Schedule of Prier Audit Findings is presented because there were no prior audit
findings related to state financial assistance projects.

2. No Corrective Action Plan is presented because there were no findings required fo be

reported under the Florida Single Audit Act.

3. There was no management letter or control deficiency letter issued for the year ended
June 30, 2018, and there were no matters required to be reported in these letters.
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Step Up For Students
Annual Report for the Year Ending June 30, 2019

e Student Data Information on Applications, Application Approval and
Scholarship Funding

e Scholarship Monies Collected, Distributed Scholarships and Year End
Balances
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County
Alachua
Baker
Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
DeSoto
Dixie
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Franlklin
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Glades
Gulf
Hamilton
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Holmes
Indian River
Jackson
lefferson

Kindergarten
169
15
35
39
471
1882
1
7
80
136
101
78
18
=
1573
337
93
12
a7
15
7
3
20
g
37
115
108
916

79
18
18

First Second Third Fourth

155
12
22
38

396

1615
2

a7
75

115
84
65
11
18

1303

291

83
5
66
8
5
3
12
11
28

110
79

802

54
15
19

132
(5

24
33
373
1538
2

49
83
86
75
55
24
10
1235
261
70
10
74
10

13

31
117
75
835

60
10
15

123
13
20
26
361
1422
1
44
75
ap
BB
55
10
16
1133
250
53
8
63
.
4
5
19
10
22
82
71

670

59
11
13

130
8
29
25
366
1493
1
38
65
90
76
44
13
14
1115
268
78
g
65
[

4

6
13
10
43
98
69
661

33
18
11

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications

Fifth
127
14
15
27
329
1320
2
47
60
92
62
a7
9
9
1063
230
55

59

L=

18

26
76
65
656

60
14

Seventh Eighth Ninth

2018-2019
Sixth

135 105
7 4
24 28
30 27
320 274
1289 1182
1 ;b
49 52
B5 )=
24 67
73 59
54 52
9 7
g 11
1085 942
224 225
48 66
4 &
13 52
13 10
1 4
3 4
17 15
8 )
18 18
94 71
67 41
620 559
3
47 42
15 10
9 15

95

4

14
17
260
1004

44
36
58
51
40

759
150
39

46

LRSI = 5y T =

21
57
44
487

35
14
12

93
4
17
17
234
878

26
41
56
41
28

725
130
33

47

=R T

53
45
384

38
12
11

Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Unknown Grand Total

79
2

&
14
176
773

23
41
&4
42
27

578
129
27

44

~ @ ;= m

18
42
25
339

25

46
4
11
15
154
637

25
23

42 .

258
28

10
442
86
20

28

le

11
30
35
302

20

34

4
9
135
514

22
29
33
17
13

384
78
13

24

[¥5]

10

28
29
247

15

1423
96

249

317

1 3850
3 15550
15

543

742

993

778

586

123

127

2 12339
2699

683

74

721

105

43

46

176

82

1 291
973

767

7478

23

573

156

148
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County
Lafayette
Lake
Lee
Leon
Lewy
Liberty
Madison
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Miami-Dade
Monroe
Nassau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Orange
Osceala
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminocle
5t. Johns
St. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannee
Taylor
Union
Volusia

Kindergarten
5
315
222
232
38

141
374
70
44332
40
33
106
40
2022
582
703
255
712
649
72
39
114
308
a7
304
27
47
25

628

First Second Third Fourth

7
262
195
154

30

125
304
48
3705
24
43
87
25
1758
549
565
207
571
559
64
63
102
300

236
15
55
18

565

7
282
203
168

34
1

7
113
273
49
3423
16
32
72
23

1694
510
560
232
553
496

62
60
86
260
70
252
18
45
15

545

7
182
141
156

21

12
121
280

44

3209

24

24

76

18

1520
498
464
192
473
482

37

A48

75
257

73
228

11

41

14

469

5
198
173
160

27

108
232
42
3180
20
34
80
28
1558
491
472
198
502
487
54
47
110
249
72
228
18
a4
£

435

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications
2018-2019

Fifth
5
218
176
156
30
1
11
95
238
35
3059
16
31
712
26
1386
438
453
179
479
453
39
56
94
226
73
135
14
42
15

448

Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth

3
205
158
146

23

3

5
134
251

39
2936
13
36
70
15
1365
452
451
178
453
448
34
47
82
220
65
216

43
12

433

1
187
152
135

21

95
209
36
2615
16
29
67
13
1220
384
389
150
403
376
34
45
90
209
57
172
16
38
18

414

e i
192
134
115

27

83
164
45
2227
18
22
54
15
1014
333
359
146
382
338
40
35
76
177
39
172

23

288

1
123
108
110

16

58
178
14
2028
14
16
43
14
936
310
313
144
328
302
37
44
57
149
42
137

21

302

Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Unknown Grand Total

2
121
a7
80
21

52
131
35
1587

19
42
13
759
233
254
117
238
243
21
21

125
37
127

18

242

4
83

75

59
g

40
123
15
1415
11
10
32
11
653
194
176
29
232
179
25
20
34
105
18
105

17

11
189

2
68
63
55
18

47
65
14
1114

18
35
12
584
182
173
92
197
202
18
10
31
109
30
78

15

177

50

1 2437
1898

1730

315

5

85

1212

2802

484

7 34937
1 228
347

836

258

3 16472
5157
5334
2179
5523
1 5215
537

535

995

2694

763

2450

153

454

157

70

5135

P =
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Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications
2018-2019

County  Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth Fifth  Sixth  Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Unknown Grand Total
Wakulla 21 13 13 13 12 12 10 5 g g 9 3

4 138
Walton 22 8 12 12 ] 13 9 11 8 7 6 5 2 124
Washington 14 21 B 4 16 13 14 8 10 7 11 11 1 136
Grand Total 15282 16327 15516 14028 14226 13323 13061 11650 9957 8855 7243 6006 5113 23 154615
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County
Alachua
Baker
Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
DeSoto
Dixie
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Franklin
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Glades
Gulf
Hamilton
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Holmes
Indian River
Jackson
lefferson
Lafayette

Kindergarten
175
2
27
15
285
1217

51
67
46
54
40

802
205

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Were Approved
2018-2019

First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total

139
B

20
12
327
1329

55
73
66
56
51
11

880
221
58

26

[

12

24
34
76
626

34

125
11
25
22

264

1314

50
77
57
46
63
15
5
827
229
46

36

Ly = RS R VU

28
113
67
633

43
12

133
8

14
21
272
1081

43
57
61
64
50
14

818

220
45

37

W oot = w

23
96
67
558

38
16

130
10
25
18

272

1062

47
69
65
62
52
10

7

818

200
41

3
52

10

20
26
73
640

42
12

a5 112
13 7
22 16
12 20
264 243
1026 919
1
58 51
70 57
65 63
62 52
47 44
13 14
3 4
781 803
183 172
52 63
1 3
56 44
6 5
5 3
7 6
10 5
9 3
25 28
92 101
57 67
589 566
3 1
34 43
14 17
11 5
9

93
13
15
21
256
862

45
48
58
36
56

736
172
55

45

o WD o

24
90
68
556

39
12
12

20
3
21
12
207
736

49
48
50
47
43

693
142
37

36

[ %]

10

26
77
46
423

32
11

53
6

6
17
141
658

28
30
37
32
41

550
118
20

29

10

18
68
26
430

15
10

50
10
8
15
143
613

15
34
40
31
32

472
109
18

40

15
60
24
358

17

39
5

6
17
111
511

18

24

32
21
18

3

404
72
19

27

40
13
307

Moo=l = W W

36
7

1
12
g0
417

15
16
21
20
16

380
284

13

36

30
11
243

11

el

1260
106
210
214

2B75

11745
6

531
670
661
583
553
122
63

8964

2127
517

40
489
68
28
40
104
49
264

1033
655

6579

22
409
145

84
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County
Lake

Lee

Leon

Levy
Liberty
Madison
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Miami-Dade
Monroe
Nassau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Drange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminale
5t. lohns
St. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannee
Taylor
Union
Volusia
Wakulla
Waltan

Kindergarten
202
148
91
22

81
243
35
3332
17
a3
62
19
1167
347
377
137
365
447

54
70
185
46
233
17
32

419

10

First Second Third Fourth

202
160
24
21

115
236
31
3852
12
27
65
18
1339
396
401

177

392
437
45
49
76
188
68
288
12
45
20

411
12

189
143
94
25

98
252
46
3427
18
23
62
19
1229
379
366
167
4332
487
49
51
76
188
79
235
12
44
22

392

183
157
82
21

88
208
39
2840
12
32
75
27
1122
407
327
173
345
432
55
46
78
184
56
210

35
20

364
14
10

178
134
83
28
1

2
84
217
37
2795
16
25
59
25
1150
423
352
168
402
449
a7
43
32
174
55
218
17
ag
24

407
13
14

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Were Approved

Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Minth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total

2018-2019
197 165
126 133

63 75
28 30
1

2 2
85 91
226 206
35 36
2529 2087
12 16
22 20
63 54
19 19

1070 1008
370 394
367 364
154 161
427 415
436 403

48 48
30 39
64 72
156 144
4 M4
204 198
6 12
49 43
20 15
7 7
352 344
9 6
4 10

173
105
59
32

1

4

82
210
30
1835

20
35
14
976
391
326
116
420
370
37
45
68
136
41
161
16
35
18

308
13

143
87
54
18

63
180
34
1546

24
23
16
827
353
283
128
340
334
34
36
57
94
38
151
12
37
14

276

o

115
93
42
18

i

62
160
23
1351

10
13
11
630
309
218
112
298
277
19
25
50
92
22
124
12
31
14

218

103
74
41
15

1

48
106
12
1116

15
11

532
250
189
97
225
243
16
27
37
71
22
102

108
59
22
12

39
91
14
911

23

435
223
162
Bb
199
202
iz
21
36
58
17
82

30

164
10

86
53
28

5

0
24
100
12
as7

=]

379
189
147

68
163
194

2044
1472
828
279
5

22
960
2435
384
28478
135
261
557
205
11864
4431
3879
1744
4423
4711
478
481
780
1723
541
2265
148
475
197
55
3984
117
82
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Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Were Approved

2018-2019
County Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
Washington 17 24 24 13 11 12 17 16 6 Fd b 5 4 162
Grand Total 12268 13477 12794 11464 11661 10931 10218 9469 8103 6747 5760 4793 4180 121865
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County
Alachua
Baker
Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
DeSoto
Dixie
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Franklin
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Glades
Gulf
Hamiltan
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Halmes
Indian River
Jackson
Jefferson

Kindergarten

140
2
23
14
233
944
1
39
58
32

509

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Received Scholarship Funding

First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total

108
4
16
12
272
1123

48
67
58
a7
42

7

20
68
69
538

26
14

106
8
20
19
227

1087

45
66
47
33
50
12
5
701
197

oW oW

22
94
63
537

36
10

108
7
12
17
229
914

46
54
51
53
44
10

702
183
41

33

=]

18
78
61
457

33
13

113
9
23
17
235
504

43
B2
56
49
49

679
172
38

42

=5 W oo~y

15
76
68
217

37

2018-2019
78 88
¥ 6
17 13
10 15
223 219
856 748
1
53 43
61 50
53 54
23 38
42 33
11 10
3 4
671 661
157 145
49 57
1 3
43 38
& 4
4 3
5 3
10 4
8 3
22 24
76 a5
50 58
487 452
E] 1
32 34
11 15
8 5

70
12
16
19
218
718

39
41
49
27
52

604
148
48

37

17
78
59
462

33

11

65
]
18
10
182
608

46
37
40
33
34

570
111
33

28

oM

25

36
351

28

a5
6
Fil
15
08
445

22
24
31
23
36
1

5
408
'
14

24

Wk R

i
43
22
316

5o oo

41
8

4
11
103
464

28
33
28
30

352
85
16

35

11
a7
15
284

B w oM

29
5

4
15
80
367

12
16
25
17
17

5
302
52
14
3
22

32

258

%0 T ]

25
4

11
62
306

11
13
12
16
12

262
53
14

32

25

167

Pl

1016
84
170
189
2381
9486
6
456
577
541
460
475
92
63
7321
1744
455
36
406
49
24
32
87
39
212
839
572
5335
Z1
330
112
72
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County
Lafayette
Lake

Lee

Leon

Lewvy
Liberty
Madisan
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Miami-Dade
Moaonroe
MNassau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole
St. Johns
St. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannege
Taylor
Union
Volusia

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Received Scholarship Funding

2018-2019

Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
3 4 4 3 8 L 3 1 4 - 32
159 162 161 155 144 165 134 147 123 87 83 87 67 1674
117 132 124 129 119 106 113 95 M 71 63 46 42 1231
67 75 73 69 67 49 54 43 43 26 25 12 22 625
19 19 22 18 22 24 27 27 15 13 16 11 3 236
1 1 1 3
1 4 1 2 2 1 3 14
69 105 86 83 71 77 81 66 55 439 40 32 15 829
187 196 221 177 182 189 172 191 157 123 80 78 77 2030
26 28 39 31 28 30 32 24 2B 17 8 11 10 310
2696 3200 2885 2401 2377 2204 1709 1517 1289 956 857 723 608 23422
13 12 16 14 14 11 14 8 7 2 1 1 113
28 25 21 28 23 21 18 18 22 10 M1 5 1 232
44 56 49 56 43 57 42 32 16 14 8 15 i) 437
15 17 16 26 22 14 17 12 13 9 3 2 3 169
927 1137 1061 945 556 917 831 802 665 434 388 315 236 9614
276 346 329 351 371 322 335 338 309 239 194 173 130 3713
279 333 304 284 287 315 303 272 243 149 141 123 114 3147
109 151 137 148 142 132 132 99 106 88 69 68 57 1438
290 332 376 294 340 359 340 350 276 214 172 162 116 3621
357 356 415 360 362 358 325 312 270 215 202 156 138 3824
38 38 a4 48 50 38 42 30 24 16 13 11 10 403
39 40 43 35 39 27 32 35 32 18 21 14 13 388
59 67 68 72 78 56 65 58 52 44 27 33 B 687
137 152 155 154 146 134 122 118 73 66 54 45 38 1394
36 53 64 45 a8 39 33 36 29 7 16 16 9 431
187 243 202 177 176 180 156 133 118 86 73 60 41 1833
14 8 7 8 12 1 8 11 ¥ 7 & 3 gl 96
26 41 42 31 35 44 40 32 28 27 33 25 18 422
9 18 15 16 21 15 12 15 9 13 4 9 5 165

6 6 2 1 4 3 5 6 2 1 1 1 1 39
318 344 309 304 339 295 289 264 217 161 136 123 98 31597
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County
Wakulla
Walton
Washington
Grand Total

Kindergarten  First

3 11
"] 5
15 17
9773 11328

Step Up For Students (FTC)
Number of Students Who Received Scholarship Funding

2018-2019
Second Third Fourth Fifth
5 13 7 9 5 9 7 5 3
3 8 11 3 8 3 6 i 1
18 9 10 11 11 14 4 4 6

10815 9701 9B36 8327 B§429 7923 6686 4886 4399

9
4
3
3688

>
2
2
2952

Sixth Sewventh Eighth Minth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth' Grand Total

93

65
124
89733

Page 1386



County
Alachua
Baker
Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
DeSoto
Dixie
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Franklin
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Glades
Gulf
Hamilton
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Holmes
Indian River
Jackson

Step Up For Students (Gardiner)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications
2018-2019

P3 P4 PK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 i 8 9 10 11 12

15 18 27 31 28 27 23 23 24 19 15 13 17 11
i 2 2 1 3 1 1 1 3 a |
5 4 S 11 g 11 11 6 8 7 6 2 3 3
1 1 3 1 3 1 2 1

38 61 1 79 80 64 70 63 75 71 65 59 58 32 28

88 120 167 101 a7 98 92 8 102 92 84 101 80 49

1 1

1 5 5 6 5 7 5 3 4 3 2
6 7 7 B b 2 12 6 4 11 5 6
4 8 24 13 12 19 i7 24 12 24 15 18 10 10
6 12 12 12 7 14 9 10 18 5 11 11 10 10
1 Z 7 10 12 5] 5 9 14 14 6 13 11 il
1 2 1 2 2 2 1 1 2 1

2 4 2 1

29 63 94 54 42 62 63 73 72 70 64 61 60 49
B 8 19 19 13 17 13 18 23 20 17 16 14 11
3 4 12 8 11 9 7 6 8 5 9 5 & 2

i | 1 1
3 8 4 5 4 3 5 4 3 1 3
2 1 2 2 2 2 1 B 2 2
1 2 1 1
1 2 1 1
1 2 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 4 4 4 2 2 1 2

22 24 45 32 32 32 31 32 22 29 23 15 18 14
1 4 7 11 2 3 5 5 3 4 1 2 2

60 a2 113 110 73 97 91 37 84 69 89 74 51 36

1 1 1 1
3 7 10 13 8 B 9 11 11 12 6 ] 2 3
2 1 3 2 1 1 1 3 2 3 3

P = Do

36
72

10

10

11

46

20

37

Grand Total
299
17
96
18
880
1419

G4
108
220
161
136

15

902
220
99

47
21

1¥,]

23
391
51
1169

115
23
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County
Jefferson
Lafayette
Lake

Lee

Leon

Levy
Liberty
Madison
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Miami-Dade
Maonroe
Nassau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole
5t. Johns
5t. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannee
Taylor

Step Up For Students {Gardiner)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications

2018-2019
P2 P4

1 1 2 4 1 1 2 4
1 1 1 2
24 47 68 52 31 41 43 34 41 48
13 29 35 30 23 33 21 39 28 24
40 47 47 31 15 30 25 32 30 17
2 2 3 1 2 2 4 2 2
1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 2 1 1
18 24 26 34 17 23 31 25 30 28
18 23 27 17 3 3 23 W 21 g
10 6 16 ¥ 28 g 11 M WM
315 345 368 249 183 154 164 144 191 98
6 4 3 2 2 1 6 3 11
3 3 4 4 5 2 3 7 Ax 1
11 17 3 33 26 20 25 14 11 15

2 3 4 3 4 1 1 4 1
81 121 195 148 138 138 130 130 130 125
29 44 62 47 51 33 52 48 33 42
90 84 118 57 54 65 71 67 12 N
29 32 53 61 40 63 37 63 48 50
3z 3 65 57 39 58 59 58 61 65
35 50 9% 71 6 8 70 8 76 73
2 3 1 1 3 6 5 1 3 4
8 7 12 19 10 11 1z 16 14 1
7 24 21 12 7 17 16 15 2 25
29 45 77 51 51 56 58 54 61 49
5 15 26 25 12 16 10 11 13 16
20 27 40 24 32 34 22 22 18 24
1 1 2 1 6 4 3 6 3 3
7 3 6 4 7 3 4 4
1 1 1 4 1 2

50
26
33

21
18
10
100

15

106
37
60
47
34
57

10
20
49
14
24

=N

1

31
25
20
1
1

22
21
12
94

1
11

103
31
72
49
54
63

10
25
50
14
22

4

21
15
17

1

32
15
10

114

10

69
29
58
39
55
48

10
14
37
20

2

20
18
10

1

21

=

79

Mo

49
25
35
38
49
46

13
27
1

= P = WD

29
16
19

12
11

97

59
18
46
33
51
38

12
33
18
18

Grand Total

23
6
580
374
413
24

365
314
155
2695
45
67
254
29
1722
581
1020
682
8189
934
33
153
250
7127
236
345
38
58
14
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County
Union
Volusia
Wakulla
Walton
Washington
Grand Total

Step Up For Students (Gardiner)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications

2018-2019
P3 P4 PK K 1 2z 3 4 5 6 7 2} 9 10 11 12 Grand Total
3 1 2 1 i 3 1 12
23 34 80 53 38 42 66 48 56 54 59 41 38 27 22 681
3 1 1 1 3 2 1 1 3 1 3 4 1 25
11 14 15 7 8 5 2 6 5 2 2 3 4 2 86
3 3 1 2 1 g 9
1164 1547 2 2181 1628 1344 1450 1451 1480 1519 1368 1301 1205 1028 769 842 20319
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County
Alachua
Baker

Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
DeSoto
Dixie
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Glades
Gulf
Hamilton
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Holmes
Indian River
Jackson
lefferson
Lafayette
Lake

Lee

Step Up For Students (Gardiner)
Number of Students Who Received Scholarship Funding
2018-2019

P3 P4 K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 a 9 10 11

9 15 17 17 22 22 13 17 17 11 12 8 14
F i 1 1 1 1 Z

2 4 6 8 6 6 5 3 4 5 s 1

1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1]

28 47 59 49 39 48 42 8 57 49 42 44 26

57 75 91 47 49 56 47 44 50 61 54 62 60
1 1 1
1 3 1 3 1 4 4 3 3 1 3 2
3 3 2 5 5 5 6 8 5 4 9 3 6
2 5 16 g 8 13 8 11 7 15 13 13 6
4 9 13 7 5 11 6 5 12 3 6 9 8
1 1 3 6 7 3 7 6 6 12 6 11 9
1L 1 1 1 1 2
2 3 1

21 39 54 34 26 35 37 50 40 49 41 41 47

a 4 7 11 9 9 B 13 15 12 13 1, 12
2 3 7 6 10 8 2 5 6 3 8 4 4
i | b 3 5 2 2 3 2 2 1
1 1 2 2 2 & 2
1 L 1 1
1 1 1
1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 3 2 1 1

17 20 33 24 22 23 24 20 16 24 16 14 17

1 2 5 6 1 1 1 2 2 3 1 2

38 58 68 61 41 42 46 53 43 44 55 43 32
1 1 1
2 4 10 9 8 6 5 9 5 10 5 5 1
1 1 1 2 1 3 2
1 3 1 1 2 4 4
1 1 1

17 38 52 38 23 24 28 21 29 32 36 23 16

24
23

B =

11

25

17
17

12
3

27
41

22 L Qo o~ W

33

=R

12

26

20
10

Grand Total
206

9

59

9

639

827

37
75
142
113
97

584
140
2
28
i6

[¥%)]

14
293
30
682

a7
12
17

414
249
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County
Leon

Levy
Liberty
Madison
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Miami-Dade
Monroe
Nassau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole
St. lohns
5t. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannee
Taylor
Union
Volusia
Wakulla
Walton
Washington
Grand Total

Step Up For Students (Gardiner)
Number of Students Who Received Scholarship Funding

2018-201%9
P3 P4 K a) 2 3 4 5 (5] 7 8 9 10 11 12  Grand Total
28 39 32 22 13 23 13 24 23 14 27 17 12 6 14 307
1 2 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 12
1 1 1 b ! 4
1 1 d: 3
13 18 20 17 11 13 17 15 13 22 15 14 27 16 8 239
9 12 20 B 22 15 11 11 14 17 13 16 8 7 10 197
7 3 13 5 i 7 g 12 13 6 10 7 g 1 6 114
230 263 250 158 122 23 95 21 112 61 67 57 84 62 &0 1811
5 4 3 1 2 4 2 7 2 1 2 1 34
1 1 2 5 2 2 4 T 1 2 3 7] 37
5 14 23 23 18 13 16 9 7 8 123 3 7 3 171
2 2 3 3 3 1 3 L 1 1 . 1 21
46 85 92 84 13 69 78 76 73 75 78 75 53 a5 40 1045
20 33 38 27 38 16 35 30 25 27 29 21 17, 15 7 378
12 70 85 29 36 432 42 39 48 54 47 49 46 25 32 716
20 19 28 39 28 36 17 43 33 40 36 38 32 29 25 463
16 28 40 36 23 33 E1 39 38 49 62 42 45 33 37 557
16 34 45 a3 38 50 41 42 49 52 39 50 42 39 24 594
1 2 2 1 3 1 3 15
& 5 9 7 7 4 & 11 10 7 ] 8 6 4 101
3 17 11 7 ] 11 8 10 14 18 16 21 11 9 7 169
21 34 48 29 30 36 41 37 48 37 41 42 29 22 22 517
11 12 17 18 4 8 (] ] 9 12 11 10 16 10 11 165
16 20 24 16 24 19 17 13 10 15 13 18 6 8 10 229
1 1 5 = 1 2 2 4 19
5 5 2 b 2 3 3 6 5 3 2 2 46
a 1 2 1 1 1 2 ¢ 10
2 2 1 6
14 27 42 32 25 25 43 35 38 46 40 30 i 27 22 16 462
1 1 1 1 3 1 2 4 1 15
a8 10 11 5 5 4 1 3 2 2 3 4 1 59
1 i 1 1 1 g5
792 1121 1341 967 882 888 860 927 947 950 935 864 782 595 580 13411
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County
Alachua
Baker
Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
Dade
DeSoto
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Franklin
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Hamilton
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hilisborough
Holmes
indian River
Island
Jackson
lefferson
Lafayette
Lake

2
8

45

D o= =W

30

S M D i

10

29

Step Up For Students (Reading)

Number of Students Who Received Funding

2018-2019

Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh

9

4
27
2
31
312

23
74
66

43
171

51

14
5
25

26
319

24
11
72
49
43
126

18
15
20

bt

S ]

17
27
108

24

50

Twelfth Grand Total

25
17
52
P
57
676

50
16
147
121
95
327

105

Page 142



County

Lee

Leon

Lewy
Liberty
Madison
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Monroe
Massau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole
St. Jlohns
St. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannee
Taylor
Volusia
Wakulla
Walton
Washington
Grand Total

Step Up For Students (Reading)
Number of Students Who Received Funding

Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth
7

1 29
2

1

17 63
9 75
4 29
3

8

5 7
2 11
132 647
2 11
19 79
29 88
3 41
21 47
b6

2 3
13 58
25 98
2 57
3 28
3 1
2 11
1

2 15
2

2 9
1 1
0 0 (v} 478 2594

2018-2019
Fifth  Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth

4

48

1

2

1

72

71

28

6

4

10

17
714

16

71

78

45

60

56
137
62
18

o ]

13

2567 0 0 0 0

Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
11

78

3

3

7

152

155

61

13
22
30
1494
29
169
195
89
128
10

128
260
121
49
17
30

19

0 0 0 5639
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Step Up For Students (Reading)
Number of Students Who Were Approved

2018-2019
County Kindergarten  First Second Third Fourth Fifth  Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
Alachua 2 9 14 25
Baker 4 5 5
Bay 9 27 25 61
Bradford 2 2
Brevard i1 26 57
Broward 45 313 320 678
Calhoun 2 3 5
Charlotte 3 23 24 50
Citrus 1 4 11 16
Clay 1 74 72 147
Collier & 66 49 121
Columbia 9 43 43 85
Dade 31 171 126 2 378
DaSoto 1 3 4
Duval 5 28 18 51
Escambia 8 36 15 59
Flagler 2 19 20 41
Franklin 4 16 3 23
Gadsden 5 2 7
Gilchrist 4 4
Hamilton 2 1 3
Hardee = 2 1 4
Hendry 1 1 2
Hernando 10 11 18 39
Highlands 3 28 27 58
Hillsborough 29 141 108 278
Holmes 3 3
Indian River 6 32 24 62
Island 1
lackson 1 1
Jefferson 1 1
Lafayette 2 4 2 A 8
Lake 4 51 50 105
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Step Up For Students (Reading)
Number of Students Who Were Approved

2018-2019

County Kindergarten  First Second Third Fourth Fifth  Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
Lee 7 4 11
Leon 1 28 48 78
Levy 2 1 3
Liberty 1 2 3
Madison B 1 7
Manatee 17 64 73 i 154
Marion 9 75 71 155
Martin 4 29 28 61
Monroe 3 B 9
MNassau 1 4 13
Okaloosa 5 7 11 23
Okeechobee 2 11 17 30
Orange 134 648 715 1497
Osceola 2 11 16 29
Palm Beach 19 80 71 170
Pasco 29 88 79 196
Pinellas 3 42 45 90
Paolk 21 47 60 128
Putnam [ 4 10
Santa Rosa 2 3 1 [
Sarasota 13 59 57 129
Seminole 25 98 137 260
St. Johns 2 57 62 121
5t. Lucie 3 28 18 49
Sumter 1 1 2 ' 4
Suwannee 2 11 4 17
Taylor 1 1
Volusia 2 16 13 31
Wakulla 2 1 3
Walton 2 9 ) 20
Washington 1 1 2
Grand Total 0 0 0 481 2602 2575 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 5658
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County
Alachua
Baker

Bay
Bradford
Brevard
Broward
Calhoun
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Collier
Columbia
Dade
DeSoto
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Franklin
Gadsden
Gilchrist
Hamilton
Hardee
Hendry
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Holmes
Indian River
Jackson
Jefferson
Lafayette
Lake

Lee

Step Up For Students (Reading)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications
2018-2019
Kindergartern First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh
2 10 i5

4 6 1
10 30 25
2
32 27 1
54 331 345 4
2 3
3 23 24
1 4 11
& I 75 1
6 67 51
10 49 46
1 43 194 135 4
1 3
5 32 20 1
8 36 16 1
2 20 20 1
5 16 3
5 2
4 1
2 1
1 2 1
1 1
10 11 18
4 28 29 1
35 157 114 4 1
4
b 32 24 1
1
1
2 4 2
6 S5 56 1
8 4

Twelfth Grand Total
27

11

65

2

60

734

50
16
157
124
105
377

118
12
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County
Leon

Levy
Liberty
Madison
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Monroe
Massau
Okaloosa
Okeechobee
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Putnam
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminole
5t. Johns
St. Lucie
Sumter
Suwannes
Tayler
Volusia
Wakulia
Walton
Washington
Grand Total

Step Up For Students (Reading)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications
2018-2019

Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth Fifth  Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth  Tenth
4 29 49
2 1
1 2
6 1
17 69 75 2
9 79 74
4 32 30
3 6
1 4
5 8 11
3 11 18
2 145 672 758 1
2 11 16 1 1.
21 86 76
a0 93 82 1
4 43 43
21 52 62
6 3
2 4 1
13 61 57 3
3 28 102 144 3
3 62 63
4 30 13 1
1 1 3
2 11 4
1
2 3 17 14
2 1
2 9
1 1
0 2 4 542 2753 2714 28 4 1 2 o

Eleventh

Twelfth Grand Total

82
3

3

7
163
162
66

14
24
32
1579
31
183
206
a5
135

134
278
128
53
17
36
20

6050

Page 147



County
Alachua
Baker
Broward
Charlotte
Columbia
Dade

Duval
Escambia
Highlands
Hillsborough
Lake

Lee

Leon

Lewvy
Manatee
Marion
Monroe
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk

Santa Rosa
Seminale
5t. lohns
Suwannee
Volusia
Grand Total

Kindergarten

First Second Third Fourth Fifth

Step Up For Students (Hope)
Number of Students Who Received Funding

1

2018-2019

Sixth Seventh Eighth

Bl b

[ I TS S ]

25 21

Rl

eSS P W SN T G )

12

1

ninth

Tenth Eleventh

11

I e S

Twelfth Grand Total

(=1
L T N Y Y e i " R

R (S T R S S T ]

1

F-Y

o B W o e~ th W

0 123
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County
Alachua
Brevard
Broward
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Dade
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Gadsden
Hamilton
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Lake

Lee

Leon
Marion
Martin
Monroe
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Santa Rosa
Sarasota
Seminaole
5t Johns
St. Lucie
Sumter

Kindergarten  First

Step Up For Students (Hope)
Number of Students Who Were Awarded

Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Sewventh Eighth

1

3

4
1
1 1
1
1
T
1
1 1
2
1
3 3
2 1
1
1
2 | 2
1
2
1
1
1

2018-2019

1

1
1 1 1
1

1L
h 1 1
2

1

2 1
2
1

1
1
4 8 1
A
1 1 1
1 1

1
1
1 2

Ninth  Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total

1
1
1
2
1
1
1
F 1
1 1
1
2 3
1 1
1 1
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County
Suwannee
Volusia
Wakulla
Grand Total

Kindergarten

1

Step Up For Students (Hope)

Number of Students Who Were Awarded

2018-2019

First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth

10

12

20

|
1

23

1

19

1

23

1

Ninth  Tenth

12

10

Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
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County
Alachua
Baker
Brevard
Broward
Charlotte
Citrus
Clay
Columbia
Dade
Duval
Escambia
Flagler
Gadsden
Hamilton
Hernando
Highlands
Hillsborough
Lake
Lee
Leon
Lewy
Manatee
Marion
Martin
Monroe
Nassau
Orange
Osceola
Palm Beach
Pasco
Pinellas
Polk
Santa Rosa

Kindergarten

First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth

2 3
1
1

1

3
3

1

1 2
2
1

2 i
1

2 1

ik 2

1 1

Step Up For Students (Hope)

Number of Students Who Completed Applications

1

(Y

2018-2019
2
1 3
4 4
1
1
1
1
5 3
2 2 2
4
1 %
2
4 2 1
3
1 1
1
1
3 6 3
1
2 5 6
1 2
1 5 3
1 1 5
3
1

2

12

W b ow oo b

Ninth

[0 R G SR O

Tenth
1

= MJ o= L

Eleventh

Twelfth Grand Total
o

2

13

23

2

15
15
10

W e

2l
16
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Step Up For Students (Hope)
Number of Students Who Completed Applications

2018-2019

County Kindergarten First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth Seventh Eighth Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Grand Total
Sarasota 1 1
Seminole 1 2 2 3 1 1 1 11
St Johns 1 1 2
St. Johns 1 1 s 4
5t. Lucle 1 1 2
Sumter 1 1
Suwannee 1 2 1 1 1 6
Volusia 2 1 1 1 i | 2 2 3 13
Wakulla 1 1 2
Walton 1 1

Grand Total 10 14 13 26 33 46 52 59 24 27 23 7 0 340
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Step Up For Students

SCHOLARSHIP CASH FLOW
Fiscal 2019 Fiscal 2019
July Sugust Soptambar Octabes Howvember Degember January Fabruary March April May Jime Total

Ciparing Caik & Cash Equivalents {5317,05E) 540,150,248 SH1,7B5,316 | (426,850,843) £73.031B83 £24,163,981 SR 151,006 77,865,122 {5687,196) 53,524,961 £78,837.070 (S15,475,657) [5317.0%6)
Greas Donations 541657192 | $42.7I4.058 $51,317,297 | $A3341B37 |  $62,633123 | G1I19G4205  S42510804 $2R,707,256 | 44879060 | 578,293,026 $19.556.441 | SI10452%2 | SEI4,TASAL
Fiorida admin alicwance {5L245.716]]  [51.451.048) 5530510 [s1480.7031) (518854241 ($3.358.626)  (51.275.557) (sriet8] (51346372 (52351791 ($586,653)| ($931,359)}  [518,627,135)

Met Donationt S40.407ATT | 341263110 S49777.778 | 3avssz134| Se0,0a3635 | 3108595579 | 3417433299 537546039 | 343532888 576,041,235 518,965,748 | $30,112,933 |  $508,087,E%%
Ceholarphip Paymants (5153 966,065 (5157, 548,945 [$157 455 839) [5155,025,313) |5629,041.161)
Paymints Recelved fram Sehosls $259,827 £171,958 5543127 §2.029,592 $3RB.AG3 5040, 481 £469,727 £1,388 4B0 SE79.472 $270.813 752 848 %451 945 28,345,753
Line of Credit 540,000,000 | (S40,600,000) £40,000,000 | {45,000,000) 445,000,000
Balance at end of month " 540,350,243 | 561785316 |  {526.859,843)| S$23.051.883 |  584.163.981 536,151,096 | 577.865.122 [5667,199 53524861 | s79.837.070|  (515.479.647)] 10086731 $10,086.231
Additional Information:

LIPS mainbens 3 S0 mlfiaa line of credic o covar sy vhot [Tl
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Step Up For Students
Detailed Accounting of Administrative Funds

A detailed accounting of how the organization spent its administrative funds is contained on
page 5 of the statutorily required audit financial statements. A copy of this audited schedule
follows. This detailed accounting also includes the expenditure from scholarship application
and service fees.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Funcbional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2047)

an
Program Services Supporting Servicer
Florida Abbuma  Communiations, School
TazCredlt  Opporfunity Policy snd Gurdines  Dwwelopmend Scholarship  Advocacy Total Gereral  Developmenl Talal
Schelarship  Scholarship Public Scholsrship  and Studenl  Sendee and Civie Hapir FReading Prigram amd . and Tetal 7

Schuter sha il g s §Ensae § e § - 4 - 1 - 3 R | « & S +  §65097R0E}  § - & - § GSDITIE} & 540456008
Selanes and wages 147,085 192958 LMLME  124R 1E08 M0 160N 19,048 6521 9,445 756 18086 1,289,060 12743802 11347 945
Payrel faers £od amployee bann®ts 1,086,394 uin 512,362 31485 BLv A H ] s 57,606 FERE L fen 2454320 466,962 304 540 12358 240
Comiract serviees 299,95 108,118 76,048 A0 10773 192360 war 12,00 10,808 1,308479 397,108 141,246 1,847 53¢ 754,247
Csher costy LR 1148 146173 15500 43,158 &r 21,067 e 1,81 £38.538 128538 183,520 850,590 E86.2%
R TR a0 659 18,720 68978 . 1,10 LRL: ] 34m shsan 143,085 81433 e 538 M
Rechaing and adhvetding 14,510 45,078 W WIsH 108 0,68 190 eSS 18862 1542 10,380 w5 #44,950 61780
Tewuul, boogrg and mealy 18,580 W 1B r.se THH FiRE B5AM 108 1851 42504 100,818 82,634 618,358 s
Profesnions! [2as L) E 42,408 B 1,511 mnan 4 ns L) nn 3T 68,382 §07.403 2474
Bark champes, lees aod nharest 00008 - w - i - n § § 08,361 1ms 182 w31 288 24208
Raprs wred maiiwnc 12847 L] 1,308 5,048 ] . THie 1168 1428 mamn LU 42,708 48387 22253
Teischone AN 7.8 uM 49,185 BEM 5 E474 1 541 LILE i um mm 3k
Devinonficn 106,14 m a2 100,887 .58 - T L 149 mon 1841 15,681 a2 =T
Peing and postige WA 10,004 s T.hs% 120% L ] 5. i1 o (LT . $s6 e m
Ineararcn L1 1251 L’ 54,10 nus . 5350 1354 (RTH o s 0 a2 o
Taengerary labor 104845 B - - . R - . . 158,695 wnns = WA ma
Ofice pxpenaey nE 10014 nns 653 (5 L] 18N 1008 "r 1054804 182 15,1M8 143808 25N
irita-aff of sono0d receadlen 15TH - . - - - . - - 1w - s T
Loy o dspesal of rogerly wed
et : . > . - . : E . - s - - 33
Tutal SO0 % ASHAM 4 1SS SNAAM 5 LMAMT 5 TR § AmSH 8 1L § 0N SCREINE S LIILAM S 24NN § BASTZIN § Ssaaaan

Seq nzies i cosmolciaied fruncal salemenly
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Step Up For Students, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Step Up For Students, Inc. and
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and
the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of
June 30, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING




Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries’ 2018 consolidated financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements in our report dated October 30, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Emphasis of Matter — Change in Accounting

As discussed in Note 1 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, Step Up For Students,
Inc. and its subsidiaries adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Other Matters — Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying consolidating statement of financial position and consolidating statement
of activities is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance, as
required by State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, is also presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18,
2019, on our consideration of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its
subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Step Up For Students,
Inc. and its subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

PSSk VS LLP

Orlando, Florida
December 18, 2019



Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2019
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 63,558,310 $ 19,085,583
Pledges receivable, less allowance for uncollectible pledges
of $20,000,000 in 2019 and 2018 542,649,336 502,820,023
Accounts and grants receivable, less allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $661,235 and $102,760 in 2019 and 2018, respectively 5,088,297 5,137,782
Prepaid expenses and other assets 858,639 701,402
Funds held in trust for students 82,182,389 58,467,378
Total current assets 694,336,971 586,212,168
Restricted certificate of deposit 130,000 196,000
Property and equipment, net 2,896,104 2,986,165
Total assets $ 697,363,075 $ 589,394,333
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 828,692 $ 289,742
Accrued expenses 2,262,437 1,946,954
Line of credit 35,000,000 14,986,632
Funds held in trust for students liability 82,182,389 58,467,378
Total current liabilities 120,273,518 75,690,706
Commitments (Note 6)
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 6,621,589 8,115,532
With donor restrictions 570,467,968 505,588,095
Total net assets 577,089,557 513,703,627
Total liabilities and net assets $ 697,363,075 $ 589,394,333

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2018)

2019
Without Donor With Donor Total
Restrictions Restrictions Total 2018
Revenues and support:
Contributions and grants:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program, net $ 18,622,135 $ 644,767,033 663,389,168 $ 679,111,068
Hope Scholarship Program 1,264,022 40,870,044 42,134,066 -
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program 180,772 3,439,665 3,620,437 21,009,746
Gardiner Scholarship Program 3,537,044 - 3,537,044 2,834,231
Reading Scholarship Program 84,280 - 84,280 -
Grants and other contributions 771,443 1,976,730 2,748,173 3,094,815
Other revenue and interest income 692,448 1,446,841 2,139,289 1,260,909
Scholarship service contract revenue 981,486 - 981,486 718,720
Net assets released from restrictions 627,620,440 (627,620,440) - -
Total revenues and support 653,754,070 64,879,873 718,633,943 708,029,489
Expenses:
Program services:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program 625,981,768 - 625,981,768 648,283,010
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program 9,380,985 - 9,380,985 9,926,404
Gardiner Scholarship Program 4,993,457 - 4,993,457 3,418,161
School Development and Student Learning 1,785,546 - 1,785,546 1,893,947
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 1,732,298 - 1,732,298 3,565,575
Hope Scholarship Program 1,427,683 - 1,427,683 151,511
Scholarship Service Contract 1,010,028 - 1,010,028 766,733
Advocacy and Civic Engagement 934,496 - 934,496 472,526
Reading Scholarship Program 827,726 - 827,726 126,091
Family Empowerment Scholarship 107,480 - 107,480 -
Total program services 648,181,467 - 648,181,467 668,603,958
Supporting services:
General and administrative 4,399,635 - 4,399,635 3,918,934
Development and fundraising 2,666,911 - 2,666,911 2,449,330
Total supporting services 7,066,546 - 7,066,546 6,368,264
Total expenses 655,248,013 - 655,248,013 674,972,222
Change in net assets (1,493,943) 64,879,873 63,385,930 33,057,267
Net assets:
Beginning 8,115,532 505,588,095 513,703,627 480,646,360
Ending $ 6,621,589 $ 570,467,968 577,089,557 $ 513,703,627

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2019

(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2018)

2019

Program Services

Florida Alabama School Communications,
Tax Credit Tax Credit Gardiner Development Policy and Hope Scholarship Advocacy Reading Family Total
Scholarship Scholarship Scholarship and Student Public Scholarship Service and Civic Scholarship Empowerment Program
Program Program Program Learning Affairs Program Contract Engagement Program Scholarship Services

Scholarships and grants $ 615,252,820 $ 8,781,932 $ - $ - $ - $ 290,968 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 624,325,720
Salaries and wages 5,475,165 224,085 3,537,075 921,703 895,571 850,646 494,778 257,410 524,890 89,553 13,270,876
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 1,617,979 37,469 451,716 300,930 272,298 43,842 104,335 77,665 34,912 14,688 2,955,834
Contract services 376,932 160,866 159,122 136,680 237,248 20,903 235,711 93,677 84,043 - 1,505,182
Other costs 842,721 27,915 86,285 108,298 87,426 22,887 20,913 143,101 23,938 198 1,363,682
Recruiting and advertising 475,133 12,011 225,012 - 10,716 73,668 6,656 8,240 52,763 26 864,225
Rent 266,321 25,064 157,461 57,623 50,230 33,895 33,895 27,116 33,895 - 685,500
Travel, lodging and meals 85,425 55,376 16,254 112,856 46,435 7,782 12,961 252,264 2,863 2,414 594,630
Depreciation 224,219 1,006 180,241 48,513 39,952 28,537 28,537 23,459 28,537 - 603,001
Professional fees 15,898 - 1,382 389 20,331 229 14,644 183 229 - 53,285
Write-off of school receivables 578,562 25,000 - - - - - - - - 603,562
Repairs and maintenance 140,505 472 102,047 29,135 23,994 17,138 17,138 13,711 17,138 - 361,278
Printing and postage 154,155 12,913 11,019 19,509 2,708 9,711 14,314 8,707 4,356 - 237,392
Telephone 102,469 10,937 43,433 26,985 20,050 4,786 4,829 12,045 4,855 601 230,990
Bank charges and fees 244,662 - (45,574) - - 10,191 - - 3,121 - 212,400
Insurance 85,327 1,629 64,588 18,462 15,204 10,860 10,860 9,706 10,860 - 227,496
Office expenses 40,241 4,310 3,396 4,463 10,135 1,640 741 7,212 1,326 - 73,464
Temporary labor 3,234 - - - - - 9,716 - - - 12,950

Total $ 625,981,768 $ 9,380,985 $ 4,993,457 $ 1,785546 $ 1,732,298 $ 1427683 $ 1,010,028 $ 934,496 $ 827,726  $ 107,480  $ 648,181,467

(Continued)



Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2018)

2019

Supporting Services

General Development Total Total
and and Supporting Total 2018
Administrative Fundraising Services Expenses Expenses

Scholarships and grants - $ - $ - $ 624,325,720 $ 650,979,063
Salaries and wages 1,462,006 1,378,519 2,840,525 16,111,401 12,743,602
Payroll taxes and employee benefits 574,775 336,602 911,377 3,867,211 3,225,823
Contract services 829,035 86,613 915,648 2,420,830 1,847,534
Other costs 330,505 212,287 542,792 1,906,474 950,590
Recruiting and advertising 72,551 43,527 116,078 980,303 661,958
Rent 123,441 67,131 190,572 876,072 809,539
Travel, lodging and meals 126,364 147,256 273,620 868,250 616,355
Depreciation 100,760 54,849 155,609 758,610 384,633
Professional fees 499,164 125,436 624,600 677,885 507,403
Write-off of school receivables - - - 603,562 126,721
Repairs and maintenance 72,916 32,563 105,479 466,757 408,807
Printing and postage 34,834 83,513 118,347 355,739 308,886
Telephone 31,703 36,768 68,471 299,461 384,792
Bank charges and fees 85,772 - 85,772 298,172 431,288
Insurance 39,435 21,652 61,087 288,583 274,012
Office expenses 16,374 40,195 56,569 130,033 143,806
Temporary labor - - - 12,950 167,410

Total 4,399,635 $ 2,666,911 $ 7,066,546 $ 655,248,013 $ 674,972,222

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2019
(With Summarized Comparative Information for June 30, 2018)

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $ 63,385,930 $ 33,057,267
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 758,610 384,633
Provision for uncollectible pledges 13,436,770 19,450,366
Write-off of school receivables 603,562 126,721

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Pledges receivable
Accounts and grants receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Funds held in trust for students
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Funds held in trust for students liability
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Decrease in restricted certificate of deposit
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on line of credit
Repayments on line of credit
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning

Ending
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for interest

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

(53,266,083)
(554,077)
(157,237)

(23,715,011)

(85,622,856)
(3,671,712)
(122,190)
(22,236,359)

538,950 148,977
315,483 372,792
23,715,011 22,236,359
25,061,908 (35,876,002)
(668,549) (1,957,806)
66,000 29,000
(602,549) (1,928,806)
90,000,000 20,000,000
(69,986,632) (5,013,368)
20,013,368 14,986,632
44,472,727 (22,818,176)
19,085,583 41,903,759
$ 63,558,310 $ 19,085,583
$ 130714 $ 13,368




Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of organization: The primary mission of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the Organization) is to empower parents to pursue and engage in the most appropriate
learning options for their children, with an emphasis on families who lack the information and financial
resources to access these options. By pursuing this mission, the Organization helps public education
fulfill the promise of equal opportunity.

Step Up For Students, Inc. (Step Up For Students) is a not-for-profit organization incorporated on
February 18, 2000. Through the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program, Step Up For Students served
100,415 and 106,548 students in 1,811 and 1,818 private schools across Florida during the 2018 — 2019
and 2017 — 2018 school years, respectively.

Additionally, Step Up For Students administers the Gardiner Scholarship Program. The Gardiner
Scholarship Program was created to provide the option for parents to better meet the individual educational
needs of an eligible child. The Gardiner Scholarship Program provides eligible students a scholarship that
can be used to purchase approved services or products. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, Step Up For Students administered the program on behalf of the State of Florida for 11,845 and
9,601 eligible children, respectively.

The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund, LLC (Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund) is a not-for-
profit limited liability company incorporated on October 4, 2013, whose sole member is Step Up For
Students. The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund was established to operate under the standards
prescribed by the Alabama Accountability Act of 2013. Through the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Fund K-12 scholarship program, 1,568 and 1,590 children received scholarships to attend private schools
for the 2018 — 2019 and 2017 — 2018 school years, respectively.

The C2 Opportunity Scholarships, LLC (C2) is a not-for-profit limited liability company incorporated on
November 28, 2018, whose sole member is Step Up For Students. C2 was established to operate under
the standards prescribed by the Alabama Accountability Act of 2013. Through the C2 K-12 scholarship
program, there were no scholarships made during the year ended June 30, 2019.

The Alabama Opportunity Action Fund (AOAF) is a not-for-profit organization incorporated on March 15,
2019, affiliated to Step Up For Students through common control and management, with the support of
the American Federation for Children to create positive grassroots and legislative influence for
scholarship programs and school choice programs in Alabama. AOAF brought dozens of scholarship
families from around the State to the Statehouse to share their stories with Legislators and ask them to
continue supporting the scholarship program. Additionally, AOAF spent the session creating a grassroots
team to support an education savings account for special needs students, which it continues to grow.



Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 1.

Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following is a summary of the programs operated by the Organization:

Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program: Step Up For Students, Inc. is approved under Florida
Statute 1002.395 to serve as a Scholarship Funding Organization (SFO). Since July 1, 2011,
Step Up For Students has been the predominate Florida SFO. As an SFO, Step Up For Students
can solicit and receive corporate contributions that are entitled to a state tax credit against 100%
of corporate income tax, insurance premium tax, and direct-pay sales tax liabilities, 90% of
alcoholic beverage tax liabilities, and 50% of oil and gas severance tax liabilities. Those
contributions, in turn, must be spent to provide scholarships to low income Florida school children
in compliance with the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program. For the 2018 — 2019 school year
and the 2017 — 2018 school year, qualified students received a maximum scholarship of $7,111
and $6,920, respectively, to attend a private school that have been approved by the State of
Florida or $750 for transportation to an out-of-district public school. Scholarships are expensed
when a student attends a qualified school. Step Up For Students is allowed to use up to 3% of the
contributions collected to administer the scholarship program.

Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program: The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund and
C2 were established to operate under standards prescribed in the Alabama Accountability Act of
2013 and is approved under the Alabama Department of Revenue to serve as a Scholarship
Granting Organization (SGO). In accordance with the Alabama Accountability Act of 2013 and the
Administrative Rulings by the Alabama Department of Revenue, the Alabama Opportunity
Scholarship Fund and C2 must use at least 95% of revenue from credit eligible scholarship
donations and all interest and investment income attributable to these scholarship funds for
educational scholarships. Therefore, the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund and C2 may use
no more than 5% of the amount of its scholarship donations for purposes other than making
scholarship grants. As an SGO, the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund and C2 can solicit
and receive corporate and individual donations that entitle the donors to certain tax credits
administrated by the Alabama Department of Revenue.

School Development and Student Learning: This program oversees the process development
intended to assist schools and families in establishing and maintaining collaborative partnerships
that ensure the academic, social and emotional success of every child; while at the same time,
upholding the belief that the ultimate responsibility for the education of the child resides with the
parent.

Gardiner Scholarship Program: In June 2014, legislation creating scholarships for special
needs children was signed into law in Florida. This scholarship is for Florida students in
kindergarten through 12th grade with one of the following disabilities: Autism, Muscular
Dystrophy, Cerebral palsy, Down syndrome, Prader-Willi syndrome, Spina bifida, Williams
syndrome, Intellectual Disability (severe cognitive impairment), Phelan McDermid Syndrome, rare
diseases as defined by the National Organization for Rare Disorders, Anaphylaxis, deaf, visually
impaired, dual sensory impaired, traumatic brain injured, hospital or home bound. Also,
kindergarten students deemed “high risk” because of developmental delays may be eligible. The
students need either an Individual Education Plan (IEP) from a Florida school district or a formal
diagnosis from a licensed physician or psychologist to qualify. Students can participate in this
scholarship as part of home education; however, they cannot be enrolled in a public school or be
receiving any other state-sponsored scholarship, including the McKay Scholarship or the Florida
Tax Credit Scholarship. A Gardiner Scholarship account is established for each child that is
awarded a special needs scholarship. Parents use this money to personalize the education of
their children with unique abilities by directing money towards a combination of programs and
state approved providers. These include schools, therapists, specialists, curriculum and
technology and college savings accounts.



Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Step Up For Students, per the provisions of state statute, receives an administrative fee of 3% of
funded scholarships from the State of Florida to cover the administration of the program on behalf of
the State of Florida. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, Step Up For Students received
an administrative fee for administering the program on behalf of the State of Florida in the amount of
approximately $3,537,000 and $2,834,000, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, Step Up For Students distributed approximately
$97.8 million and $77.2 million, leaving a balance of approximately $79.5 million and $58.5 million,
respectively, which is recorded in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position as
both an asset and liability. Step Up For Students is acting as an agent for this program; therefore,
there are no revenues and expenses reported on the accompanying consolidated statement of
activities for scholarship funds received and distributed from the State of Florida.

e Communications, Policy and Public Affairs: This program takes the message of the scholarship
program to constituency groups, community and political leaders, and local, state and national news
publications. It creates monthly student spotlights, issues press releases on topics of special concern,
writes commentary for various publications and publishes a newsletter. The group also analyzes
demographic, achievement and participation data and trends in the program and school choice
movement.

e Advocacy and Civic Engagement: This program, through the Florida Parent Network, organizes
parents and supporters who believe children should be educated based on how they learn, rather
than where they live. This includes parents who utilize scholarships as well as charter, magnet, home
and virtual schools. The Florida Parent Network educates, informs and trains parents to be advocates
and supporters for the protections and expansion of choice opportunities. Advocacy and civic
engagement provides these services to parents of children participating in programs administered by
the Organization and to parents utilizing other choice options under contract service agreements with
choice advocacy groups.

e Scholarship Service Contract: Step Up For Students has contracted with Empower lllinois, an
approved 501(c)(3), Scholarship Granting Organization (SGO) in the State of lllinois, that administers
the lllinois Invest in Kids Scholarship program, a tax credit scholarship program. Effective November
2017, Step Up For Students has provided scholarship administration services for Empower lllinois,
both in-house and through a third-party partner. Empower lllinois can solicit and receive corporate
and individual contributions that are entitled to a 75% state tax credit of corporate and individual state
income tax. Those contributions, in turn must be spent to provide scholarships to low income lllinois
school children in compliance with the Invest in Kids Act. For the 2018 — 2019 school year, qualified
students received scholarships of up to $13,336, or for Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
students, up to $26,673, to attend a participating private school within the State of lllinois. Scholarships
are expended when a student attends a participating school. Empower lllinois is allowed to use up to
5% of the contributions collected to administer this program, and Step Up For Students is compensated
for its work by Empower lllinois via those administrative funds.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Hope Scholarship Program: The Hope Scholarship Program was established by Florida Statute
1002.40, which was created in 2018 to provide the option of private-school scholarships to students in
public schools who have experienced acts of bullying and intimidation. Step Up For Students, as an
approved Scholarship Funding Organization (SFO), is authorized to administer Hope Scholarships.
The Hope law provides that automobile buyers may redirect up to $105 of their state taxes on each
purchase toward an authorized SFO. Those contributions must be used to provide tuition
scholarships to participating private schools or a $750 transportation scholarship to a public school in
another district. Any unused funds in the Hope Scholarship Program can be used to fund
scholarships to students in the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program in the next State of Florida
fiscal year. The maximum tuition scholarships for 2018 — 2019 are $6,519 for elementary grades,
$6,815 for middle school and $7,111 for high school. Step Up for Students is allowed to use up to 3%
of the contributions to administer the scholarship. The Hope Scholarship Program became effective
for the 2018 — 2019 school year and served 128 students. During the year ended June 30, 2019, Step
Up For Students collected $42,134,066 of eligible contributions. Step Up For Students claimed an
administrative allowance of $1,264,022 and expended $290,968 for scholarships during the year
ended June 30, 2019.

Reading Scholarship Program: The Reading Scholarship Program was established by Florida
Statute 1002.411, which was created in 2018 to provide academic support for elementary school
students who struggle in reading in district or charter schools. Step Up For Students, as an approved
Scholarship Funding Organization (SFO), is authorized to administer the program. The scholarship is
available to students in third- through fifth-grade who have scored a Level 1 or 2 on the English
Language Arts section of the Florida Standards Assessment (FSA). Each scholarship is worth $500,
which the parent can use to pay for tuition and fees related to part-time tutoring, summer and after-
school literacy programs, instructional materials and more. The funding is from direct state
appropriation. A Reading Scholarship account is established for each child that is awarded a reading
scholarship. The Reading Scholarship Program became effective for the 2018 — 2019 school year
and served 5,658 students.

Step Up For Students, per the provisions of state statute, receives an administrative fee of 3% of
funded scholarships from the State of Florida to cover the administration of the program on behalf of
the State of Florida. During the year ended June 30, 2019, Step Up For Students received an
administrative fee for administering the program on behalf of the State of Florida in the amount of
approximately $84,000.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, Step Up For Students distributed approximately $304,000,
leaving a balance of approximately $2.7 million, which is recorded in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position as both an asset and liability. Step Up For Students is acting as an
agent for this program, therefore, there are no revenues and expenses reported on the accompanying
consolidated statement of activities for scholarship funds received and distributed from the State of
Florida.

Family Empowerment Scholarship: In May 2019, Governor Ron Desantis signed into law the
Family Empowerment Scholarship, which is intended to help reduce the waiting list for the Florida Tax
Credit Scholarship Program and similarly services students from low-income and working-class
households. Step Up For Students worked directly with the State Department of Education to
administer this scholarship and its first-year goal in 2019 — 2020 is to serve 18,000 K-12 students.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A summary of the Organization’s significant accounting policies follows:

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Step Up For
Students and its wholly owned subsidiaries, the Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund, LLC and C2
Opportunity Scholarships, LLC. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Alabama Opportunity Action Fund, which is affiliated to Step Up For Students through common control
and management. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Comparative financial statements: The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year
summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which
the summarized information was derived.

Use of estimates: The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
support, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of presentation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting.

A not-for-profit organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to two classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions. Accordingly,
net assets of the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations,
but may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met either by actions of the Organization, passage of time, or permanently maintained by the Organization.
When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization
considers all short-term securities purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents excludes funds held in trust for students.

The Organization maintains their cash accounts at commercial banks, which are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Balances exceed amounts insured by the FDIC and the
Organization has not experienced any losses on such accounts. To help reduce any potential losses,
excess balances are swept into a money market fund, which is invested in U.S. Government Obligations.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pledges receivable, contributions and grants: Contributions and grants are recorded in the period
received at fair value as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions support
depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions and grants that are
restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When time restrictions expire or purpose restrictions are fulfilled, net assets with
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Unconditional promises to give (pledges) are recognized as support in the period received at fair value.
Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially
met. The Organization uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible pledges receivable. The
allowance is established based upon management’s analysis of specific pledges and other economic
factors. The Organization has received promises to give from corporations for the Florida Tax Credit
Scholarship Program, from corporations and individuals for the Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program,
and from private foundations.

Pledges, which become uncollectible or for which an allowance is established in the year of the pledge,
are written off against contribution revenue. Pledges which become uncollectible in subsequent years are
charged to the allowance for uncollectible pledges.

Contributed services are recognized and reported at fair value in the period received, if the services
received create or enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by individuals
possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by contribution. There
were no contributed services for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Accounts and grants receivable: Accounts and grants receivable are stated at net realizable value. The
Organization uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible accounts receivable. The allowance
is established based upon management’s analysis of specific accounts and other economic factors. In the
opinion of management, an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $661,235 and $102,760 was considered
necessary at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Restricted certificate of deposit: Restricted certificate of deposit held by the Organization represents
funds required to be set aside by the lessor relating to an office lease signed by the Organization in 2015
for collateral and is carried at amortized cost.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value
at the date of gift, if contributed. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-
line method of accounting over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets. Routine maintenance
and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred, while major replacements and improvements are
capitalized as additions to the related assets. When assets are sold or retired, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and gains or losses from dispositions are
credited or charged to income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of long-lived assets: The carrying value of property and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate such value may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets or asset groups to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset or asset group to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or
asset group. If such assets or asset groups are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized
is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the
assets or asset group. Assets or asset groups to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less cost to sell. No impairment of the Organization’s long-lived assets or asset
groups have been recognized during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Funds held in trust for students and funds held in trust for students liability: Funds held in trust for
students and funds held in trust for students liability represents funds received for the Gardiner Scholarship
Program and the Reading Scholarship Program. A Gardiner Scholarship account is established for each
child that is awarded a special needs scholarship and a Reading Scholarship account is established for
each child that is awarded a reading scholarship. As parents use these funds in accordance with State of
Florida guidelines, the asset and liability are reduced accordingly. The following represents a breakout of
the funds held in trust for students and funds held in trust for students liability at June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Gardiner Scholarship Program $ 79,443,366 $ 58,467,378
Reading Scholarship Program 2,739,023 -

$ 82,182,389 $ 58,467,378

Functional expenses: The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services have been
summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities and in the consolidated
statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the various
programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries and related payroll expenses are allocated among
functional categories based on the estimated proportion of time spent to each function. All other expenses
are allocated based on management’s estimate of the relative functional activity.

Income taxes: Step Up For Students is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and from state income taxes under similar provisions of the Florida Statutes.
Accordingly, no provision for federal and state income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Step Up For Students has made an election under Section 501(h) of
the Internal Revenue Code, which permits certain eligible 501(c)(3) organizations to make limited
expenditures to influence legislation. Step Up For Students would be subject to an excise tax if it spends
more than the amounts permitted. Such limits have not been exceeded.

The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund is a disregarded entity for federal and state income tax
purposes and, therefore, reports all federal and state tax information through Step Up For Students.
Accordingly, no provision for federal and state income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

C2is a disregarded entity for federal and state income tax purposes and, therefore, reports all federal and

state tax information through Step Up For Students. Accordingly, no provision for federal and state
income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

AOAF is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code and
from state income taxes under similar provisions of the Alabama Statutes. Accordingly, no provision for
federal and state income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization follows accounting standards relating to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes.
Management assessed whether there were any uncertain tax positions which may give rise to income tax
liabilities and determined that there were no such matters requiring recognition in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Generally, the Organization is no longer subject to U.S. federal or state
income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before June 30, 2016.

Recent accounting pronouncements: In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606), requiring an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The update will replace most existing revenue
recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective and permits the use of either a full
retrospective or retrospective with cumulate effect transition method. The updated standard will become
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Organization has not yet
selected a transition method and is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued its new lease accounting guidance in ASU No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). Under the new guidance, lessees will be required to recognize the following for all leases
(with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date: (1) A lease liability, which is a
lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and
(2) A right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right to use, or control the use of, a
specified asset for the lease term. Lessees will no longer be provided with a source of off-balance sheet
financing. Lessees must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or
entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements.
Nonpublic entities should apply the amendments for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The
Organization is currently evaluating the impact this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

The FASB has issued certain new or modifications to, or interpretations of, existing accounting guidance
in addition to the ASU’s described above. The Organization has considered the new pronouncements and
does not believe that any other new or modified guidance will have a material impact on the
Organization’s reported financial position or activities in the near term.

Change in accounting: In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.
ASU No. 2016-14 changes presentation and disclosure requirements for not-for-profit entities to provide
qualitative and quantitative requirements as follows:

e Net assets presentation in two categories — net assets without donor restrictions and net assets
with donor restrictions;

e Presentation of investment income net of investment expenses;

e Analysis of expenses by both natural and functional classification;

e Liquidity and availability of resources disclosure requirement;

e Presentation of operating cash flows either direct or indirect method; permits the use of direct
method without reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash flows from operating activities.
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Note 1. Nature of Organization and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As the result of ASU No. 2016-14 adoption, the Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
consolidated financial statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Subsequent events: Management has assessed subsequent events through December 18, 2019, the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2. Tax Credit Scholarship Programs and Scholarships Awarded

Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program and Scholarships Awarded — Florida Statutes permit
Scholarship Funding Organizations participating in the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program to use up
to 3% of eligible contributions received for administrative expenses. Scholarship Funding Organizations
must expend for annual or partial-year scholarships an amount equal to or greater than 75% of the net
eligible contributions remaining after administrative expenses during the year in which such contributions
are collected. No more than 25% of such net eligible contributions may be carried forward for expenditure
to the following year. During the year ended June 30, 2019, Step Up For Students collected $615,088,723
of eligible contributions. Step Up For Students claimed an administrative allowance of $18,452,512 and
expended $615,252,820 for scholarships during the year ended June 30, 2019. During the year ended
June 30, 2018, Step Up For Students collected $611,426,578 of eligible contributions. Step Up For
Students claimed an administrative allowance of $18,342,797 and expended $641,591,249 for
scholarships during the year ended June 30, 2018. During the year ended June 30, 2019, Step Up For
Students received transferred funds from another SGO amounting to $8,481,132 in which Step Up For
Students was entitled to a 2% administrative allowance of $169,623.

Scholarships under the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program are awarded annually to qualified
students. To qualify for a scholarship, a student and the parents or guardian of that student must meet
economic need requirements, enroll in an eligible private school and comply with certain other
responsibilities for program participation. Scholarships for the 2018 — 2019 and 2017 — 2018 school years
could not exceed $7,111 and $6,920, respectively. The scholarship checks are made payable to the
student’s parent or guardian and the private school. The checks are mailed to the schools in quarterly
installments. Before the mailing, the schools verify the students’ attendance and that the students’
parents or guardians have complied with their responsibilities under the program. Both the parents or
guardians and schools endorse the checks before they are deposited into the schools’ bank accounts.

Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program and Scholarships Awarded — The Alabama Accountability
Act of 2013 and the Administrative Rulings by the Alabama Department of Revenue permit Scholarship
Granting Organizations participating in the Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program to use up to 5% of
eligible contributions received for administrative expenses. Scholarship Granting Organizations must
expend for scholarships an amount equal to or greater than 95% of the net eligible contributions
remaining after administrative expenses. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Alabama Opportunity
Scholarship Fund collected $3,339,900 of eligible contributions. The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Fund claimed an administrative allowance of $166,995 and expended $8,781,932 for scholarships during
the year ended June 30, 2019. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Alabama Opportunity
Scholarship Fund collected $22,521,746 of eligible contributions. The Alabama Opportunity Scholarship
Fund claimed an administrative allowance of $1,126,045 and expended $9,387,814 for scholarships
during the year ended June 30, 2018. During the year ended June 30, 2019, C2 collected $275,537 of
eligible contributions. C2 claimed an administrative allowance of $13,777 and there were amounts
expended for scholarships during the year ended June 30, 2019.
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Note 2. Tax Credit Scholarship Programs and Scholarships Awarded (Continued)

Scholarships under the Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program are awarded annually to qualified
students. To qualify for a scholarship, a student and the parents or guardian of that student must meet
economic need requirements, enroll in an eligible private school and comply with certain other
responsibilities for program participation.

Note 3. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Furniture and equipment $ 1,320,061 $ 1,505,601
Software 3,269,663 3,358,716
Leasehold improvements 47,544 58,625
4,637,268 4,922,942
Less accumulated depreciation (1,741,164) (1,936,777)

$ 2,896,104 $ 2,986,165

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, was $758,610 and $384,633,
respectively.

Note 4. Line of Credit

Step Up For Students has a $40,000,000 line of credit agreement with a bank bearing interest at the one-
month LIBOR interest rate plus 1.5% (4.0% at June 30, 2019). Interest on the line of credit is payable
monthly and matures on April 29, 2020. The line of credit is collateralized by substantially all the assets of
Step Up For Students. The Organization maintains the line of credit for the purpose of funding Florida Tax
Credit Scholarship commitments in the event that expected contributions from donors are delayed. The
line of credit had an outstanding balance of $35,000,000 and $14,986,632 at June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. On September 30, 2019, the line of credit was increased to $60,000,000.

The outstanding balances were utilized to fund scholarships for the last distributions of the fiscal year for
the Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program. During 2019, several donors took advantage of a change in
the statutory program provisions that allowed them to make donation payments up to the due date for
submission of their tax returns. As such, pledges receivable increased by $39,829,313 during 2019 and
the Organization used the line of credit to offset these delayed receipts. The outstanding balances were
repaid in full on July 2, 2019 and July 5, 2018 for the year ended 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 5. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30:

2019 2018
Undesignated $ 5338047 $ 8,115,532
Board designated for specified purposes 1,283,542 -

$ 6621589 $  8,115532
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Note 5. Net Assets (Continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30:

2019 2018
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program $ 521,424,386 $ 491,496,263
Hope Scholarship 40,840,971 -
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program 7,548,453 12,937,978
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 654,158 1,153,854

$ 570,467,968 $ 505,588,095

Net assets with donor restrictions were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying
the purpose specified by donors as follows:

2019 2018
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program $ 615,886,182 $ 641,657,071
Hope Scholarship 290,968 -
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program 9,226,864 9,910,152
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 2,216,426 1,309,560

$ 627,620,440 $ 652,876,783

Note 6. Commitments

The Organization leases certain office equipment and office space under operating leases which expire at
various dates through August 2021. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, was
$876,072 and $809,539, respectively.

Minimum future annual lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

Years ending June 30:

2020 $ 605,719
2021 3,896
2022 649

$ 610,264
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Note 7. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

As of June 30, 2019, the following reflects the Organization’s financial assets, reduced by amounts not
available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions, board designations and
amounts used to repay the line of credit on July 2, 2019 within one year of June 30, 2019.

Financial assets, at year-end

Cash and cash equivalents $ 63,558,310
Pledges receivable, net 542,649,336
Accounts and grants receivable, net 5,088,297

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Contractual or donor-imposed restrictions:

Restricted by donors with purpose restrictions (570,467,968)
Board designations:
Board designated for Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program (1,283,542)
Repayment of line of credit on July 2, 2019 (35,000,000)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures
within one year $ 4,544,433

The Organization’s goal is to manage its tax-credited fundraising and associated scholarship
commitments such that as many students as possible receive a scholarship while maintaining a 5%
reserve of the funds received (approximately $32.5 million). The purpose of that reserve is to provide for
timing differences and potential rescindments by donors.

Historically, the Organization pays scholarship payments four times per year during the school year, the
timing for which is established based on historical fundraising trends such that sufficient donations are
received prior to each payment. Donations received between scholarship payments are invested in short-
term U.S. Treasury instruments, the interest from which is designated by the Board of Directors to fund
scholarships. The Company maintains a $40 million line of credit (increased to $60 million on

September 30, 2019) for the purpose of funding scholarship commitments in the event that expected
contributions from donors are delayed.

As of the statement of financial position date, the Organization has materially paid all scholarship
commitments as the school year had ended for all of its scholarship recipients. During 2019, donors took
advantage of a new statutory provision that allowed them to delay their contributions as long as they
reserved their credits with the State of Florida prior to the end of their fiscal year. This new provision
contributed to the delay of approximately $56 million in tax-credited donations from 2019 to 2020, which
significantly impacted cash flow forecasts. Accordingly, the Organization borrowed $35 million in June
2019 to fund the final major distribution of the 2019 school year. The full amount was repaid on July 2,
2019, as sufficient funds were available.

Note 8. Major Donors

Step Up For Students: Contributions from one major donor accounted for approximately 22.4% of
contributions and grants — Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30, 2019.
At June 30, 2019, approximately 26.7% of pledges receivable are due from this major donor.
Contributions from two major donors accounted for approximately 32.0% of contributions and grants —
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30, 2018. At June 30, 2018,
approximately 34.4% of pledges receivable are due from these major donors.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of or for the Year Ended June 30, 2018)

Note 8. Major Donors (Continued)

Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund: Contributions from one major donor accounted for approximately
44.8% of contributions and grants — Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended
June 30, 2019. Contributions from one major donor accounted for approximately 14.3% of contributions
and grants — Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30, 2018.

C2: Contributions from one major donor accounted for approximately 14.5% of contributions and grants —
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program during the year ended June 30, 2019.

Note 9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution 401(k) Savings Plan (the Plan). All employees who meet
certain age and service requirements are eligible to participate in the Plan. The Plan provides for salary
reduction contributions from employees up to the federal tax limit according to the Internal Revenue
Code. In addition, there could be additional retirement benefits from discretionary employer contributions.
Contributions to this Plan for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, were $756,938 and $658,683,
respectively, which is included in payroll taxes and employee benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statement of functional expenses.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2019

Alabama Alabama
Opportunity Cc2 Opportunity
Step Up For Scholarship Opportunity Action
Students, Inc. Fund, LLC Scholarships, LLC Fund Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55486043 $ 7,614360 $ 341,702  $ 116,205 $ - $ 63,558,310
Pledges receivable, net 542,644,336 5,000 - - - 542,649,336
Accounts and grants receivable, net 4,888,036 75,261 - 125,000 - 5,088,297
Prepaid expenses and other assets 835,210 23,429 - - - 858,639
Funds held in trust for students 82,182,389 - - - - 82,182,389
Due from related party 61,075 - - - (61,075) -
Total current assets 686,097,089 7,718,050 341,702 241,205 (61,075) 694,336,971
Restricted certificate of deposit 130,000 - - - - 130,000
Property and equipment, net 2,883,967 12,137 - - - 2,896,104
Total assets $ 689,111,056 $ 7,730,187 $ 341,702 % 241205 $ (61,075) $ 697,363,075
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 774599 % 54,093 $ - $ - $ - $ 828,692
Accrued expenses 2,200,830 47,303 6,683 7,621 - 2,262,437
Line of credit 35,000,000 - - - - 35,000,000
Funds held in trust for students liability 82,182,389 - - - - 82,182,389
Due to related party - 39,312 12,993 8,770 (61,075) -
Total current liabilities 120,157,818 140,708 19,676 16,391 (61,075) 120,273,518
Net assets:
With donor restrictions 6,258,537 302,786 60,266 - - 6,621,589
Without donor restrictions 562,694,701 7,286,693 261,760 224,814 - 570,467,968
Total net assets 568,953,238 7,589,479 322,026 224,814 - 577,089,557
Total liabilities and net assets $ 689,111,056 $ 7,730,187 $ 341,702  $ 241,205 $ (61,075 $ 697,363,075
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Step Up For Students, Inc.

Alabama Opportunity Scholarship Fund, LLC

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total
Revenues and support:
Contributions and grants:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program, net $ 18,622,135 $ 644,767,033 $ 663,389,168 $ - $ - $ -
Hope Scholarship Program 1,264,022 40,870,044 42,134,066 - - -
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program - - - 166,995 3,177,905 3,344,900
Gardiner Scholarship Program 3,537,044 - 3,537,044 - - -
Reading Scholarship Program 84,280 - 84,280 - - -
Grants and other contributions 651,991 1,426,730 2,078,721 300 210,000 210,300
Other revenue and interest income 692,448 1,309,167 2,001,615 - 137,674 137,674
Scholarship service contract revenue 981,486 - 981,486 - - -
Net assets released from restrictions 618,328,390 (618,328,390) - 9,176,864 (9,176,864) -
Total revenues and support 644,161,796 70,044,584 714,206,380 9,344,159 (5,651,285) 3,692,874
Expenses:
Program services:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program 625,981,768 - 625,981,768 - - -
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program - - - 9,360,220 - 9,360,220
Gardiner Scholarship Program 4,993,457 - 4,993,457 - - -
School Development and Student Learning 1,785,546 - 1,785,546 - - -
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs 1,667,112 - 1,667,112 - - -
Hope Scholarship Program 1,427,683 - 1,427,683 - - -
Scholarship Service Contract 1,010,028 - 1,010,028 - - -
Advocacy and Civic Engagement 923,754 - 923,754 10,612 - 10,612
Reading Scholarship Program 827,726 - 827,726 - - -
Family Empowerment Scholarship 107,480 - 107,480 - - -
Total program services 638,724,554 - 638,724,554 9,370,832 - 9,370,832
Supporting services:
General and administrative 4,108,789 - 4,108,789 236,594 - 236,594
Development and fundraising 2,508,286 - 2,508,286 111,109 - 111,109
Total supporting services 6,617,075 - 6,617,075 347,703 - 347,703
Total expenses 645,341,629 - 645,341,629 9,718,535 - 9,718,535
Change in net assets (1,179,833) 70,044,584 68,864,751 (374,376) (5,651,285) (6,025,661)
Net assets:
Beginning 7,438,370 492,650,117 500,088,487 677,162 12,937,978 13,615,140
Ending $ 6,258537 $ 562,694,701 $ 568,953,238 $ 302,786 $ 7,286,693 $ 7,589,479
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Statement of Activities (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2019

C2 Opportunity Scholarships, LLC Alabama Opportunity Action Fund
Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total Consolidated
Revenues and support:
Contributions and grants:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program, net $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 663,389,168
Hope Scholarship Program - - - - - - 42,134,066
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program 13,777 261,760 275,537 - - - 3,620,437
Gardiner Scholarship Program - - - - - - 3,537,044
Reading Scholarship Program - - - - - - 84,280
Grants and other contributions 119,152 50,000 169,152 - 290,000 290,000 2,748,173
Other revenue and interest income - - - - - - 2,139,289
Scholarship service contract revenue - - - - - - 981,486
Net assets released from restrictions 50,000 (50,000) - 65,186 (65,186) - -
Total revenues and support 182,929 261,760 444,689 65,186 224,814 290,000 718,633,943
Expenses:
Program services:
Florida Tax Credit Scholarship Program - - - - - - 625,981,768
Alabama Tax Credit Scholarship Program 20,765 - 20,765 - - - 9,380,985
Gardiner Scholarship Program - - - - - - 4,993,457
School Development and Student Learning - - - - - - 1,785,546
Communications, Policy and Public Affairs - - - 65,186 - 65,186 1,732,298
Hope Scholarship Program - - - - - - 1,427,683
Scholarship Service Contract - - - - - - 1,010,028
Advocacy and Civic Engagement 130 - 130 - - - 934,496
Reading Scholarship Program - - - - - - 827,726
Family Empowerment Scholarship - - - - - - 107,480
Total program services 20,895 - 20,895 65,186 - 65,186 648,181,467
Supporting services:
General and administrative 54,252 - 54,252 - - - 4,399,635
Development and fundraising 47,516 - 47,516 - - - 2,666,911
Total supporting services 101,768 - 101,768 - - - 7,066,546
Total expenses 122,663 - 122,663 65,186 - 65,186 655,248,013
Change in net assets 60,266 261,760 322,026 - 224,814 224,814 63,385,930
Net assets:
Beginning - - - - - - 513,703,627
Ending $ 60,266 $ 261,760 $ 322,026 $ - $ 224,814 % 224,814  $ 577,089,557
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2019

State Contract/
CSFA Grant State
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
State Financial Assistance
Florida Department of Education and Commissioner of Education:
Gardiner Scholarship Program 48.113  92X-90025-9D001 $ 101,368,773
Reading Scholarship Accounts Program 48.157  92X-90550-9D001 388,324

Total expenditures of state financial assistance

See notes to schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance.
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance (the Schedule) includes the
state financial assistance project activity of Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
Organization) under programs of the State of Florida for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in
this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the State of Florida Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or
cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are reported following the cost principles established by the State of Florida Department
of Financial Services, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers (contract or grant number) are presented where
available.

Step Up For Students is acting as an agent for the Gardiner Scholarship Program; therefore, there are no
revenues and expenses reported on the accompanying consolidated statement of activities for
scholarship funds received and distributed from the State of Florida. The expenditures reported as state
financial assistance on the Schedule represent amounts distributed for reimbursement of program-related
educational expenditures on behalf of eligible children, which totaled $97,831,729 and $3,537,044
received from the State of Florida, which were used to pay administrative expenses for the administration
of the program on behalf of the State of Florida.

Step Up For Students is acting as an agent for the Reading Scholarship Accounts Program; therefore,
there are no revenues and expenses reported on the accompanying consolidated statement of activities
for scholarship funds received and distributed from the State of Florida. The expenditures reported as
state financial assistance on the Schedule represent amounts distributed for reimbursement of program-
related expenditures on behalf of eligible children, which totaled $304,044 and $84,280 received from the
State of Florida, which were used to pay administrative expenses for the administration of the program on
behalf of the State of Florida.

Note 3. Subrecipients

There was no state financial assistance passed through to subrecipients by the Organization.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Step Up For Students, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Step Up
For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING
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Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

PSKM VS LLP

Orlando, Florida
December 18, 2019

27



B I

RSM

RSMUSLLP

Report on Compliance for its Major State Financial Assistance Project and
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by State of
Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Step Up For Students, Inc.

Report on Compliance for its Major State Financial Assistance Project

We have audited Step Up For Students, Inc. and its subsidiaries’ (the Organization) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the Department of Financial Services’ State Projects
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Organization’s major state
financial assistance project for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Organization’s major state financial
assistance project is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its state financial assistance applicable to its state financial assistance project.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Organization’s major state financial
assistance project based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State of Florida Chapter
10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards and the State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of
the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major state financial assistance project occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for its major state
financial assistance project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Organization’s compliance.

Opinion on its Major State Financial Assistance Project

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state financial
assistance project for the year ended June 30, 2019.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major state financial assistance project
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for its major state financial assistance project and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the
Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
state financial assistance project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance
is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
financial assistance project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state financial assistance project that
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the

State of Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for
any other purpose.

PSKM VS LLP

Orlando, Florida
December 18, 2019
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Step Up For Students, Inc. and Subsidiary

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

| - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
State Financial Assistance

Internal control over major program:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major program: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
10.654(1)(h)(1)(f), Rules of the Auditor General ? Yes X No

Identification of major program:

CSFA Number(s) Name of State Financial Assistance Project
48.113 Gardiner Scholarship Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B state financial assistance projects: $ 3,052,713

Il. Financial Statement Findings
No matters to report.

lll. Findings and Questioned Costs for State Financial Assistance
No matters to report.

IV. Other Reporting

1. No Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings is presented because there were no prior audit
findings related to state financial assistance projects.

2. No Corrective Action Plan is presented because there were no findings required to be
reported under the Florida Single Audit Act.

3. There was no management letter or control deficiency letter issued for the year ended
June 30, 2019, and there were no matters required to be reported in these letters.
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P> Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public
Inspection

2018

A For the 2018 calendar year, or tax year beginning JUL 1,

and ending JUN 30, 2019

B ggpelcl;g a.tf) o C Name of organization D Employer identification number
eS| STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,
’S‘r?e;?@e Doing business as 59-3649371
'rg'ﬁ'ﬁ# Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
Final | 4655 SALISBURY ROAD 400 904-352-2246
il City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts $ 717,949,667,
reince?| JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256 H(a) Is this a group return
Dﬁgﬁn_ca_ F Name and address of principal officer: JOE PFOUNTZ for subordinates? [ Ives No
pending SAME AS C ABOVE H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:|Yes l:l No

I Tax-exempt status: 501(c)3) [ 1501(c)(

) (insertno.) [ ] 4947(a)(1)

or [ 1527

J Website: p» WWW . STEPUPFORSTUDENTS . ORG

If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)
H(c) Group exemption number P>

[ ] Other

K Form of organization: Corporation [ ] Trust [ ] Association

| L Year of formation; 2000

| M State of legal domicile: FL

[Partl| Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities:

SEE SCHEDULE O

Check this box P> |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

8
g
gl 2
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 8
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1b) 4 8
@ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2018 (Part V, line2a) . . ... 5 291
£| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) .. 6 1085
%G| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIIl, column (C), line12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 38 ... .. ... ... ... ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) ... 705,681,555, 714,828,892,
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIIl, line2g) 976,220, 1,432,494,
2| 10 Investment income (Part VI, column (A), lines 3, 4,and 7d) ... 999,419. 1,673,206,
€1 11 Other revenue (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 5, 6, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) 3,990. 15,075,
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ... 707,661,184, 717,949,667,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) 650,979,063, 624,325,720,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0. 0.
2 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 15,927,052, 19,899,245,
2 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) . 0. 0.
:-’. b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) P 2,666,911,
Wl 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f24¢) 7,697,802, 10,563,586.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 674,603,917, 654,788,551,
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from lin@ 12 ... 33,057,267, 63,161,116.
‘6% Beginning of Current Year End of Year
‘§ 20 Totalassets (Part X, line 16) 589,394,333, 697,130,640,
<3 21 Total liabilities (Part X, ne 26) .. 75,690,706, 120,265,897,
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from iN€ 20 ... 513,703,627, 576,864,743,

[Part 1l | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign } Signature of officer Date
Here JOE PFOUNTZ, CFO
Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date iEheck |:| PTIN
Paid JULIANA KREUL 12/20/2019 | sefi-employed  [P01204534
Preparer | Firm's name p RSM US LLP Firm's EIN p» 42-0714325
Use Only | Firm's address p, 7351 OFFICE PARK PL,

MELBOURNE, FL 32940-8229 Phone no.321-751-6200

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions)

Yes \:| No

832001 12-31-18
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Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 2
Part lll | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il ..

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS EMPOWERS PARENTS TO PURSUE AND ENGAGE IN THE MOST

APPROPRIATE LEARNING OPTIONS FOR THEIR CHILDREN, WITH AN EMPHASIS ON
FAMILIES WHO LACK THE INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES TO ACCESS
THESE OPTIONS., BY PURSUING THIS MISSION, WE HELP PUBLIC EDUCATION

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior FOrm 990 Or 000-EZ2 [X ]ves [_INo
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? |:|Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a @o@: )@mmm%$ 625,587,489~ including grants of $ 615,252,820~ )(Rwame$ )
FLORIDA TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: IN THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR,

100,320 UNDERPRIVILEGED STUDENTS ATTENDED 1,825 PRIVATE SCHOOLS ON A
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS' TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP, THE K-12 SCHOLARSHIP
PROGRAM WAS CREATED IN 2001 TO HELP ALLEVIATE THE ENORMOUS EDUCATIONAL
CHALLENGES FACED BY CHILDREN WHO LIVE IN POVERTY, AND IT IS NOW THE
LARGEST SUCH SCHOLARSHIP IN THE NATION. ELIGIBLE STUDENTS COULD CHOOSE
BETWEEN SCHOLARSHIPS WORTH UP TO $7,111 FOR PRIVATE SCHOOL TUITION AND
FEES OR UP TO $750 IN TRANSPORTATION COSTS TO ATTEND AN OUT-OF-DISTRICT
PUBLIC SCHOOL, THE AVERAGE INCOME FOR PARTICIPANTS WAS 13% ABOVE THE
FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL, AND 55% OF THE STUDENTS WERE FROM SINGLE-PARENT
HOUSEHOLDS. STANDARDIZED TEST SCORES RELEASED IN AUGUST 2018 SHOWED
THAT SCHOLARSHIP STUDENTS WERE ACHIEVING THE SAME GAINS IN READING AND
4b @om: )@xmmms$ 9,380,985- including grants of $ 8,781,932- )(Rwame$ 0’}
THE ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND (ALOSF) IS A SCHOLARSHIP
GRANTING ORGANIZATION FORMED TO IMPLEMENT THE ALABAMA ACOUNTABILITY
ACT, ALOSF AWARDS SCHOLARSHIPS TO ELIGIBLE LOW-INCOME K5-12TH GRADE
STUDENTS WITH PRIORITY GIVEN TO STUDENTS WHO ARE ZONED TO ATTEND A
FAILING PUBLIC SCHOOL, THE SCHOLARSHIPS PAY FOR PRIVATE SCHOOL TUITION
OR TRANSFER FEES TO A NON-FAILING PUBLIC SCHOOL. THE FIRST
SCHOLARSHIPS WERE GRANTED FOR THE SEMESTER STARTING JANUARY 2014,
ALOSF HAS AWARDED OVER 10,750 SCHOLARSHIPS OVER 5 1/2 YEARS
REPRESENTING 46 OF THE 67 COUNTIES IN ALABAMA, THE SCHOLARSHIPS ARE
FUNDED BY DONATIONS OF INCOME TAX LIABILITY FROM INDIVIDUALS AND
CORPORATIONS WHO RECEIVE AN ALABAMA STATE INCOME TAX CREDIT,.

4c  (Code: ) (Expenses $ 4,993,457, including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
THE GARDINER SCHOLARSHIP ACCOUNT PROGRAM: 1IN THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR,

STEP UP ALSO ADMINISTERED A STATEWIDE SCHOLARSHIP AVAILABLE TO
SPECIAL-NEEDS STUDENTS WITH SPECIFIC DISABILITIES THAT INCLUDE: AUTISM,
CEREBRAL PALSY, DOWN SYNDROME, SPINA BIFIDA, INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY
AND WILLIAMS SYNDROME, FOR 2018-19, THE PROGRAM SERVED 13,6407 STUDENTS
WHO RECEIVED SCHOLARSHIPS WORTH AN AVERAGE OF $10,306 EACH, THE PROGRAM
EMPOWERS FAMILIES TO CHOOSE THE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES THAT BEST MEET THE
NEEDS OF THEIR STUDENT, AND THE MONEY CAN BE SPENT FOR SCHOOLS,
THERAPISTS, SPECIALISTS, CURRICULUM, TECHNOLOGY - EVEN A COLLEGE
SAVINGS ACCOUNT,

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ 7,760,073, including grants of $ 290,968-) (Revenue $ 1,447,569~)
4e Total program service expenses P> 647,722,004,

Form 990 (2018)
832002 12-31-18 SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION(S)



Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 3
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If "Yes," complete SChedUIB A ...............coe oo 1] X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? ... ... . 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete SChedule C, Part | ................oco oo 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il ...................ccoo@ oo 4 | X
5 s the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? j "Yes, " complete Schedule C, Part il ... ... 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ....................ccoocvooveeeei. 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? Jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE D, PAMt Il ..o\ oo, 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV . 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments, permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V.  ................oo oo 10 X
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Part VI oo 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ... oo 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ...................ccoo oo 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 Jf "Yes, " complete SChedule D, Part IX ... e 11d| X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 11f | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f "Yes," complete
SChedUle D, Parts XI @NG XU ..o oo 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes, " and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XIl is optional ............... 12b | X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? If "Yes," complete Schedule E ... ... 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ... 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | @Nd IV ...............c.ccooi oo 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? if "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts l1and IV . 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts llland IV ... ... . 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part | ...................coo oo 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete SChedule G, Part Il ....................c..coo oo 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes,"
complete SCheAUIE G, Part Il ...................c.ccoo oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? jf "Yes," complete Schedule H ..o 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retun? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? /f "Yes." complete Schedule |. Parts 1 and Il ..............cccccooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 21 X

832003 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page4
| Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinueq)

Yes [ No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? [f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ...................ocoo oo 22 | X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE J ... 23 | X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? |f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If "NO," GO 10 lIN@ 25@ .............oe oo 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? .. .. 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exXemPt DONAS ? 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? .. ... 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | ................ccoccocviiveeeeeie. 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? |f "Yes," complete

SCHEAUIE L, PAMt | ...\ oo, 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or

former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? /f "Yes,"

ComMPlete SCREAUIE L, Part Il ... e 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial

contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member
of any of these persons? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part lll  .........................oo oo 27 X

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ............................... 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an officer,
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ....................cocco oo 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedule M ........................... 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? If "Yes," complete SCREAUIE M ................. oo 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations?
If "Yes," complete SChedUIe N, Part | ... 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE Ny PAIE Il ...\ .o, 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | .................c.ccooo oo 33 | X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I, Ill, or IV, and
Part V, N8 1 oo 34 | X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a| X
b If "Yes" to line 353, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ....................ccccociiiioeeeee 35b X
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, N8 2 ..................ccooi oo 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI .................... 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... il 38 | X
PartV| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPartv.~~~~~~ . |:|
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a 643
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0

¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming

(gambling) WiNNINGS 10 PHZE WINNEIS ? 1c | X
832004 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)




Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 5
[Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued)
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... . ... 2a 291
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b | X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) ... ...
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? .. 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? if "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O .............................. 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: P>
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .. 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were Not tax dedUcCtible? 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? ... 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
B0 FI18 FOIM 82822 o e 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ... ... ... ... 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? [ 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during theyear? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line12 . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during theyear ... .. | 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves on hand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? Jf "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O .......................... 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 pageﬁ

Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure ro each "ves" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ...

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

(4]

7a

b
9

Yes [ No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a 8
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent ... ... .. 1b 8
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or Key emMplOYee? 2 X
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
Did the organization have members or stockholders?
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or

more members of the governing DoAY ? 7a X
Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or

persons other than the governing body? 7b X
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

The governingbody? 8a | X
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b | X
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization’s mailing address? Jf "Yes." provide the names and addresses in Schedule QO oo 9 X

[0 [ I E N (]
>

Section B. Policies (7hjs Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13
14
15

16a

Yes | No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . .. 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? Jf "No," go to line 13 ..o | 12a| X
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b [ X
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe

in Schedule O NOW thiS WAS QOME ... ..o 12c | X
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 | X

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | X

Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

taxable entity during the year? 16a X
If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s

exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed p-2AK,AR,CA CO,CT FL,DC,GA HI, IL, KS KY

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website \:| Another’s website Upon request \:| Other (explain in Schedule O)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records P>
JOE PFOUNTZ - 904-352-2246

4655 SALISBURY RD, SUITE 400, JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256

832006 12-31-18 SEE SCHEDULE O FOR FULL LIST OF STATES Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 7
Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

® | ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-
able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

|:| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (€) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average | ..o crf; Sl(s::lc)?gthan one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any % the organizations compensation
hours for ’gf . = organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related 2 % . g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | 5 s |5 and related
below Elel.]Ee18E = organizations
IEHEHE
(1) JOHN KIRTLEY 40,00
CHAIRMAN, SUFS/DIRECTOR, A X 0. 0. 0.
(2) ALISON HERTOG 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(3) ALFRED "AL" LAWSON 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(4) RICHARD OUTRAM 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(5) PAUL SHERMAN 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(6) CURTIS STOKES 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(7) TERRY JOVE 2.00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(8) JOHN LEGG 2,00
DIRECTOR, SUFS X 0. 0. 0.
(9) DOUG TUTHILL 40,00
PRESIDENT, SUFS X 244,845, 0. 28,247,
(10) ANNE WHITE 40,00
CRO, SUFS X 162,690, 0. 24,542,
(11) JOE PFOUNTZ 40.00
TREASURER & CFO, SUFS X 194,872, 0. 25,054,
(12) ALISSA RANDALL 40,00
VP MARKETING & EVENTS, SUF X 155,886, 0. 17,918,
(13) JONATHAN BECKHAM 40,00
VP INNOVATION X 149,755, 0. 31,880,
(14) GINA LYNCH 40.00
VP OPERATIONS X 145,642, 0. 21,826,
(15) CAROL MACEDONIA 40,00
VP STUDENT LEARNING X 145,157, 0. 17,6717,
(16) JONATHAN EAST 40,00
VP POLICY & PUBLIC AFFAIRS X 143,893, 0. 16,008,

832007 12-31-18 Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018)

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC.

59-3649371

Page 8

| Part VI | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
(do not check more than one . .
hours per | pox, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any = the organizations compensation
hours for | S 5 organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related g |2 2 (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
organizations| £ | = S and related
below £12]s|2128 = organizations
Tb Sub-total » 1,342,740, 0. 183,152,
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, SectionA . . . > 0. 0. 0.
d Total(addlines tband 1¢) ... | 1,342,740, 0. 183,152,
2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization P> 25
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCH INAIVIAUAI  ......................c oo 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ..................................... 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? Jf "Yes " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEISOM «ooioviiiiiiiii i 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A)

Name and business address

(B)

Description of services

(©)

Compensation

SAP AMERICA, INC., PO BOX 7780-824024,
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19182-4024 ISOFTWARE SERVICES 369,358,
ROBERT HALF TECHNOLOGY, 12400 COLLECTIONS
CENTER DRIVE, CHICAGO, IL 60693 CONSULTING SERVICES 270,068,
PREMIKATI, INC,, 310 NORTH ALABAMA STREET,
STE 200, INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204 ISOFTWARE SERVICES 230,993,
GENESYS TELECOMMUNICATIONS LABORATORIES, IN
PO BOX 206174, DALLAS, TX 75320-6174 TELECOMMUNICATIONS 230,741,
ACQUIRE DIGITAL, LLC, 2000 GLEN ECHO RD,
STE 200, NASHVILLE, TN 37215 MARKETING AND ADVERTISING 218,671,
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization P> 16
Form 990 (2018)
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Form 990 (2018)

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC.

59-3649371

Part VIII Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl

(A)
Total revenue

(B)
Related or
exempt function
revenue

(9]
Unrelated
business

revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections
512-514

- 0 Q 0 T 9o

ontributions, Gifts, Grants

> Q

Federated campaigns . [1a

Membership dues

Fundraising events 1c

Related organizations 1d

Government grants (contributions) 1e

All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not included above 1f

714,828,892,

Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $

Total. Add lines 1a-1f

714,828,892,

Program Service
la - o 20 T O

SERVICE CONTRACT

Business Code|

561000

981,486,

981,486,

ADVOCACY & CIVIC ENGAG

900099

409,226,

409,226,

STUDENT DEVELOPMENT

900099

41,782,

41,782,

All other program service revenue

Total. Add lines2a-2f ...

1,432,494,

O 0 0 T o

Other Revenue

10 a

(2]

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and

other similar amounts)

1,673,206,

1,673,206,

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds | 2

Royalties

(ii) Personal

Gross rents

Less: rental expenses

Rental income or (loss)

Net rental income or (loss)

Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities

(ii) Other

assets other than inventory

Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses

Gain or (loss)

Net gain or (loss)
Gross income from fundraising events (not
including $ of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
Part IV, line 18
Less: direct expenses

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events
Gross income from gaming activities. See

Part IV, line 19
Less: direct expenses

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities
Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances

Less: cost of goods sold

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ...

Miscellaneous Revenue

Business Code|

O o 0 T o

12

OTHER INCOME

900099

15,075,

15,075,

All other revenue

15,075,

717,949,667,

1,447,569,

1,673,206,

832009 12-31-18
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Form 990 (2018)

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

59-3649371

[ Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b,
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIlI.

(A)
Total expenses

B)
Program service
expenses

(C)
Management and
general expenses

(D)
Fundraising
expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 624,325,720, 624,325,720,
8 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines15and 16 .
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 632,024, 632,024,
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ...
7 Other salaries and wages 15,408,848, 13,200,347, 829,982, 1,378,519,
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 759,599. 562,224, 133,580. 63,795,
9 Other employee benefits 1,962,014, 1,528,992, 251,534, 181,488,
10 Payrolltaxes 1,136,760, 855,779, 189,662, 91,319,
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management ..
b Legal 121,960, 121,960,
¢ Accountng 261,069, 261,069,
d Lobbying 256,683, 256,683,
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 4,465,341, 2,765,330, 1,275,674, 424,337,
12 Advertising and promotion 585,918, 469,841, 72,551, 43,526,
13 Officeexpenses 427,924, 302,884, 48,077, 76,963,
14 Information technology
15 Royalties .
16 Occupancy 873,297, 682,725, 123,441, 67,131,
17  Travel 800,031, 526,410, 126,365, 147,256,
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .
20 Interest
21 Paymentsto affiliates . .
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 758,610. 603,001, 100,760. 54,849,
23 Insurance 288,583, 227,496, 39,435, 21,652,
24  Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If line
24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a OTHER COSTS 603,562, 603,562,
b REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 466,757, 361,278, 72,916, 32,563,
¢ PRINTING AND POSTAGE 355,679, 237,332, 34,834, 83,513,
d BANK FEES 298,172, 212,400, 85,772,
e All other expenses
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 654,788 551, 647,722,004, 4,399,636, 2,666,911,
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here > ‘:l if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

832010 12-31-18

Form 990 (2018)



Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 11
[ Part X | Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . |:|
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash - non-interest-bearing 19,085,583.| 1 63,442,105,
2  Savings and temporary cash investments 196,000.| 2 130,000.
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 502,820,023.] 3 542,649,336,
4 Accounts receivable,net 5,137,782.] 4 4,963,297,
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary
a employees’ beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part Il of SchL 6
ﬁ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 701,402.] 9 858,639,
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 4,637,268,
b Less: accumulated depreciaton 10b 1,741,164, 2,986,165.] 10c 2,896,104,
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 11
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line11 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line1t 58,467,378.( 15 82,191,159,
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equalline34) ... 589,394,333.| 16 697,130,640,
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,236,696.| 17 3,083,508,
18  Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of ScheduleD 58,467,378.| 21 82,182,389,
o | 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
é key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
% Complete Part Il of ScheduleL 22
= | 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 14,986,632.] 23 35,000,000.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
Schedule D 25
26 _ Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... . ... 75,690,706.| 26 120,265,897,
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P> and
@ complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
Q | 27 Unrestricted netassets 8,115,532.| 27 6,621,589,
= | 28  Temporarily restricted net assets 505,588,095.| 28 570,243,154,
% 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
E Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P> \:|
5 and complete lines 30 through 34.
% 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ... 30
# | 81 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 31
g 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
Z | 33 Total net assets or fund balances 513,703,627.] 33 576,864,743,
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 589,394,333.| 34 697,130,640,
Form 990 (2018)
832011 12-31-18



Form 990 (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371

Part XI | Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VI, column (A), line 12) 1 717,949 ,667.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 654,788,551,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fromline1 3 63,161,116.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, coumn (&) 4 513,703,627,
5 Netunrealized gains (losses) on iNVestMeNts 5
6 Donated services and use Of faCilities 6
T INVESTMENt OXPONSES 7
8 Prior period adjUsStments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) . 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
COIUMN (B)) oo 10 576,864,743,

Part Xll| Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Xl ... e

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other

No

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in Schedule O.
Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:

|:| Separate basis Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit

Act and OMB Circular A-133?
If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit

or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ...

2a

2b

2c

3a

3b

832012 12-31-18
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

OMB No. 1545-0047

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 20 1 8

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Open to Public

Name of the organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

Employer identification number
59-3649371

[Part] | Reason for Public Charity Status (all organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

HON

city, and state:

|:| A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
|:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
|:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s name,

(4]

university:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)
A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

0 00 B0 O

10

An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a |:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e \:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported Organizations |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization ir(w‘\)l/)olusrighgv%;ﬂzgoh gﬂmlzfr?t% (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
organization (described on lines 1-10 —| support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
9 above (see instructions)) Yes No pport { ) pport { )
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

832021 10-11-18  Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990EZ) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS , INC, 59-3649371
Partll | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P>
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

Page 2

(a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total

456,345,377, | 521,372,137.| 533,245,078.| 705,681,555, 714,828,892, 2931473039,

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through3

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

456,345,377, | 521,372,137.| 533,245,078.| 705,681,555, 714,828,892, 2931473039,

1157199278,

column (f)

Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4.

1774273761,

Sectlon B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
7 Amounts from lined4 456 ,345,377.| 521,372,137.| 533,245,078, 705,681 ,555,| 714,828,892, 2931473039,
8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources 8,223, 90,396, 397,500, 999,419, 1,673,206, 3,168,744,
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on
10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part VI.) 12,665, 7,046, 339, 3,990. 15,075. 39,115,
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 2934680898,
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 | 4,025,083,

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column () ... ... ... ... 14 60.46 %
15 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part I, line14 15 59.19 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2018. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018. [f the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization | 2 \:|
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions | 2 \:|
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 3
Part lll | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 ...
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b .

8 Public support. (Subtractline 7c from line 6.)
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) 2018 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Add lines 10aand10b
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VI.) ...
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

CheCK thiS DOX AN SEOP NEIE ...ttt ettt et e ee e S
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2018 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part lll, line 15 ... .. ... 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2018 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ... 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2017 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2018. [f the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... . ... ... > \:|

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization > \:|
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  ........................ > \:|
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 4

Part IV | Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? /f
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f "Yes,"

answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5¢c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI. 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? Jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? /f "Yes," answer 10b below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b
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[Part IV | Supporting Organizations (-ontinued)

Yes [ No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b

¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? Jf "Yes" to a. b. or c. provide detail in Part VI. 1ic

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "Yes," explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised. or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a \:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b \:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
¢ [_] The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? |f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement, one or more

of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? f "Yes," explain in Part VI the

reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? Jf "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role plaved by the organization in this regard. 3b
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| PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI.) See instructions. All
other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3

Depreciation and depletion

G [h (DN |=

o [O [b | IN |[=

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

)]

7  Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

1d

o | |0 |T |»

Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

w

Subtract line 2 from line 1d

w

H

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions)

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by .035

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

® [N (o o

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

®© [N (o |0 |~

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

Enter 85% of line 1

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3

Income tax imposed in prior year

a[h (DN |=

o [O (b | IN |-

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions)

6

~

instructions).

\:| Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

832026 10-11-18
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[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (-ontinued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

® [N (o |0 |~ |

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

U]

Excess Distributions

(ii) (iii)
Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2018 Amount for 2018

Distributable amount for 2018 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2018 (reason-
able cause required- explain in Part VI). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2018

From 2013

From 2014

From 2015

From 2016

From 2017

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

STKre|™jo a0 ||

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Carryover from 2013 not applied (see instructions)

-

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

Distributions for 2018 from Section D,
line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2018 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2018, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2018. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2019. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2014

Excess from 2015

Excess from 2016

Excess from 2017

o | |0 |T |

Excess from 2018
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Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

SCHEDULE A, PART II, LINE 10, EXPLANATION FOR OTHER INCOME:

OTHER INCOME

2014 AMOUNT: $ 12,665,
2015 AMOUNT: $ 7,046,
2016 AMOUNT: $ 339.

2017 AMOUNT: $ 3,990,
2018 AMOUNT: $ 15,075,
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** PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY **

Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No. 1545-0047

(F°5%9§|9’ 990-EZ, P Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.

gr -PF) P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 20 1 8
epartment of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947 (a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

00 0oao

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

]

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

Caution:

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part Il, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from

any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h;
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for the
prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering "N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address),
Il, and Ill.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box

is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,

purpose. Don’t complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year > $

An organization that isn’t covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF),

but it must answer "No" on Part 1V, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it doesn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2018)

Page 2

Name of organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC.

Employer identification number

59-3649371

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

17,250,000,

Person
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

29,400,000,

Person
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

22,000,000,

Person
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

65,000,000,

Person
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ ]

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

150,000,000,

Person
Payroll \:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

34,000,000,

Person
Payroll \:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
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Page 2

Name of organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC.

Employer identification number

59-3649371

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

24,000,000,

Person
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

38,000,000,

Person
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person |:|
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person |:|
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ ]

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person \:|
Payroll \:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person \:|
Payroll \:|
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
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Page 3

Name of organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC.

Employer identification number

59-3649371

Partll Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.
(a) (©)
No.

L. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

(a) ©)
No.

L. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

(a) ©)
No.

L. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

a
r(lo) (b) (c) (d)

L. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

a
r(lo) (b) (c) (d)

. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)

a
No. (b) © (d)

. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . . Date received
Partl (See instructions.)
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Name of organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

Employer identification number

59-3649371

Part lll  Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations

completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) > $

Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed.

(a) No.
;FOTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
'f;‘OTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
'f;‘OTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
'f;‘OTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

823454 11-08-18
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527
Depértment of the Treasury P Complete if the organization is described below. P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to P_ublic
Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and B. Do not complete Part I|-C.
® Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts |-A and C below. Do not complete Part |-B.
® Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-A. Do not complete Part II-B.
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-B. Do not complete Part II-A.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c (Proxy
Tax) (see separate instructions), then

® Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations: Complete Part IIl.
Name of organization Employer identification number

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371
| Part I-A| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV.
2 Political campaign activity expenditures
3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities

| Part I-B | Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 > $

2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 > $

3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?
da Was a CorreCtioN MaAE?

b If "Yes," describe in Part IV.
| Part I-C| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities > $
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization’s funds contributed to other organizations for section 527

exempt fUNCHioN aCtiVities > $
3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,

line 17b
4 Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? |:| Yes |:| No
5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing organization
made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization’s funds. Also enter the amount of political
contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a separate segregated fund or a
political action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part IV.

(a) Name (b) Address (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from (e) Amount of political
filing organization’s contributions received and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly

delivered to a separate
political organization.
If none, enter -0-.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
LHA

832041 11-08-18



Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

59-3649371

Page 2

Part II-A| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election under

section 501(h)).

A Check P |:| if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member’s name, address, EIN,
expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).
B Check P |:| if the filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply.

Limit.s on Lobbying Expenditure.s ) org(:Ai';Izlalt?c?n’ s (b) Aﬁl,{f:;g group
(The term "expenditures" means amounts paid or incurred.) totals
1a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying) . ... 124,725,
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) 131,958,
¢ Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b) 256,683,
d Other exempt purpose expenditures 654,531,868,
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines icandd) 654,788,551,
f Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table in both columns. 1,000,000,
If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b) is: The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e.
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000.
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000.
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000.
g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 1f) 250,000.
h Subtract line 1g from line 1a. If zero or less, enter -0- 0.
i Subtract line 1f from line 1c. If zero or less, enter -0- 0.
j If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 1i, did the organization file Form 4720
reporting section 4911 tax for this Year? e |:| Yes |:| No
4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)
Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period
for fiscgf‘;zgffeg?;ing ) (a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) Total
2a Lobbying nontaxable amount 1,000,000, 1,000,000, 1,000,000, 1,000,000, 4,000,000,
b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column(e)) 6,000,000,
¢ Total lobbying expenditures 11,942, 66,809, 115,003, 256,683, 450,437,
d Grassroots nontaxable amount 250,000, 250,000, 250,000, 250,000, 1,000,000,
e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d, column (e)) 1,500,000,
f_Grassroots lobbying expenditures 8,171, 10,454, 18,858. 124,725. 162,208.

832042 11-08-18
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Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 3

Part II-B | Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
(election under section 501(h)).

For each "Yes," response on lines 1a through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detailed description (a) (b)

of the lobbying activity. Yes No Amount

1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state, or
local legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter
or referendum, through the use of:

Volunteers?

Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 1i)?

Media advertisements?

>oQ - 0 2 0 T o

j Total. Add lines 1c through 10

2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)?

b If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912

c If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912

d _If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for thisyear? ...

Part lll-A| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).
Yes No
1 Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? .. 2
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political campaign activity expenditures from the prior year? 3

Part lll-B| Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part llI-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part llI-A, line 3, is
answered "Yes."

1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members 1

2 Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

A CUIT Nt YO e 2a
b Carryover from last Year 2b
C Lol 2c
3 Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues ... ... ... 3

4 If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and political
expenditure next year? 4

5 Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see instructions) ... 5
[Part IV |  Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part I-B, line 4; Part I-C, line 5; Part II-A (affiliated group list); Part II-A, lines 1 and 2 (see

instructions); and Part II-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.
SCHEDULE C, PART II-A

THE SENIOR POLICY DIRECTOR, LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS MANAGER AND DIRECTOR OF

ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT FOR STEP UP FOR STUDENTS PLAYED A KEY ROLE

IN THE 2019 SESSION OF THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE, DURING THE SESSION,

LAWMAKERS CREATED A NEW DIRECT STATE-FUNDED PROGRAM CALLED THE FAMILY

EMPOWERMENT SCHOLARSHIP AND ALSO ADOPTED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE TAX CREDIT

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
832043 11-08-18



Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 4

[Part IV | Supplemental Information ntinued)

SCHOLARSHIP AND OTHER SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS, THE DIRECTOR AND LEGISLATIVE

AFFAIRS MANAGERS PROVIDED INFORMATION TO LAWMAKERS AND LEGISLATIVE STAFF,

AND THE ADVOCACY DIRECTOR HELPED CONNECT SCHOLARSHIP FAMILIES WITH

LAWMAKERS, THESE LOBBYING EFFORTS ARE FINANCED BY SEPARATE PRIVATE

FUNDRAISING AND NOT THROUGH ANY OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOWANCE STEP UP

RECEIVES FOR EACH PROGRAM,

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2018
832044 11-08-18



= - OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements >

(Form 990) P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 20 1 8
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. o .

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990. pen t‘! Public

Internal Revenue Service P>Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

G A ON =

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total numberatend ofyear ...

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value atend ofyear .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? |:| Yes |:| No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private bDenefit? il |:| Yes |:| No

| Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

2

o 0 T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

|:| Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area

|:| Protection of natural habitat |:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:| Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (@) ... ... 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic structure

listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located P>

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? \:| Yes \:| No
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

>

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

> $

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? [ Ives [_INo
In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and

include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the organization’s accounting for
conservation easements.

Part lll [ Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part Xlll,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

(i) Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 > $
(ii) Assetsincluded in Form 990, Part X | ]
2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:
a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 > $
b _Assets included in Form 990, Part X i iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii » $
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2018

832051 10-29-18



Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR

STUDENTS, INC,

59-3649371

Page 2

[Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (ontinueq)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items

(check all that apply):
a [ Public exhibition
b |:| Scholarly research
c |:| Preservation for future generations

d |:| Loan or exchange programs

e |:| Other

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIII.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection?

|:| Yes

|:|No

Part IV | Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included

on Form 990, Part X?

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl and complete the following table:

Beginning balance
Additions during the year
Distributions during the year
Ending balance

- 0 Q 0

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?
b _If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XlIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIlI

Yes |:| No

Amount
1c 58,467,378,
1d 128,658,297,
1e 104,943,286,
1f 82,182,389,

Yes

|:|No

| Part V | Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(a) Current year

(b) Prior year

(c) Two years back

(d) Three years back

(e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance

Contributions

Net investment earnings, gains, and losses

Grants or scholarships ...

® Q O T

Other expenditures for facilities
and programs ..

-

Administrative expenses

g End of year balance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment P>

%

b Permanent endowment P>

%

¢ Temporarily restricted endowment P>

%

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization

by:
(i) unrelated organizations
(ii) related organizations

4 Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

b If "Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?

Yes [ No

3a(i)

3a(ii)

3b

Part VI |Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land
b Buildings
c Leasehold improvements 47,544, 35,453, 12,091,
d Equipment 4,589,724, 1,705,711, 2,884,013,
e Other ... ...

832052 10-29-18
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 3

Part VllI| Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives .

(2) Closely-held equity interests

(3) Other

A

B)

©)

(D)

E

—~
M~

F

l—~
M~

G

I~

(= |

H

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) p»

Part Vlll| Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
@
(8)
(9)
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) B>

Part IX | Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value

(1) FUNDS HELD IN TRUST FOR STUDENTS 82,182,389,
(2) DUE FROM AFFILIATES 8,770,
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
@
(8)
(9)

Total. Jumn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)lin@ 18.) «oooooeoeneeseeoeee > 82,191,159,
Part X | Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(

Federal income taxes

™

@

=

@

©

~
N

©

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

[©

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)line 25.) ............... >
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XII|

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 718,633,943,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities 2b 394,276,

c Recoveries Of prior year grants 2c

d Other (DescribeinPart XIIL) 2d 290,000.

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 684,276.
3 Subtractline 2e from line 1 3 717,949,667,
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b ... .. ... 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIl.) 4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 0.

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [ lin€ 12.)  ..ooiioiieoiiiiieeeiiieeee..s

717,949,667,

Part Xl | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 655,248,013,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities 2a 394,276

b Prior year adjustments 2b

C O NI IOSSES 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIL) 2d 65,186

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 459,462,
3 Subtractline 2e from line 1 3 654,788,551,
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b .. ... ... ... 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL.) 4b

c Addlinesdaand db 4c 0.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990. Part [ ine 18.)  «-tcceeeeuiimuiiaiaaiiiiiieaeieee. 5 654,788 551,

| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART IV, LINE 2B:

IN JUNE 2014, LEGISLATION CREATED A SCHOLARSHIP FOR SPECIAL NEEDS CHILDREN

THAT WAS SIGNED INTO LAW IN FLORIDA, A GARDINER SCHOLARSHIP ACCOUNT IS

ESTABLISHED FOR EACH CHILD THAT IS AWARDED A SPECIAL NEEDS SCHOLARSHIP,

PARENTS USE THIS MONEY TO PERSONALIZE THE EDUCATION OF THEIR CHILDREN WITH

UNIQUE ABILITIES BY DIRECTING MONEY TOWARDS A COMBINATION OF PROGRAMS AND

STATE APPROVED PROVIDERS, THESE INCLUDE SCHOOLS, THERAPISTS, SPECIALISTS,

CURRICULUM AND TECHNOLOGY AND COLLEGE SAVINGS ACCOUNTS.

IN JUNE 2018, LEGISLATION CREATED A SCHOLARSHIP TO PROVIDE ACADEMIC

SUPPORT FOR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL STUDENTS IN DISTRICT OR CHARTER SCHOOLS WHO

STRUGGLE IN READING THAT WAS SIGNED INTO LAW IN FLORIDA, THE SCHOLARSHIP

832054 10-29-18
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 5

[Part XIll | Supplemental Information (.,tinued)

IS AVAILABLE TO STUDENTS IN THIRD THROUGH FIFTH GRADE WHO HAVE SCORED A

LEVEL 1 OR 2 ON THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS SECTION OF THE FLORIDA STANDARDS

ASSESSMENT, PARENTS USE THIS SCHOLARSHIP TO PAY FOR TUITION AND FEES

RELATED TO PART-TIME TUTORING, SUMMER AND AFTER-SCHOOL LITERACY PROGRAMS,

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS AND MORE,

DURING THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS

DISTRIBUTED APPROXIMATELY $104,9 MILLION AND $77.1 MILLION, LEAVING A

BALANCE OF APPROXIMATELY $82,1 MILLION AND $58,4 MILLION RESPECTIVELY,

WHICH IS RECORDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS

BOTH AN ASSET AND A LIABILITY, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS IS ACTING AS AN AGENT

FOR BOTH OF THESE PROGRAMS, THEREFORE, THERE ARE NO REVENUES AND EXPENSES

REPORTED ON THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR SCHOLARSHIP FUNDS RECEIVED AND

DISTRIBUTED FROM THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

PART X, LINE 2:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS IS EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAXES UNDER SECTION

501(C)(3) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND FROM STATE INCOME TAXES UNDER

SIMILAR PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA STATUTES. ACCORDINGLY, NO PROVISION FOR

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES HAS BEEN RECORDED IN THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS., STEP UP FOR STUDENTS HAS MADE AN ELECTION UNDER SECTION

501(H) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE, WHICH PERMITS CERTAIN ELIGIBLE

501(C)(3) ORGANIZATIONS TO MAKE LIMITED EXPENDITURES TO INFLUENCE

LEGISLATION, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS WOULD BE SUBJECT TO AN EXCISE TAX IF IT

SPENDS MORE THAN THE AMOUNTS PERMITTED, SUCH LIMITS HAVE NOT BEEN

EXCEEDED.

THE ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND IS A DISREGARDED ENTITY FOR

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 5

[Part XIll | Supplemental Information (.,tinued)

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX PURPOSES AND THEREFORE, REPORTS ALL FEDERAL

AND STATE TAX INFORMATION THROUGH STEP UP FOR STUDENTS., ACCORDINGLY, NO

PROVISION FOR FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES HAS BEEN RECORDED IN THE

ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

C2 IS A DISREGARDED ENTITY FOR FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX PURPOSES AND

THEREFORE, REPORTS ALL FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX INFORMATION THROUGH

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, ACCORDINGLY, NO PROVISION FOR FEDERAL AND STATE

INCOME TAXES HAS BEEN RECORDED IN THE ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS.

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS FOLLOWS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS RELATING TO ACCOUNTING

FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES., MANAGEMENT ASSESSED WHETHER THERE WERE

ANY UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS WHICH MAY GIVE RISE TO INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

AND DETERMINED THAT THERE WERE NO SUCH MATTERS REQUIRING RECOGNITION IN

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, GENERALLY, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS IS

NO LONGER SUBJECT TO U.S. FEDERAL OR STATE INCOME TAX EXAMINATIONS BY TAX

AUTHORITIES FOR YEARS BEFORE JUNE 30, 2016,

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY ACTION FUND REVENUES 290,000,

PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY ACTION FUND EXPENSES 65,186,

Schedule D (Form 990) 2018
832055 10-29-18



SCHEDULE |
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments, and Individuals in the United States
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or 22.
P> Attach to Form 990.
P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC,

Employer identification number
59-3649371

Part | General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection

criteria used to award the grants or assistance?

2 Describe in Part IV the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Yes |:[ No

Part Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21, for any
recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization

or government

(b) EIN

(c) IRC section
(if applicable)

(d) Amount of
cash grant

(e) Amount of
non-cash
assistance

(f) Method of
valuation (book,
FMV, appraisal,

other)

(g) Description of
noncash assistance

(h) Purpose of grant
or assistance

2  Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed in the line 1 table
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed in the line 1 table

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

832101 11-02-18
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Schedule | (Form 990) (2018) STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC,

59-3649371 Page 2

Partlll | Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 22.

Part lll can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

(a) Type of grant or assistance

(b) Number of

(c) Amount of

(d) Amount of non-

(e) Method of valuation

(f) Description of noncash assistance

recipients cash grant cash assistance | (book, FMV, appraisal, other)
FLORIDA TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 100415| 615,252,820, 0.
ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND 1568 8,781,932, 0.
HOPE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 128 290,968, 0.

Part IV [ Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part |, line 2; Part Ill, column (b); and any other additional information.

PART I, LINE 2:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS RECEIVES GRANTS TO FUND PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES TO

EMPOWER THE FAMILIES OF OUR STUDENTS. THE GRANT EXPENSES ARE TRACKED BY

PROJECT CODE FOR EASE OF REPORTING TO OUR GRANTORS,

IF APPLICABLE,

832102 11-02-18
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990. Open to P_Ub“c
Internal Revenue Service D> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371
[Part]l | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Ill to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
|:| First-class or charter travel |:| Housing allowance or residence for personal use
|:| Travel for companions |:| Payments for business use of personal residence
|:| Tax indemnification and gross-up payments |:| Health or social club dues or initiation fees
|:| Discretionary spending account |:| Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part lll to explain ... ... 1b
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on linet1a? 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization’s
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part lll.
Compensation committee |:| Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 4a X
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 4b X
c Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c X
If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Ill.
Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a Theorganization? 5a X
b ANy related Organization ? 5b X
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part llI.
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
a Theorganization? 6a X
b Any related organization? 6b X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part llI.
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes," describe in Part Il 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Partt ... 8 X
9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations seCtion 53.4058-0(C) 2 . i iiiiiiiiiiiiii i eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii.s 9
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2018
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 2

| Part Il | Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii).
Do not list any individuals that aren’t listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (BJ)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns | (F) Compensation

nE e 2 (i) ot other deferred benefits (B)(i)-(D) in column (B)

i) Base ii) Bonus iii er i

(A) Name and Title compensation incentive reportable compensation reop:qogsgralzso?rifzggd

compensation compensation

(1) DOUG TUTHILL (i) 244,845, 0. 0. 14,940, 13,307, 273,092, 0.
PRESIDENT, SUFS (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(2) ANNE WHITE (i) 162,690, 0. 0. 10,145, 15,129, 187,964, 0.
CAO, SUFS (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(3) JOE PFOUNTZ (i) 194,872, 0. 0. 10,447, 14,607, 219,926, 0.
TREASURER & CFO, SUFS (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(4) ALISSA RANDALL (i) 155,886, 0. 0. 9,516. 8,447, 173,849, 0.
VP MARKETING & EVENTS, SUF (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(5) JONATHAN BECKHAM (i) 149,755, 0. 0. 9,425, 22,455, 181,635, 0.
VP INNOVATION (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(6) GINA LYNCH (i) 145,642, 0. 0. 9,019, 12,807, 167,468, 0.
VP OPERATIONS (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(7) CAROL MACEDONIA (i) 145,157, 0. 0. 8,841, 8,836, 162,834, 0.
VP STUDENT LEARNING (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
(8) JONATHAN EAST (i) 143,893, 0. 0. 8,729, 7,279, 159,901, 0.
VP POLICY & PUBLIC AFFAIRS (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(i)
U]
(ii)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2018
832112 10-26-18



Schedule J (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 3

| Part Ill | Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 63, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2018
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= OMB No. 1545-0047

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ -
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 20 1 8

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. .
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS EMPOWERS PARENTS TO PURSUE AND ENGAGE IN THE MOST

APPROPRIATE LEARNING OPTIONS FOR THEIR CHILDREN,

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

FULFILL THE PROMISE OF EQUAL OPPORTUNITY,

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 2, NEW PROGRAM SERVICES:

FAMILY EMPOWERMENT SCHOLARSHIP CREATED:

IN MAY 2019, GOV, RON DESANTIS SIGNED INTO LAW THE FAMILY EMPOWERMENT

SCHOLARSHIP, WHICH IS INTENDED TO HELP REDUCE THE WAITING LIST FOR THE

TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP AND SIMILARLY SERVES STUDENTS FROM LOW-INCOME

AND WORKING-CLASS HOUSEHOLDS. STEP UP WORKED DIRECTLY WITH THE STATE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION TO ADMINISTER THIS SCHOLARSHIP AND ITS

FIRST-YEAR GOAL IN 2019-20 IS TO SERVE 18,6000 K-12 STUDENTS,

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4A, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

MATH AS STUDENTS OF ALL INCOME LEVELS NATIONALLY, EVEN AS THE STUDENTS

WHO CHOSE THE SCHOLARSHIP WERE AMONG THE POOREST AND LOWEST-PERFORMING

STUDENTS FROM THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS THEY LEFT BEHIND, IN FEBRUARY 2019,

THE URBAN INSTITUTE REPORTED THAT SCHOLARSHIP STUDENTS ARE 43 PERCENT

MORE LIKELY THAN THEIR PUBLIC-SCHOOL PEERS TO ATTEND COLLEGE AND 20

PERCENT MORE LIKELY TO EARN BACHELOR'S DEGREES, FOR THE 14TH TIME, STEP

UP FOR STUDENTS WAS AWARDED THE COVETED FOUR-STAR RATING BY CHARITY

NAVIGATOR FOR FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY,

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)
832211 10-10-18
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Page 2

Name of the organization
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

Employer identification number
59-3649371

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D, OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES:

STUDENT DEVELOPMENT AND STUDENT LEARNING: SCHOOLS AND FAMILIES NEED

POSITIVE, INFORMED PARTNERSHIPS AND STRONG LEADERSHIP, AS WELL AS

CULTURE THAT IS COMMITTED TO CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT, WITH THAT AS A

GUIDING MANTRA, THE OFFICE OF STUDENT LEARNING WAS ESTABLISHED IN 2011

AND CONTINUES TO GROW TO MEET THE NEEDS OF OUR STEP UP SCHOLARS AND

THEIR FAMILIES, THE OFFICE OF STUDENT LEARNING OFFERS FREE STATEWIDE

PROFESSIONAL LEARNING, INDIVIDUALIZED SCHOOL SUPPORT, COMMUNICATION

TOOLS, A STUDENT INFORMATION SYSTEM - THE TEACHING AND LEARNING

EXCHANGE, PARTNERSHIPS WITH NWEA FOR A MAP PROGRAM, CERTIFICATIONS FOR

OUR SCHOOL LEADERS, COUNCILS TO SUPPORT OUR GARDINER SCHOOLS AND

PARENTS AS WELL AS COMMITTEES TO SUPPORT OUR FLORIDA TAX CREDIT

PRINCIPALS, WE ALSO OFFER EVENTS LIKE THE RISING STARS WHERE STUDENTS

ARE RECONIZED AS SCHOLARS AND THEIR PARENTS AND SCHOOLS ARE ALSO

RECOGNIZED FOR ACHIEVEMENTS, IN 2019, THE OFFICE OF STUDENT LEARNING

HELD A CONFERENCE FOR EDUCATORS TO SUPPORT TEACHING, LEARNING AND

ASSESSMENT FOR THE FLORIDA TAX CREDIT AND GARDINER PROGRAMS,

EXPENSES $ 1,785,546, INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0. REVENUE $ 41,782,

RESEARCH ON STUDENT OUTCOMES: EACH TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP IS INTENDED

TO PROVIDE A LOW-INCOME STUDENT IN FLORIDA WITH A VIABLE LEARNING

OPTION THAT CAN MAKE A DIFFERENCE IN HIS OR HER EDUCATIONAL LIFE,

TOWARD THAT OBJECTIVE, STEP UP CONTINUES TO BUILD TOOLS TO ROBUSTLY

ASSESS ACADEMIC PROGRESS, THE STATE COLLECTS STANDARDIZED TEST SCORES

EVERY YEAR AND IN ITS MOST RECENT REPORT DETERMINED THAT SCHOLARSHIP

STUDENTS ACHIEVED THE SAME ACADEMIC GAINS IN READING AND MATH AS

STUDENTS OF ALL INCOME LEVELS NATIONALLY, STEP UP HAS COMPLETED A DATA

WAREHOUSE THAT PULLS TOGETHER STUDENT ACADEMIC, DEMOGRAPHIC AND

832212 10-10-18
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Page 2

Name of the organization
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

Employer identification number
59-3649371

ENROLLMENT INFORMATION FOR MOST OF THE PROGRAM'S HISTORY, FURTHER, STEP

UP HAS INVITED RESEARCH ORGANIZATIONS TO MINE STUDENT DATA, AND THE

URBAN INSTITUTE RELEASED A SECOND INDEPENDENT REPORT IN FEBRUARY 2019

FINDING THAT STUDENTS ON THE SCHOLARSHIP AT LEAST THREE YEARS ARE 43

PERCENT MORE LIKELY THAN THEIR COUNTERPARTS IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS TO ATTEND

COLLEGE.

EXPENSES $ 1,667,113, INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0. REVENUE $ 0.

HOPE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: STEP UP FOR STUDENTS ALSO ADMINISTERS THE

HOPE SCHOLARSHIP, WHICH WAS CREATED IN 2018 TO PROVIDE THE OPTION OF

PRIVATE SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIPS TO STUDENTS IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS WHO HAVE

EXPERIENCED ACTS OF BULLYING AND INTIMIDATION, THE SCHOLARSHIPS ARE

FINANCED BY CONTRIBUTIONS FROM AUTOMOBILE BUYERS, WHO ARE ALLOWED UNDER

THE LAW TO REDIRECT UP TO $105 OF THEIR STATE TAXES ON EACH PURCHASE,

THOSE CONTRIBUTIONS ARE USED TO PROVIDE TUITION SCHOLARSHIPS TO

PARTICIPATING PRIVATE SCHOOLS WORTH UP TO $7,111 OR A $750

TRANSPORTATION SCHOLARSHIP TO A PUBLIC SCHOOL IN ANOTHER DISTRICT, THE

SCHOLARSHIP DID NOT BEGIN UNTIL OCTOBER 2018 AND SERVED 123 STUDENTS IN

ITS FIRST YEAR, ANY UNUSED FUNDS IN THE HOPE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM CAN

BE USED TO FUND SCHOLARSHIPS TO STUDENTS ON THE FLORIDA TAX CREDIT

SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM IN THE NEXT STATE OF FLORIDA FISCAL YEAR,

EXPENSES $ 1,427,683, INCLUDING GRANTS OF § 290,968, REVENUE § 0.

ILLINOIS INVEST IN KIDS SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: STEP UP FOR STUDENTS HAS

CONTRACTED WITH EMPOWER ILLINOIS, AN APPROVED 501(C)(3), SCHOLARSHIP

GRANTING ORGANIZATION (SGO) IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THAT ADMINISTERS

THE ILLINOIS INVEST IN KIDS SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM, A TAX CREDIT

SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM, SINCE NOVEMBER 2017, STEP UP FOR STUDENTS HAS

832212 10-10-18
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Name of the organization
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

Employer identification number
59-3649371

PROVIDED SCHOLARSHIP ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR EMPOWER ILLINOIS,

EMPOWER ILLINOIS CAN SOLICIT AND RECEIVE CORPORATE AND INDIVIDUAL

CONTRIBUTIONS THAT ARE ENTITLED TO A 75% STATE TAX CREDIT OF CORPORATE

AND INDIVIDUAL STATE INCOME TAX, THOSE CONTRIBUTIONS, IN TURN MUST BE

SPENT TO PROVIDE SCHOLARSHIPS TO LOW INCOME ILLINOIS SCHOOL CHILDREN IN

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INVEST IN KIDS ACT. FOR THE 2019- 2020 SCHOOL

YEAR, QUALIFIED STUDENTS RECEIVED SCHOLARSHIPS OF UP TO $13,336,64, OR

FOR INDIVIDUAL DISABILITY EDUCATION ACT STUDENTS, UP TO $26,673,28, TO

ATTEND A PARTICIPATING PRIVATE SCHOOL WITHIN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

SCHOLARSHIPS ARE EXPENDED WHEN A STUDENT ATTENDS A PARTCIPATING SCHOOL,

EMPOWER ILLINOIS IS ALLOWED TO USE UP TO 5% OF THE CONTRIBUTIONS

COLLECTED TO ADMINISTER THE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM, AND STEP UP FOR

STUDENTS IS COMPENSATED FOR ITS WORK BY EMPOWER ILLINOIS VIA THOSE

ADMINISTRATIVE FUNDS, ACCORDING TO SUBMITTED AUDIT MATERIAL, FOR THE

2018-2019 SCHOOL YEAR, 32,456 APPLICATIONS WERE SUBMITTED AND RESERVED

FOR POTENTIAL REVIEW, WHICH LED TO HAVING 5,528 SCHOLARSHIPS AWARDED

TOTALING $37,008,673,

EXPENSES $ 1,010,028, INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0. REVENUE $ 981,486,

ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT (ACE): ACE THROUGH FLORIDA PARENT

NETWORK, ORGANIZES ADVOCATES AND SUPPORTERS WHO BELIEVE CHILDREN SHOULD

BE EDUCATED BASED ON HOW THEY LEARN, RATHER THAN WHERE THEY LIVE, THIS

INCLUDES PARENTS AND STUDENTS WHO UTILIZE SCHOLARSHIPS AS WELL AS

DISTRICT, CHARTER, MAGNET, HOME AND VIRTUAL SCHOOLS. THIS ALSO

INCLUDES TEACHERS, COMMUNITY AND SCHOOL LEADERS, FAITH-BASED LEADERS

AND ALUMNI., FLORIDA PARENT NETWORK EDUCATES, INFORMS AND TRAINS

ADVOCATES AND SUPPORTERS FOR THE PROTECTION AND EXPANSION OF EDUCATION

CHOICE., ADVOCACY AND CIVIC ENGAGEMENT PROVIDES THESE SERVICES TO

832212 10-10-18
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Name of the organization
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

Employer identification number
59-3649371

ADVOCATES PARTICIPATING IN PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY THE ORGANIZATION

AND TO ADVOCATES UTILIZING OTHER CHOICE OPTIONS UNDER CONTRACT SERVICE

AGREEMENTS WITH CHOICE ADVOCACY GROUPS.

EXPENSES $ 934,496, INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0. REVENUE §$ 424,301,

READING SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM: THE READING SCHOLARSHIP WAS CREATED IN

2018 TO PROVIDE ACADEMIC SUPPORT FOR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL STUDENTS IN

DISTRICT OR CHARTER SCHOOLS, WHO STRUGGLE IN READING, STEP UP FOR

STUDENTS, AS AN APPROVED SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ORGANIZATION, ADMINISTERS

THE PROGRAM, THE SCHOLARSHIP IS AVAILABLE TO STUDENTS IN THIRD THROUGH

FIFTH GRADE WHO HAVE SCORED A LEVEL 1 OR 2 ON THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS

SECTION OF THE FLORIDA STANDARDS ASSESSMENT, EACH SCHOLARSHIP IS WORTH

$500, WHICH THE PARENT CAN USE TO PAY FOR TUITION AND FEES RELATED TO

PART-TIME TUTORING, SUMMER AND AFTER-SCHOOL LITERACY PROGRAMS,

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS AND MORE, 1IN ITS FIRST YEAR, 2018-19, THE

SCHOLARSHIP SERVED 5,375 STUDENTS.

EXPENSES $ 827,726, INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0. REVENUE § 0.

FAMILY EMPOWERMENT SCHOLARSHIP: 1IN MAY 2019, GOV, RON DESANTIS SIGNED

INTO LAW THE FAMILY EMPOWERMENT SCHOLARSHIP, WHICH IS INTENDED TO HELP

REDUCE THE WAITING LIST FOR THE TAX CREDIT SCHOLARSHIP AND SIMILARLY

SERVES STUDENTS FROM LOW-INCOME AND WORKING-CLASS HOUSEHOLDS., STEP UP

WORKED DIRECTLY WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION TO ADMINISTER

THIS SCHOLARSHIP AND ITS FIRST-YEAR GOAL IN 2019-20 IS TO SERVE 18,6000

K-12 STUDENTS.

EXPENSES $ 107,481, INCLUDING GRANTS OF $ 0. REVENUE § 0.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 4:

832212 10-10-18
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Name of the organization
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.

Employer identification number
59-3649371

THERE WAS A MINOR CHANGE TO THE BY-LAWS FOR STEP UP FOR STUDENTS IN

DECEMBER 2018, UNDER ARTICLE IV, SECTION 4.4 UNDER DUTIES, WE ADDED DUTIES

FOR THE VICE CHAIR, THE DUTIES INCLUDE "THE VICE CHAIR SHALL BE PREPARED

AT ALL TIMES TO ASSUME THE ROLE OF BOARD CHAIR, IF NECESSARY, THE VICE

CHAIR, WHOSE KNOWLEDGE AND COMMITMENTS MIRRORS THAT OF THE CHAIR, MAY SERVE

IN THE CHAIR'S PLACE FOR BOARD ACTIVITIES AND IN THE SPOKESPERSON CAPACITY,

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

FORM 990 IS PREPARED BY THE FUND'S INDEPENDENT CPA FIRM, AFTER BEING

REVIEWED BY MANAGEMENT, THE FULL FORM 990 INFORMATIONAL RETURN IS PROVIDED

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IS

ALSO AFFORDED THE OPPORTUNITY TO ASK QUESTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE FORM 990

BEFORE THE RETURN IS FILED,

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS ENSURES THAT THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY IS

ADHERED TO WITH THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES: 1) REGULAR EDUCATION WITH THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND KEY STAFF, EACH YEAR, THE POLICY IS

REVIEWED WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE EXECUTIVE TEAM, EACH

ACKNOWLEDGE THEIR UNDERSTANDING AND COMPLIANCE BY SIGNING AN ANNUAL

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT. 2) THE CFO REVIEWS EACH CONTRACT THE ORGANIZATION

ENTERS. 3) FINANCE STAFF AND THE PRESIDENT REVIEW ALL PAYMENTS AS THEY ARE

MADE FOR POSSIBLE CONFLICTS,

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REVIEWS COMPARABLE

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS DATA OF SIMILAR ORGANIZATIONS. DURING FISCAL YEAR

2016, AN INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTING FIRM CONDUCTED A FULL

832212 10-10-18

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018) Page 2

Name of the organization Employer identification number
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371

COMPARATIVE STUDY FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE POSITION AND ALL

NON-EXECUTIVE JOB GRADES, THE COMMITTEE USES THIS INFORMATION, COMBINED

WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE PRESIDENT, TO RECOMMEND THE PRESIDENT'S

COMPENSATION PACKAGE FOR APPROVAL OF THE FULL BOARD, THE FULL BOARD

APPROVES THE PACKAGE.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 17, LIST OF STATES RECEIVING COPY OF FORM 990:

AK,AR,CA,CO,CT, FL,DC,GA HI,IL, 6KS,6KY ME MD,MA MI,MN,MS, NV, 6NH,6NJ,6NM,6NY, 6NC,OH

OR,PA,RI,SC,TN,UT,VA, WA, WV, WI AL, ND,6MO

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS MAKES ITS GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST

POLICY AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AVAILABLE ON ITS WEBSITE,

WWW, STEPUPFORSTUDENTS ,ORG., PRINTED COPIES ARE AVAILABLE BY REQUEST FOR THE

SAME PERIOD OF DISCLOSURE AS SET FORTH IN IRC SECTION 6104(D).

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C:

THIS PROCESS HAS NOT CHANGED SINCE THE PRIOR YEAR,

832212 10-10-18 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2018)



SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.
P> Attach to Form 990.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2018

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization
STEP UP FOR STUDENTS,

INC,

Employer identification number

59-3649371

Part |

Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

(a)
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable)
of disregarded entity

(b)

Primary activity

(c)

foreign country)

Legal domicile (state or

(d)

Total income

(e)

End-of-year assets

()
Direct controlling
entity

THE ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY SCHOLARSHIP FUND -

49-3813722, 2101 MAGNOLIA AVE S, STE 425,

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35205 SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ALABAMA 3,322,942, 7,589,479 ,|STEP UP FOR STUDENTS
C2 SCHOLARSHIPS - 83-2425710
2101 MAGNOLIA AVE S, STE 425
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35205 SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ALABAMA 394,689, 322,027, [STEP UP FOR STUDENTS

Part i organizations during the tax year.

Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related tax-exempt

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

Section(g1)2(b)(13)

Name, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile (state or Exempt Code Public charity Direct controlling controlled
of related organization foreign country) section status (if section entity entity?
501(c)@3)) Yes No
ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY ACTION FUND - 83-3979219
2101 MAGNOLIA AVE, S., STE, 425 STEP UP FOR
BIRMIINGHAM, AL 35205 SCHOLARSHIP FUNDING ALABAMA 501(C)(4) STUDENTS X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

832161 10-02-18 LHA

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018



59-3649371 Page 2

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018  STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC.
Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related

el organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) () (9) (h) (i) (i (k)
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity d(';ri?;'le Direct controlling | Predominant income Share of total Share of Disproportionate Code V-UBI  [General orfPercentage
of related organization (state or entity (]retljatél(fi, unr{elated,d income end-of-year alocations? éet(r)nofugt qun cl:j)olx f;:?tige'rfj;g ownership
forei excluded from tax under assets i of Schedule :
country) sections 512-514) Yes | No | K-1 (Form 1065) [yes No

Part IV Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had one or more related
organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) () (9) (h) Segt)ion
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile [ Direct controlling | Type of entity Share of total Share of Percentage| 512(b)(13)
of related organization (state or entity (C corp, S corp, income end-of-year ownership | controlled
foreign or trust) assets entity?
country) Yes | No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018

832162 10-02-18



Schedule R (Form 990) 2018  STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC. 59-3649371 Page 3

PartV  Transactions With Related Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note: Complete line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts Il, Ill, or IV of this schedule. Yes [ No

1 During the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?
a Receipt of (i) interest, (ii) annuities, (iii) royalties, or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a X
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b X
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c X
d Loans or loan guarantees 10 or for related OrganizatioN(S) 1d X
e Loans or loan guarantees by related OrganizatioN(S) 1e X
f Dividends from related OrQaniZatioN(S) 1f X
g Sale of @ssets 10 related OrQaNI Zat ON(S) 1g X
h Purchase of assets from related OrganizatioN(S) 1h X
i Exchange of assets With related OrganizatioN(S) 1i X
j Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related OrganizatioN(S) 1j X
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organizatioN(S) 1k X
| Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l X
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im X
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(S) 1in X
o Sharing of paid employees With related OrganiZatioN(S) 10 X
p Reimbursement paid to related organization(S) fOr @XPENSES 1p X
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(S) for @XPENSES 1q | X
r Other transfer of cash or property 10 related OrganizatioN(S) 1r X
s Other transfer of cash or property from related OrganizatioN(S) ... iiiiiiiiiiiiiieesieeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeiiiiiei.s 1s X
2 If the answer to any of the above is "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds.
(a) o (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)

(1) ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY ACTION FUND Q 8,770, [FMV

(2) ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY ACTION FUND N 0.

(3) ALABAMA OPPORTUNITY ACTION FUND 0 0.

(4)

(5)

(6)

832163 10-02-18

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018



59-3649371 Page 4

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018
Part VI Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross revenue)
that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships.
(a) (b) (c) (d) A(reezH (f) (9) (h) (i) (i (k)
Name, address, and EIN Primary activity Legal domicile Pre(liom(ijnant irllcor(?e par(t)qeéri ge):c Share of Share of D\;gfﬂ%ﬁ;gr Code V-éJBI 2 General or|Percentage
i ; related, unrelated, 501(c Of- e [amount in box 20|managing ;
of entity (state or foreign exc(luded from tax under |_o" s_% . total end-of-year allocations?|* of Schedule K-1 |partner? ownership
country) sections 512-514)  |yes| No income assets Yes|No| (Form 1065) |yes|No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2018

832164 10-02-18



Schedule R (Form 990) 2018 STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC, 59-3649371 Page 5

Part VIl | Supplemental Information.

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

832165 10-02-18 Schedule R (Form 990) 2018



Form 8868

(Rev. January 2019) Exempt Organization Return

Department of the Treasury

P> File a separate application for each return.

Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information.

Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an

OMB No. 1545-1709

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit
Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic

filing of this

form, visit www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Automati

¢ 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).

All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns.

Enter filer’s identifying number

Type or
print

Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions.

STEP UP FOR STUDENTS, INC,

Employer identification number (EIN) or

59-3649371

File by the
due date for
filing your
return. See

Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.
4655 SALISBURY ROAD, NO. 400

Social security number (SSN)

instructions.

City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256

Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each returny ... | 0 | 1 |
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code |Is For Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12

JOE PFOUNTZ

® The books are in the care of > 4655 SALISBURY RD, SUITE 400 - JACKSONVILLE' FL 32256
Telephone No. p» 904-352-2246 Fax No. P

® |f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box

® |f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization’s four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN)
box P |:| . If it is for part of the group, check this box P |:| and attach a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for.

. If this is for the whole group, check this

> [ ]

1 Irequest an automatic 6-month extension of time until MAY 15, 2020

the organization named above. The extension is for the organization’s return for:
» [ | calendar year or

P [X ] tax year beginning _ JUL 1, 2018

2  Ifthe tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: \:| Initial return \:| Final return

]

,and ending _JUN 30, 2019

Change in accounting period

, to file the exempt organization return for

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less
any nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a| $ 0.
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b | $ 0.
c Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c| $ 0.

Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment

instructions.

LHA  For

Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.

823841 12-19-18

Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2019)
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